NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S COURT
NOVEMBER 8TH, 2016
9:30 A.M.

The Commissioner’s Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular
session in the Commissioner's Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown,
Texas to consider the following items:

1. Review and approval of minutes.
2. Consider noting in minutes any off right-of-way work on any County road done by Road & Bridge Division.
3. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic

payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

4. Citizen comments. Except when public hearings are scheduled for later in the meeting, this will be the
only opportunity for citizen input. The Court invites comments on any matter affecting the county, whether
on the Agenda or not. Speakers should limit their comments to three minutes. Note that the members of
the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that the
court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.

(Items5-13)
5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Elections.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To || Acct No. [| Description [ Amount |
| From | 0376-0376-003005] | Office Furniture | $1,000.0q
| Tol| 0376-0376-004310) | Advertising and Legal Noticeq | $1,000.0q
6. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the 368th Judicial District
Court.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To || Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |
| From | 0100-0409-004998| | Non Dept/Contingencies | $660
| To|| 0100-0438-003006| | 368th DC/Office Equid] | $660

7. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Sheriff.



Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description [ Amount |

| From | 0100.0570.003314| Medical/Hospital | $3,043.04

| Tol| 0100.0570.004413 | Professional Liability Ins] | $3,043.04
8. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Sheriff.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. [| Description | Amount |

| From | 0100.0560.004623 | Equipment Lease| $680.00

| Td| | 0100.0560.00421(] | Internet/Email Services|| $680.00
9. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county assets

through auction including (4) Chairs and (2) Copier's (complete list attached) pursuant to Tx. Local
Gov't code 263.152.

10. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position titles
changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

11. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Santa Rita Ranch
Phase 1 Section 1D subdivision - Pct 3.

12. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the amended plat for the Rancho Sienna
Sec 4 Ph 1 subdivision - Pct 3.

13. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Windmill Acres
Subdivision - Pct 2.

REGULAR AGENDA

14. Acknowledge County Attorney employees for the Certification of “Basic Instructor Proficiency” from
Texas Commission on Law Enforcement(TCOLE).

15. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues
update.
16. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the transfer of 2013 Road Bond per the

recommendations of Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager in the amount of $1,700,000.00 from
Non-Department (P290) to Arterial H Extension (P276).

17. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the transfer of 2006 Road Bond per the
recommendations of Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager in the amount of $250,000.00 from Non
Department (P156) to CR 111 Extension (P249), $700,000.00 from Non-Department (P156) to Forest
North Drainage Improvements (P255), $850,000.00 from Non-Department (P156) to Inner Loop at
Wilco Way (P226).




18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Discuss and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Janie R. Barron for ROW needed
on CR 101. (PARCEL 42)

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding application and indemnification agreement
forms for issuance of event catering permits to support operations of the Williamson County Expo
Center, including but not limited to delegation of signing authority to Parks Department Head or Expo
Center General Manager for the county on approved forms on condition that forms are not changed
(any changes to the forms will require additional commissioners court approval).

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving changes to the un-allocated funds policies
and procedures.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving four part-time Juvenile Supervision Officer
positions in Juvenile Services, funded by JJAEP Tier Il funds, entity 0571.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a contract with the Texas Department of Public
Safety for two (2) full time equivalents (FTEs) as Forensic Scientists.

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of Vehicle
Reimbursement Agreement with Celebration Church (annual renewal for traffic control and security
during various church services).

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the County Judge to execute the
Amendment to the Aetna Life Insurance Company (“Aetna”) as an Amendment to Services Agreement
Number (MSA) 866349 (the Services Agreement) between Aetna and Williamson County. This
Amendment is to enroll Williamson County in the Teladoc, Inc. (“Teladoc”) program in accordance with
the terms and conditions stated in this Amendment which are hereby incorporated as part of the
Services Agreement to be effective on January 1, 2017.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Tobacco Fund Balance Policy, as stated in the
Budget Order Section IV Financial Policies.

Discuss and take action to approve Letter of Agreement with the Office of Court Administration
regarding long distance services for the IV-D court.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and
receive bids for the purchase of Crushed Granite Base materials for use within the Road and Bridge
Division of Williamson County, IFB #1611-125.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Contract Amendment and
Supplemental Agreement for the Engineering Design Services for the Repair of San Gabriel Ranch
Road (Contract 1511-030) with Freese and Nichols, Inc.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving expenditures to make repairs to a water
leak at the Jail House in the boiler room, as well as needed repairs to valves. Repairs to be completed
per proposal from Mtech in the amount of $16,750.00, under TXMAS-15-03FACO1.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the renewal of Fuel, Contract Number
1510-018, for the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing Contract, for the term of
December 1, 2016 - November 30, 2017 with Triple S Fuel - A Division of Texas Enterprises, Inc.



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFQ#1507-017, Construction Material
Testing/Inspection for Williamson County North Campus Facilities with Raba Kistner, Inc. and
authorizing the County Judge to execute professional services agreement.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving agreement between Mtech and
Williamson County to replace three (3) 750,000 Hydronic boilers in the Williamson County Justice
Center, in the amount of $114,750 pursuant to TXMAS contract# TXMAS-15-03FACO1.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the renewal of Lenel software support, for
the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing contract for the term of December 2016 -
December 2017 with Stanley Security.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to

adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding
Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations)."

Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code,
Section 551.087:

a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.

b) Discuss Pearson Road District.

c¢) Discuss North Woods Road District.

d) Project Fiji

e) Leander Medical Center

f) Project Monkey

Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)
A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties

1. Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by
third parties

a) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for right-of-way for Mays St. Extension

b) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for proposed SH 29 project.

c) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop.

d) Discuss possible acquisition of property with endangered species for mitigation purposes.
e) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 101

f) Discuss the acquisition of real property: IH-35 at Ronald Reagan Blvd.

g) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 111

h) Discuss the acquisition of real property for proposed CR 110 project. (All sections)

i) Discuss the acquisition of real property: landfill properties

j) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Inner Loop.

k) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.

I) Discuss the acquisition of real property for DB Wood Rd. (Sneed Loop)

m) Discuss the acquisition of real property on CR 305.

n) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests for the Brushy Creek Trail Project.

o) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Arterial H

p) Discuss the acquisition of easements on the Forest North project.

q) Discuss potential acquisition of property located at NEC of Toll 130 and Gattis School Rd.
r) Discuss utilities for CR 305 at IH 35 and Reagan at IH35 projects.



36.

s) Discuss easement acquisitions from San Gabriel River Ranch Subdivision.
t) Discuss options for ingress and egress regarding access to Cedar Hollow Subdivision.

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County

1). Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the
County

a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.

b) Discuss possible sale of 183 A excess right of way

c) Discuss proposed sale of real estate of Blue Springs Blvd

d) Discuss proposed sale of excess right of way on CR 107

C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman.

Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential attorney-client legal
matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.071 consultation with attorney.),
including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County

b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;

c) Civil Action No.1:13- CV- 505, Robert Lloyd v. Lisa Birkman, et al, In The United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division

d) Employee/personnel related matters

e) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to county
defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the attorney/client
relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

e) Cause No. 15-0064-C277, Gordon v. Dollahite et al, In The District Court of Williamson County, Texas,
277th District

f) County Road 241 utility and Right-of-Way Issues and matters;

g) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; In the USDC-WD-Austin
Division

h) Carolyn Barnes, et al v. Texas Attorney General, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-000877, in the 419th
Judicial District Court of Travis County

i) Appeal of IRS Proposed Worker Classification Changes and Proposed Tax Adjustments 2011 -2013;
and Payment of Disputed Employment Taxes Pending Appeal

j) Potential claims and litigation against Volkswagen and Audi related to Volkswagen and Audi emission
control systems on diesel engine vehicles in the period 2009 — 2015

k) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop

I) Claims of Texas Association for Children and Families

m) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. Sally Jewell, et al., In the Western District Court,
Western District of Texas, Austin Division

n) Legislative changes to firearms laws and possession of firearms on county property

o) Civil Action No. A-14-CV-986-DAE, Walter Chad Troutman v. Williamson County and its Sheriff's
Department, In The United States District Court For The Western District Of Texas, Austin Division

p) LCRA’s proposed Leander to Round Rock 138k-V Transmission Line Project including but not limited
to filing as an intervenor.

g) Notice of claim and demand of Morgan Lee Roach.

r) Labor and employment law review of Employee Policy Manual provisions and amendments.

s) Berry Springs Park and Preserve pipeline

t) Discuss subrogation claims related to medical claims incurred during the County’s contract with
Allegiance Benefit Plan Management (TPA).

u) Discuss requirements related to health benefit plan.

v) Case No. 1:16-cv-00505-LY, Saturn v. Barnett et al, In The United States District Court For The
Western District of Texas-Austin Division

w) Cause No. 3SC-15-0150, Saturn v. Estate of Billy Maddox et al et al, In The Justice Court, Precinct 3,
Williamson County, Texas

x) Suit for declaratory judgment by the County Attorney’s Office on behalf of Emergency Services to
challenge the Attorney General’s ruling in AG Letter Ruling No. OR2016-14927.

y) Civil Action No. 1:16-cv-1023 LY, Brian Carrier v. Lt. McKnight, et al, In The United States District
Court For The Western District Of Texas, Austin Division



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline
and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees and/or positions,
including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion pertaining to annual
reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive Session as per Tex. Gov.
Code Section 551.074 — Personnel Matters).

Discuss the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices in relation to the Williamson County Justice Center (Executive Session as per
Texas Gov’t. Code § 551.076).

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.

Discuss and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other
confidential attorney-client legal matters, including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County

b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;

c) Civil Action No.1:13- CV- 505, Robert Lloyd v. Lisa Birkman, et al, In The United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division

d) Employee/personnel related matters

e) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to county
defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the attorney/client
relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

f) Cause No. 15-0064-C277, Gordon v. Dollahite et al, In The District Court of Williamson County, Texas,
277th District

g) County Road 241 utility and Right-of-Way Issues and matters;

h) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; In the USDC-WD-Austin
Division

i) Carolyn Barnes, et al v. Texas Attorney General, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-000877, in the 419th
Judicial District Court of Travis County

j) Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding possible appeal of IRS Proposed Worker
Classification Changes and Proposed Tax Adjustments 2011 -2013; and approval of payment of disputed
employment taxes pending appeal

k) Potential claims and litigation against Volkswagen and Audi related to Volkswagen and Audi emission
control systems on diesel engine vehicles in the period 2009 — 2015

I) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop

m) Claims of Texas Association for Children and Families

n) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. Sally Jewell, et al., In the Western District Court,
Western District of Texas, Austin Division

o) Action regarding legislative changes to firearms laws, to include but not be limited to the adoption and
implementation of regulations and policies relating to the possession of firearms on and within Williamson
County property and facilities.

p) Civil Action No. A-14-CV-986-DAE, Walter Chad Troutman v. Williamson County and its Sheriff’s
Department, In The United States District Court For The Western District Of Texas, Austin Division

g) LCRA'’s proposed Leander to Round Rock 138k-V Transmission Line Project including but not limited
to filing as an intervenor.

r) Notice of claim and demand of Morgan Lee Roach.

s) Berry Springs Park and Preserve pipeline

t) Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the handling, including but not limited to, the



negotiating and approval of settlement offers, of subrogation claims related to medical claims incurred
during the County’s contract with Allegiance Benefit Plan Management (TPA).

u) Discuss requirements related to health benefit plan.

v) Case No. 1:16-cv-00505-LY, Saturn v. Barnett et al, In The United States District Court For The
Western District of Texas-Austin Division

w) Cause No. 3SC-15-0150, Saturn v. Estate of Billy Maddox et al et al, In The Justice Court, Precinct 3,
Williamson County, Texas

x) Suit for declaratory judgment by the County Attorney’s Office on behalf of Emergency Services to
challenge the Attorney General’s ruling in AG Letter Ruling No. OR2016-14927.

y) Civil Action No. 1:16-cv-1023 LY, Brian Carrier v. Lt. McKnight, et al, In The United States District
Court For The Western District Of Texas, Austin Division

42. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County
officers, directors or employees, including but not limited to any necessary action
pertaining to conducting annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials.

43. Comments from Commissioners.

Dan A. Gattis, County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson County Courthouse,
a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the day of , 2016 at and
remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016
line item transfer
Submitted For:  Chris Davis Submitted By: Kay Eastes, Elections
Department: Elections
Agenda Category: Consent
Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Elections.
Background
The requested transfer is to provide funding for advertising early voting in social media for the 2016 November
elections.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To || Acct No. || Description || Amount |
| From] | 0376-0376-003005] | Office Furniture] | $1,000.04
| Tq | 0376-0376-004310| | Advertising and Legal Noticeq | $1,000.0q
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/01/2016 07:53 AM

Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 11/01/2016 09:05 AM

Form Started By: Kay Eastes Started On: 10/29/2016 07:47 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/01/2016




Commissioners Court - Regular Session
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Line Item Transfer

Submitted By: Ashlie Koenig, Budget Office
Department: Budget Office

Agenda Category: Consent

Agenda Item

Information

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the 368th Judicial District Court.

Background

$777 was budgeted in FY 17 to replace the microphones in the 368th District Court. During voire dire the jury pool
often cannot hear what the attorneys are saying. We have had this same issue in other courtrooms. The 368th
went to purchase new microphones only to learn the microphone jacks are not working. the attached quote is the
cost to purchase wireless mics (this was the solution we used in other courtrooms) which is, unfortunately, more

than what was budgeted.

Fiscal Impact

No file(s) attached.

| From/To || Acct No. || Description || Amount |

| From | 0100-0409-004998] | Non Dept/Contingencieq | $660

| To|| 0100-0438-003006| | 368th DC/Office Equig | $660
Attachments

Inbox

County Judge Exec Asst.

Form Started By: Ashlie Koenig
Final Approval Date: 11/01/2016

Form Review

Reviewed By Date
Wendy Coco 11/01/2016 04:58 PM
Started On: 11/01/2016 09:56 AM




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Line Item Transfer

Submitted By: Peggy Braun, Sheriff

Department: Sheriff

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Sheriff.

Background

The requested transfer provides additional funding for the Jail Doctor/Psychiatrist liability insurance. County funded
liability insurance is a requirement of both the jail doctor and the jail psychiatrist contracts. While an increase was
anticipated and requested in the FY 16/17 budget, the actual premium was greater than the budget amount. The
explanation provided by Extraco Bank, the insurance provider, was there had been a large increase in claims in
the corrections environment across the country resulting in increased premiums.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description | | Amount |

| From| | 0100.0570.00331¢|| Medical/Hospital | $3,043.04

| To | 0100.0570.004413 | Professional Liability Ins) | $3,043.04
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM

Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 11/03/2016 10:43 AM

Form Started By: Peggy Braun Started On: 11/01/2016 10:54 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Line Item Transfer

Submitted By: Peggy Braun, Sheriff

Department: Sheriff

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Sheriff.

Background

For FY 16/17 and several prior fiscal year budgets funding was requested and approved in line item
01.0100.0560.004623 (Equipment Lease). However, per the Auditor's Office, this fiscal year it is not the correct line
item; it must be paid from 01.0100.0560.004210 (Internet/Email). This requested transfer is to meet the County
Auditor's requirement.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. || Description || Amount |

| From| | 0100.0560.004623 | Equipment Leasd] | $680.00

| Tol | 0100.0560.004210 | Internet/Email Services | $680.00|
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM

Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 11/03/2016 10:43 AM

Form Started By: Peggy Braun Started On: 11/02/2016 11:35 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Asset Transfer

Submitted By: Jayme Jasso, Purchasing

Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county assets through auction
including (4) Chairs and (2) Copier's (complete list attached) pursuant to Tx. Local Gov't code 263.152.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount

Attachments
Asset Transfer

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 01:35 PM
Form Started By: Jayme Jasso Started On: 11/03/2016 10:55 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



FrmAudASCFO1 revislon 07/2014

Williamson county PrintForm |
Asset Status Change Form

The following asset(s) is(are) considered for: (select one)

(" TRANSFER bet ween county departments (" DONATION to a hon-county entity
KSALE at the earliest auction * (" DESTRUCTION due to Public Health / Safety
(" TRADE-IN for new assets of similar type for the county SALE to a government entity / civil or charitable organization in
the county at fair market value
Asset List:
Description Manufacturer ID# County Condition of Assets
Quantity {Working, Non-
(year, make, model, etc.) (serlal, service tag, or VIN) Tag#
Working)
4 HIGH-BACK TASK CHAIR N/A Working

Parties involved:

FROM (Transferor Department): JUSTICE OF THE PEACE, PRECINCT 3

Transferor - Elected Official/Department Head/
Authorized Staff: Contact Person:

JUDGE BILL GRAVELL, JR. MELISSA GOINS
Prme ‘1 Print Name
IO/ZO}(G+1 (512) 943-1508

Signature Date Phone Number

TO (Transferee Department/Auction/Trade-in/Donee): A.‘ ICTID A

Transferee - Elected Official/Department Head/
Authorized Staff OR Donee - Representative: (If being

approved for Sale or Trade-in, no sighature is necessary.) Contact Person:
Print Name Print Name .: =T, £ inid
Signature Date Phone Number 0CT 2 4 2016

*If the above asset(s) is (are) listed for sale at auction and no bids are made, the Purchasl%plfeﬁtpr may dlspps,a\qf or donate this (these)
asset(s). A list of the (these) asset(s) to be donated or disposed of will be sent to the Auditor's Office with a date of donation or disposal.

Forward to County Auditor's Office

This Change Status was approved as agenda item # in Commissioner's Court on

If for Sale, the asset(s) was(were) delivered to warehouse on by




FrmAudASCFQ1 revision 07/2014

Williamson County PrintForm_|
Asset Status Change Form

The following asset(s) is(are) considered for: (select one)

(" TRANSFER bet ween county departments " DONATION to a non-county entity
(# SALE at the earliest auction * (™ DESTRUCTION due to Public Health / Safety
¢~ TRADE-IN for new assets of similar type for the county . SALE to a government entity / civil or charitable organization in

the county at fair market value

Asset List:

Quantity Description Manufacturer ID# County Co(;‘f;tr:: OfN' oksns -ets
(year, make, model, etc.) (serial, service tag, or VIN) Tag# 9
Working)
1 Imagistics Copier model# 7835 ~ |serial# 4050127 Non-Working
1 Imagistics Copier modef# im4511 serialff 5100168 Non-Working

Parties involved:

FROM (Transferor Department): Adult Probation

Transferor - Elected Official/Department Head/
Authorized Staff; Contact Person:

Steve Maorrison Kath Blankenship
' Print Name

+1(512)943-3517
Date Phone Number

TO (Transferee Department/Auction/Trade-in/Donee): Auction (money to come back to Adult Probation)

Transferee - Elected Official/Department Head/
Authorized Staff OR Donee - Representative: (If being

approved for Sale or Trade-in, ho signature is necessary.) Contact Person:
TR TR g
- - - (IR LAY & LA
Print Name Print Name
_ S | 0CT 242015
Signature Date Phone Number

AlfrTIrn pre e

Lital i abaenlbias
BB R VS

— ML P AR
* If the above asset(s) is (are) listed for sale at auction and no bids are made, the Purchasing Director may dispgse of or donate this (these)
asset(s), A list of the (these) asset(s) to be donated or disposed of will be sent to the Auditor's Office with a date of donation or disposal.

Forward to County Auditor's Office -

This Change Status was approvéd asagendaitem# inCommissioner's Courton

|f for Sale, the asset{s) was(were) delivered to warehouse on by




Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Compensation Items

Submitted By: Tara Raymore, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position titles changes,
position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attachment for details.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount
Attachments
Comp ltems
LT
Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 11/03/2016 10:07 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Tara Raymore Started On: 11/02/2016 03:44 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Budget Increase % Oracle
Department PCN EE ID g Requested B Reason for Change Salaries From .
Amount Amount Increase Effective Date
911 0122 | 11218 | $47,092.55 | $48,505.33 | $1,412.78 3%  |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0116 | 11481 | $57,373.56 | $59,094.77 | $1,721.21 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0117 | 04012 | $62,037.89 | $64,519.41 | $2,481.52 4% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0155 | 05565 | $44,026.59 | $45,347.39 | $1,320.80 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0131 | 11684 | $41,154.13 | $42,388.75 | $1,234.62 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0137 | 12677 | $40,768.00 | $41,991.04 | $1,223.04 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0135 | 11850 | $40,75841 | $41,981.16 | $1,222.75 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0129 | 13494 | $40,362.69 | $41,573.57 | $1,210.88 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0128 | 13493 | $40,362.69 | $41,573.57 | $1,210.88 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0144 | 12583 | $43,365.92 | $45534.22 | $2,168.30 5% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
911 0138 | 13260 | $42,653.52 | $43,933.13 | $1,279.61 3% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
Juvenile Services 1065 | 12200 | $66,610.44 | $69,274.86 | $2,664.42 4% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
Juvenile Services 1063 02475 $49,413.92 $51,884.62 $2,470.70 5% Merit Unallocated 001100 10/21/2016
Juvenile Services 1132 | 03336 | $46,571.64 | $48,43451 | $1,862.87 4%  |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 10/21/2016
MOT 1187 | 10931 | $53,987.96 | $56,687.36 | $2,699.40 5% |Merit Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
MOT 1183 | 12327 | $51,178.15 | $53,737.06 | $2,558.91 5%  |Merit Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
MOT 1185 | 13255 | $44,907.99 | $47,153.39 | $2,245.40 5% |Merit Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
MOT 1624 | 13126 | $43,591.70 | $44,899.46 | $1,307.76 3%  |Merit Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
MOT 1184 | 13083 | $45,704.82 | $47,090.06 | $2,285.24 5% |Merit Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
Juvenile Services 1146 | 13631 | $40,560.00 | $42,182.40 | $1,622.40 4%  |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 11/18/2016
Juvenile Services 1700 12776 $41,600.00 $43,264.00 $1,664.00 4% Merit Unallocated 001100 11/18/2016
Juvenile Services 1141 | 13659 | $58,000.02 | $60,320.02 | $2,320.00 4%  |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 11/18/2016
Juvenile Services 1062 12241 $70,304.00 $71,007.04 $703.04 1% Merit Unallocated 001100 11/18/2016
Juvenile Services 9984 | 13138 | $29,120.00 | $30,160.17 | $1,040.17 | 3.57% |Merit Unallocated 001100 | 11/18/2016
Emergency Medical Services 0788 02458 $60,292.61 $60,437.31 $144.70 0.24% [Merit:lump sum $144.70 Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
Emergency Medical Services 0865 02795 $49,413.92 $49,527.58 $113.66 0.23% [Merit:lump sum $113.66 Unallocated 001100 11/8/2016
T
Unified Road Systems 1520 | vacant | $35,384.98 | $36,199.99 | $815.01 | 2.30% ZZ;S’O':UG“G vacant Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1562 | Vacant | $35,909.99 | $36,199.99 | $290.00 | 0.81% pz:;?/ol:crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1598 | Vacant | $35,174.98 | $36,199.99 | $1,025.01 | 2.91% pz:igo':crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1588 | Vacant | $34,125.00 | $36,199.99 | $2,074.99 | 6.08% pz:i;?’o':crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1621 | Vacant | $34,125.00 | $36,000.00 | $1,875.00 | 5.49% pzsai;?’o':crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1599 | Vacant | $34,125.00 | $36,199.99 | $2,074.99 | 6.08% pz:i;?/ol:crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1702 | vacant | $34,125.00 | $36,199.99 | $2,074.99 | 6.08% pzsai;?’o':crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1671 | Vacant | $34,125.00 | $38,699.99 | $4,574.99 | 13.41% pz:i;?/ol:crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1552 | vacant | $34,125.00 | $36,199.99 | $2,074.99 | 6.08% pzsai;?’o':crease vacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016
Salary i t
Unified Road Systems 1534 | vacant | $35,384.95 | $36,000.00 | $615.05 | 1.74% [ o) !'ncreasevacan Unallocated 001100 11/4/2016

position




FROM /TO

From
From
From
To
To
To
To
To
To
From
From
From
To
To
To

ACCOUNT

01-0100-8004-001130
01-0100-8004-002010
01-0100-8004-002020
01-0100-0341-001100
01-0100-0341-002010
01-0100-0341-002020
01-0100-0540-001100
01-0100-0540-002010
01-0100-0540-002020
01-0100-0509-001100
01-0100-0509-002010
01-0100-0509-002020
01-0100-8006-001130
01-0100-8006-002010
01-0100-8006-002010

DESCRIPTION

Emergency Services/Merit
Emergency Services/FICA
Emergency Services/Retirement
MOT/Salaries

MOT/FICA
MOT/Retirement
EMS/Salaries

EMS/FICA
EMS/Retirement
Facilities/Salaries
Facilities/FICA
Facilities/Retirement
Infrastructure/Merit
Infrastructure/FICA
Infrastructure/Retirement

“mnnunonon oo,y n

v nunnvnn

AMOUNT

$4,657.82
356.32
622.75
4,399.46
336.56
588.21
258.36
19.76
34.54
$551.54
42.19
73.74
551.54
42.19
73.74



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 11.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Santa Rita Ranch Phase 1 Section 1D - Final Plat

Submitted For: Joe England Submitted By: Stephen Jones-Meyer, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Santa Rita Ranch Phase 1

Section 1D subdivision - Pct 3.

Background
This is the next section of the Santa Rita Ranch development. It consists of five single family lots and no new
public roads.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments

Santa Rita Ranch Phase 1 Section 1D - Final Plat

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/01/2016 07:53 AM
Form Started By: Stephen Jones-Meyer Started On: 10/31/2016 12:56 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/01/2016



RONALD W REAGAN BLVD.

10/12/2016 5:36:36 PM CDT

S:\LAND2501~2550\2512\dwg\2512-PLAT.dwg

LOCATION MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400°

CURVE TABLE
CURVE | LENGTH | RADIUS DELTA CHORD BRNG. | CHORD
C1 11.08 25,00 | 2524°10" | N5802°09"W 10.99
Cc2 143.44 | 60.00 | 13658°22" | N6610'45"E | 111.64
c3 6.14 60.00 5%51°47" | N48°15°58"W 6.14
c4 45.77 60.00 | 434212 | N7302°57"w | 44.66
c5 45.77 60.00 | 4342'12" | N6314°51'E 44.66
cé6 45.77 60.00 4342'12" N19°32°40E 44.66
LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING LENGTH
L7 N3218°26"w | 57.88
L2 N3218°26"w | 30.00
NOTES:

1.

2

ALL PUBLIC ROADWAYS AND EASEMENTS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE FREE OF
LIENS.

THE MINIMUM LOWEST FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER
THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT IS LOCATED WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE
THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING, OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BASE FLOOD
ELEVATION (BFE) WHICHEVER IS HIGHER.

NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTION IS MADE TO
AN APPROVED PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM.
NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL WATER SATISFACTORY FOR
HUMAN CONSUMPTION IS AVAILABLE FROM A SOURCE IN ADEQUATE AND
SUFFICIENT SUPPLY.

A DE FACTO CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WTHIN
THIS SUBDIVISION. THIS CERTIFICATE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA REVISES
OR NEWLY ADOPTS FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES IN THIS AREA.

BEARINGS ARE TEXAS STATE PLANE CENTRAL ZONE NAD 83.

ALL SIDEWALKS ARE TO BE MAINTAINED BY EACH OF THE ADJACENT PROPERTY
OWNERS.

F] FINAL PLAT OF
SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 1, SECTION 1D
o = SET 1/2” IRON ROD WITH "RJ SURVEYING” CAP SCALE:  1"=100"
BL = BUILDING SETBACK LINE e
OPRWC = OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 0 100° 200" 300° 400’
POC = POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
POB = POINT OF BEGINNING
PUE = PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
THIS
PLAT
T~ SANTA RITA KC, LLC
/ w —_ 80.13 ACRES
~ DOC. No. 2008093412, OPRWC
/ / T — -
A S A e
L / / 3%/ / / sock 8 T 5 B%OL Ew';
~ fs o, | ot pethe
~[_ - / , o2 3 CORNER, "aBSTR 7
~/ SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 1, SECTION 1B | POC )8 -

~ DOCUMENT NO. 2014065379
-

Q
/ S / BLOCK B
/ X .
- N 2/ / P
YA | =
%
\ 0 ~
P / th};\ \{f / / 24
/ KON - /
/" SANTA RITA RANCH — ~_ L
PHASE 1, SECTION 1C
~ DOCUMENT NO. 2015038851 ™~
) N 21
e
AN N _
\ 20 AN - -
AN N~
? \ ~
N - SITE DATA:
- TOTAL AREA: 2.060 ACRES
. 5 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
1 BLOCK
\,\NE VE\{' s
€ VLoV 2 5s SANTA RITA C7 INVESTMENTS, LLC
oAMA 2 MAN: e P 810.32 ACRES PROPERTY OWNER:
apPR oLON‘E,/ sUR DOCUMENT No. 2013061332, OPRWC
R ek SANTA RITA KC, LLC
BT WER 8200 NORTH MOPAC, SUITE 300
-7 TGRE AUSTIN, TX, 78759

DATE: 12 AUGUST 2016 SCALE: 1" = 100

RANDALL JONES & ASSOCIATES ENGINEERING, INC.

2900 JAZZ STREET, ROUND ROCK, TEXAS, 78664

(512) 836-4793 FAX: (512) 836-4817 F-9784

RJ SURVEYING & ASSOCIATES, INC.

2900 JAZZ STREET, ROUND ROCK, TEXAS, 78664

SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS |r—10015400 (512) 836-4793 FAX: (512) 8364817




10/4/2016 11:33:13 AM CDT

SA\LAND2501-2550\2512\dwg\2512—PLAT.dwg

THAT PART OF THE BARTHOLOMEW MANLOVE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 417
AND THE GREENLEAF FISK SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY,
TEXAS, BEING A PART OF THAT 90.13—-ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO
SANTA RITA KC, LLC BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008093412 OF
THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING
ALL OF A 1.50-ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SANTA RITA KC, LLC
BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT No. 20160781841 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC
RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT A 1/2” IRON ROD SET AT THE EAST CORNER OF LOT 30,
BLOCK B, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 1, SECTION 1B ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2014065379 OF THE OFFICIAL
PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS FROM WHICH A 1/2" IRON
ROD SET AT THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 30 BEARS,
N.32°18'26"W. A DISTANCE OF 57.88 FEET;

THENCE S.32°18'26"E. ACROSS SAID 90.13—ACRE TRACT A DISTANCE OF
30.00 FEET TO A 1/27 IRON ROD SET AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE S.32°18°26"E. CONTINUING ACROSS SAID 90.13—-ACRE TRACT 76.37
FEET TO A 1/2” IRON ROD SET AT THE NORTH CORNER OF SAID 1.50-ACRE
TRACT, SAME BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 90.13—ACRE TRACT AND THE
NORTH LINE OF A 810.32—ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO A SANTA
RITA C7 INVESTMENTS, LLC BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO.
2013061332 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY,
TEXAS;

THENCE WITH THE SOUTHERLY LINES OF SAID 1.50-ACRE TRACT AND
ACROSS SAID 810.32-ACRE TRACT THE FOLLOWING FOUR COURSES:

1. S.3218°26"E. A DISTANCE OF 49.40 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON ROD SET;

2.5.36°20'44"W. A DISTANCE OF 131.25 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON ROD SET;

3.5.28°44'10"W. A DISTANCE OF 195.72 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON ROD SET;

4.N.63'45°20"W. A DISTANCE OF 336.01 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON ROD SET AT
THE EAST CORNER OF LOT 21, BLOCK B, SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 1,
SECTION 1C ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED DOCUMENT NO.
2015038851 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY,
TEXAS SAME BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 24 OF SAID
SECTION 1B AND ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 90.13—ACRE TRACT SAME
BEING THE NORTH LINE OF A 810.32—-ACRE TRACT;

THENCE N.1915°46"E. WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 24 AND ACROSS
SAID 90.13—-ACRE TRACT A DISTANCE OF 164.35 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON ROD
SET AT THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 24, AND ON THE SOUTH
LINE OF HEDGEROW LANE ACCORDING TO SAID SECTION 1B;

THENCE WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID HEDGEROW LANE AND CONTINUING
ACROSS SAID 90.13-ACRE TRACT THE FOLLOWING THREE COURSES:

1. 5.70'44’14E. A DISTANCE OF 123.60 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON ROD SET AT
A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT:

2.SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT A
DISTANCE OF 11.08 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET,
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 2524°10" AND A CHORD BEARING S.58°02'09'E.,
10.99 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON ROD SET AT A POINT OF REVERSE
CURVATURE OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT:

3. NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 143.44
FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE
OF 13658'22", AND A CHORD BEARING N.6610°457E., 111.64 FEET TO A
1/2” IRON SET:

THENCE N.57°41°34"E. CONTINUING ACROSS SAID 90.13—ACRE TRACT A
DISTANCE OF 148.04 FEET TO THE SAID POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 2.060 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

DEDICATION

STATE OF TEXAS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

THAT SANTA RITA KC, LLC, BEING THE OWNER OF THAT 90.13 ACRE
TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT No.
2008093412 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY,
TEXAS, AND OWNER OF A 1.50 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A
DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT No. 2016078181 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC
RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, DOES HEREBY SUBDIVIDE 2.060
ACRES OUT OF SAID TRACT AND DOES HEREBY JOIN, APPROVE AND
CONSENT TO ALL DEDICATIONS AND PLAT NOTE REQUIREMENTS SHOWN
HEREON. WE DO HEREBY APPROVE THE RECORDATION OF THIS
SUBDIVISION PLAT AND DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC USE FOREVER ANY
EASEMENTS AND ROADS THAT ARE SHOWN HEREON. THIS SUBDIVISION IS
TO BE KNOWN AS "SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 1, SECTION 1D", AND
FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER,
NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF ALL
APPLICABLE STATE, FEDERAL AND LOCAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATING TO THE ENVIRONMENT, INCLUDING (BUT NOT LIMITED TO) THE
ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT, STATE AQUIFER REGULATIONS AND MUNICIPAL
WATERSHED ORDINANCES.

THIS S DAY OF __OCTOBER 2016,

SANTA RITA KC, LLC
J

8200 NORTH MOPAC, SUITE 300
AUSTIN, TX, 78759

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF__TRAVS

BEFORE ME ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED JaAmMEs Epwarp Hopms,

KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED
THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATION THEREIN EXPRESSED.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS THE _S DAY OF
OcroBRER AD., 20_Llb .

PATRICIA A SCHOFELL
Notary Public, State of Texas

5, A My Commission Expires
S XA October 12, 2019

OTARY PUBI_IC SIGNATURE
CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE

SEAL

THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING THE SOLE OWNER AND HOLDER OF DEED OF
TRUST LIEN DATED OCTOBER 31, 2013, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT No.
2008093412 IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY,
TEXAS, SECURING A NOTE OF EVEN DATE THEREWITH, EXECUTES THIS
DECLARATION SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES OF EVIDENCING ITS CONSENT TO
THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS HEREOF.

INTERNATIONAL BANK OF COMMERCE
A TEXAS BANKING ASSOCIATION

PRINTED NAME: A11EW € . WIS
ME EXecurive Vice presidend

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

BEFORE ME ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEAReD AL, €. WIS E,
KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED

THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATION THEREIN EXPRESSED.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFficE THIS THE U YWpay oF
0CYobey 4D, 20110

h4TA/?Y P%UC SIGN -

SEAL

Gl g 12

FINAL PLAT OF

SANTA RITA RANCH PHASE 1, SECTION 1D

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION

I, J KENNETH WEIGAND, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | PREPARED THIS PLAT
FROM AN ACTUAL AND ON THE GROUND SURVEY OF THE LAND SHOWN
HEREON AND THAT THE CORNER MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON WERE
PROPERLY PLACED UNDER MY SUPERVISION. THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH
THE REQUIREMENTS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY. ALL EASEMENTS Of RECORD
OF WHICH | HAVE KNOWLEDGE ARE SHOWN OR NOTED ON THE PLAT. THE
FIELD NOTES HEREON MATHEMATICALLY CLOSE.

R.P.L.S. No. 5741
STATE OF TEXAS

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION

NO PORTION OF THIS TRACT IS WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN AS
SHOWN ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE COMMUNITY PANEL No. 48491C0250F
AND 48491C0275E EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS.

l, J. KEITH COLLINS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED ON THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCES
AND THE STORMWATER DRAINAGE POLICY ADOPTED BY WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS. THIS TRACT IS LOCATED IN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER
RECHARGE ZQNE

o
[ e Citte el

JKEITH COLLINS DATE

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 80579

THE CITY OF LIBERTY HILL, TEXAS, ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THIS PLAT
FOR REVIEW AND/OR APPROVAL IN CONJUNCTION WITH PLANNING
PURPOSES AND PAYMENT OF APPLICABLE FEES FOR THE PROVISION OF

WATER AND/OR WASTEWA TER SERVICES
ANE

CITY OF LIBERTY HILL

STREET NAMES APPROVED
DATE: 10/ 13/ 301

Dasa Bakbw

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ADDRESSING COORDINATOR

SHEET 2 OF 2 SHEETS

IN APPROVING THIS PLAT BY THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT OF WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THE BUILDING OF ALL STREETS,
ROADS, AND OTHER PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ANY BRIDGES OR CULVERTS
NECESSARY TO BE CONSTRUCTED OR PLACED IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMMISSIONERS'
COURT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID COMMISSIONERS’ COURT
ASSUMES NO OBLIGATION TO BUILD ANY OF THE STREETS, ROADS, OR OTHER
PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES SHOWN ON THIS PLAT OR OF CONSTRUCTING ANY OF
THE BRIDGES OR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. THE
COUNTY WILL ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WAYS OR EASEMENTS
IN THE SUBDIVISION, OTHER THAN THOSE DRAINING OR PROTECTING THE ROAD
SYSTEM AND STREETS.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF ALL APPLICABLE STATE, FEDERAL AND
LOCAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO PLATTING AND DEVELOPMENT OF
THIS PROPERTY.

THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF
REPRESENTATIONS BY OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. FLOOD PLAIN DATA, IN
PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE DEPENDING ON SUBSEQUENT DEVELOPMENT. IT IS
FURTHER UNDERSTOOD THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND COVERED
BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE STREETS IN THE
SUBDIVISION HAVE FINALLY BEEN ACCEPTED FOR MAINTENANCE BY THE
COUNTY.

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS;

I, DAN A. GATTIS, COUNTY JUDGE OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT, WITH FIELD NOTES HEREON, THAT A
SUBDIVISION HAVING BEEN FULLY PRESENTED TO THE COMMISSIONERS' COURT
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BY THE SAID COURT DULY CONSIDERED,
WERE ON THIS DAY APPROVED AND PLAT IS AUTHORIZED TO BE REGISTERED
AND RECORDED IN THE PROPER RECORDS OF THE COUNTY CLERK OF
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS.

DAN A. GATIIS, COUNTY JUDGE DATE
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

STATE OF TEXAS
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS;
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

THAT I, NANCY RISTER, CLERK OF THE COUNTY COURT OF SAID COUNTY, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT IN WRITING, WITH [TS
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION WAS FILED FOR RECORD IN MY OFFICE ON

THE _____ DAY OF , 20 AD, AT _______
O'CLOCK, ___.M., AND DULY RECORDED ON THE _____ DAY OF
, 20___, AD, AT _______ OCLOCK, __.M., IN THE

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY IN DOCUMENT NO.
TO CERTIFY WHICH, WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL AT THE COUNTY COURT OF
SAID COUNTY, AT MY OFFICE IN GEORGETOWN, TEXAS, THE DATE LAST SHOWN
ABOVE WRITTEN.

NANCY RISTER, CLERK COUNTY COURT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

BY:

DATE: 12 AUGUST 2016 SCALE: 1" = 100’

RANDALL JONES & ASSOCIATES ENGINEERING, INC.

2900 JAZZ STREET, ROUND ROCK, TEXAS, 78664
(512) 836-4793 FAX: (512) 8364817

RJ SURVEYING & ASSOCIATES, INC.

2900 JAZZ STREET, ROUND ROCK, TEXAS, 78664

F=10015400 (512) 836-4793 FAX: (512) 836-4817




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the amended plat for the Rancho Sienna Sec 4 Ph 1
subdivision - Pct 3

Submitted For:  Joe England Submitted By: Patrick Hughes, Unified Road System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the amended plat for the Rancho Sienna Sec 4 Ph 1
subdivision - Pct 3.

Background

We are in receipt of a Scrivener’s Affidavit (attached) from the Surveyor for a plat recorded in 2015 on which there
some line distance label notations that are in error. Local Government Code 232.011(a)(1) and the Williamson
County Subdivision Regulations provide for amending the plat, but require that this affidavit be approved by the
Commissioner’s Court prior to filing the correction with the County Clerk.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Scivener's Affidavit - Rancho Sienna Sec 4 Ph 1

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/01/2016 04:58 PM
Form Started By: Patrick Hughes Started On: 11/01/2016 10:51 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/01/2016



SCRIVENER'S AFFIDAVIT
Final Plat of Rancho Sienna Section 4, Phase 1

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §

John T. Bilnoski, RPLS, the Registered Professional Land Surveyor who sealed the below referenced
Plat, personally appeared before the undersigned and being duly sworn, states the following:

1. The Final Plat of Rancho Sienna Section 4, Phase 1 (the "Plat") was recorded under
Document No. 2015107466, in the Official Public Records of Wiliamson County, Texas.

2. Due to a scrivener's error, the Lot line label notations for portions of Lots 5, 6 and 7 of
Block LL, of said plat of record are incorrect. The correct line label notations are depicted and
further detailed on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.

3. By operation of this Scrivener's Affidavit, the correct Lot line label notations for portions of
Lots 5, 6 and 7 of Block LL of said plat of record have been corrected and are as depicted on
Exhibit "A" attached hereto

" po]na]
STANTEC CONSULTING { o[ "l
SERVICES INC. Jomslmosm '
221 WEST SIXTH STREET R.PZS.\NO. 4998
SUITE 600 STATE OF TEXAS
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 TBPLS # F-10194230

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §

Thisjinstrument was signed, sworn to, and acknowledged before me by John T. Bilnoski, RPLS on

@é{;fb ZT L2016,
DEBORA D. NEWELL

[SEAL] :- -:- Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires
Aptil 28, 2019

Notary Public, tate of Texas



STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §
This insfrument was acknowledged before me on . 2016, by

. County Judge, of Wiliamson County, Texas, and do hereby

certify that this Affidavit, having been fully presented to the commissioners' Court of Williamson
County, Texas, and by the said Court duly considered, were on this day approved and authorized
fo be registered and recorded in the proper records of the County Clerk of Wiliamson County

Texas.

, Counly Judge

Williamson County, Texas

[SEAL]

UPON RECORDING RETURN TO:

Stantec Consulting Services
221 West Sixth, Suite 600
Austin, Texas 78701
Attention: John Pickens, P.E

H:\ 102640\08%\Final Plat of Rancho Sienna Section 4, Phase 1- Scrivener Affidavit.docx



EXHIBIT "A”

0 50 100 150 200
1"=100’

REMAINDER OF 606.19 ACRES
RANCHO SIENNA KC, LP
DOCUMENT NO. 2007081893

~

50.00° [50.00° [50.00° |

@

)

10 9 8 7 6 5 4
Lo desteLl
-t 4 —— 4 — — {50.00°4-50.00~4-50.004] — =
- ﬁ) ET f g W 7\)

— 5

5 S/W SERRANO STREET (50’ R.O.W.) 10'/PUE

@ RANCHO SIENNA SECTION 4, PHASE 1
| DOC.I NO. ?015107466

REMAINDER OF TRACT 3A

REMAINDER OF 606.19 ACRES 17.147 ACRES
RANCHO SIENNA KC, LP NASH RANCHO HILLS, LLC
DOCUMENT NO. 2007081893 DOCUMENT NO. 2014001964
LEGEND

O 1/2” IRON ROD

WITH “BURY”

CAP SET
St tec SURVEY EXHIBIT FINAL PLAT

OF THE CORRECTED LINE INFORMATION FOR LOTS
~ Wegxﬂreegtem 5, 6 AND 7 OF BLOCK LL, OF THE FINAL PLAT OF RANCHO SIENNA
e e RANCHO SIENNA SECTION 4, PHASE 1, A SECTION 4,
L N SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. PHASE 1
TBPE ¥ F16324 TBPLS # F-10194230 ° 20151 07466 OF il THE *OFFCIAL PUBUC RECORDS‘ OF -
ol WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. SHEET 1 OF 1
DATE: 07-14-16 | DRAWN BY: MJR FN: N/A FILE: H:\102640\089110264010089EX1 DWG PROJECT No. 102640-10089

H:\102640\089\10264010083EX1.dwg Jul 14, 16 10:30 AM by. mraabe




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Windmill Acres Subdivision - Pct 2
Submitted For:  Joe England Submitted By: Patrick Hughes, Unified Road System
Department: Unified Road System

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Windmill Acres Subdivision - Pct
2.

Background

This rural subdivision consists of 7 single family lots and no new public roads. There is a planned arterial road
(120-foot right-of-way) that runs north-south through this subdivision. An easement for the future right-of-way has
been established and shown on the plat.

The preliminary plat was approved on September 20, 2016.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Final Plat - Windmill Acres Subdivision

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Patrick Hughes Started On: 11/03/2016 08:41 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Final Plat of
Windmill Acres Subdivision

24.043 Acres out of the Nathaniel H. Mix Survey
Abstract No. 411, Williamson County, Texas

/
Hidden Meadows of Liberty Hill /
Cabinet Q, Slide 213 R o
P.RW.C.T. / 6[?
/ § SX
/ (4) 9
1l Q

Charles E. & Neal & R. Elroy Foust
92.17 Acres

Doc. No. 1996053712
O.P.RW.C.T.

"CRIGHTON”
Legend %
|
|
O.P.R.W.C.T. = Official Public Records Williamson County, Texas [ >
[
P.R.W.C.T. = Plat Records Williamson County, Texas : ;8) 50 100
(xxxxx) = Denotes Record Data : 3 D = Feet
® = 1/2" Iron Rod Found | g «(g%
® = Capped 1/2" Iron Rod Found | \_;NQS; Scale 17 = 100
O = Capped 1/2" Iron Rod Set marked "WALKER 5283" }LQ 5o gi.
3 0
B.L. = Building Line Setback g =8N (o
o ok
D.E. = Drainage Easement : 8 o= ©
- S i | = S Bearing Basis:
P.U.E. = Public Utility Easement R S g 1S:
= . ; ; Patricia Reyna |5 T
X Benchmark: Cotton Gin Spindle See Note 14 ASEF Satback ‘ 40.001 Acres (N § Bearings cited hereon based on Grid North
POND ! \ Document No. 2013077672 :g o Texas State Plane Coordinate System
75" 0.S.S.F. Serl:t;ack / , \ \\ \ O.P.RW.C.T. Lo, Central Zone (NAD83)
of B9 { \ \ |
/ \ \
\\ / \ \ \ { Combined Scale Factor = 0.99989148
@\*\*\*\R \ \ ! (for surface to grid conversion)
S 7414147 W gaganx & ! \
'40\ 5? \ X \ X Point of Inverse Scale Factor = 1.00015281
— 3 \\ : Begining (for grid to surface conversion)
X 'O
Ly ”S » yapaey 2 ”
\\ @I R NS\ N 781402° £ 5354, RLS 5785" % Scaled about 0,0
307 D o et
GRID COORDINATE os »
N 10244339.52 \z > Lot 4 Elevations shown here are based on
E 3042627.64 & = 4.097 Acres Network GPS observations in NAVD8S.
e 5 |
E N I (2.483 Net Acres)
\\ ) li S §\~ Finished Floor Elevation
NIRE: I3 © 1021.00°
- e lo 2
= § / ! S, T T~ R100°
. © %) )
Driveway Culvert Table R ‘1 N éL/ ~ /Zs.s.p_ setbock @
i I i /. RS0
Lot No. Diameter Min. Lenght Invert Elev. > '8 SN “'\\ / §: 1 . \ ‘})‘3‘
: ™~
1 18" 97" 1018’ R Lot 3 5 \\?7\\:%: / VSV
2 18" 22’ 1020’ 3 3187 Acres N\ N\ x v~ BFE
& (2138 Net Acres) '\ RO’ & §|°| : Minimum Finished
3 18" 22° 1016’ = BFE ‘)ﬁ“‘ RN | \'s \ 1021.00° ¥
Fini ; . \ S B
) 18" 22 1016° /n/shed75_207080[;/evat/onv ‘ \*\ \\l \ g \ | 100" 3
b AN : @ / P.S.S.F. Setback
5 18” 22’ 1015’ L N oo Y 5 N _
”» » » ‘5\}\‘ \ \\ N — ~ - w
6 18 22 1012 / e N %
7 18" 22’ 1014’ / 4 N Am\}\ = S oBEN T
Ny \ RIS N 5
'<\ \ / Py g Top of Qank %
\ 3 ™
2 0
Jessie Ronny Urive Jr. W \ L L3
12.048 Acres . o s N ek 28
Document No. 2014038314 S SSF Sepock S92
0.P.RW.C.T. 3 l S50 =
3.911 Acres a | Q‘E(@ i
S (3.204 Net Acres) n // s 923
- R N
e ~ / . .
/~ AN S = 8
/ AN ' - ": Q
4 \ Minimum_Finished @
// \ ~  Floor Elevation \ s
/ \ 1018.00° \ S
I i \
\\ | 720' N\
/ X
\ <X o . > \
\ Y BN N / o B = \ : \
\. /ow N ~., / o s < I s \ BFE \
AN ya E R50° X :,S a - 1IN 5 \ Minimum Finished \
N v ¥ ~~ e X S 3 ] 0 l g Floor Elevation — .__. L\
.. -~ — 5 FE B it e N— N
\J‘ — 3 , ihkl\ ~ > : N -/. “\ \\\ % i-\ \\\-\
R100.0° ',,, as.s.l;’gzmack é B [ ~Jw |, § / \\ % \ ’%\ T~
0.5.S.F. Setback N Lot 2 S 8 o lv-18 \ N NG 1§ Lot 6 b K e~
(APPROX.) § o ol & g § § 2 SN/ T 4.068 Acres W L N
] 3.338 Acres ~ =] < ;0_ 'a 'S °’fo‘@\\ (5.26‘3 Net Acres) % \arg N
= (2.999 Net Acres) =z ST \ § AN .| . 8 ! N \_\
13 of X ™.\ N \ \ S IRF
T |3 & TR N \ © \ NS /4"
s| | e S B T
. .. & | g § / /RS0 = \(\\\‘R’\/&.’;IF.OOS‘etback N 69°36°09" E 1154, 15 ‘“3%
Vicinity Map (not to scale) " = o/ l__ N~ ! o | &
o l g Qg . / ™ \ 4 v S~ Minimum Finished \ %
- \ h 0// ! \ " Floor Elevation \ U}é
X .00’
g\ Y N 3448'57" W 125.94' | &l : er 1§ \ N L e \%
SITE N N 34'48'57° W 125.94’ | & \ [ 5
o [ © < \
8 i\ N 2 B N 3 2 \
> N R100" / ~ _ % '&‘ \ E <+ % \
G ‘ =z [o.ss.F, Setback / \ N // N \ Q§ o o ~ \
N I a3 . [} o2 A
—— 1 ' N 2102'06" W 10.88'~ ~K SRy el 29 AN
% P — - 1 ; ~ P N N 3 g ® € o g
| - N A
P : -0 9 o <R O S
2 :@ ﬁ\ N 68'57'54" E 249.22' | | se6g5754"w 309277 |\ | Q g+« Qs 23
o / - \ I [ / TN ! | 3 i Qo g N Ny =
| o ‘ ] / / N \| e o1 S eIQx R AN
o = / Nl AN 3 i o0~ | N ENE TS A el g 0N
/ $ © ! [ : weri 4\ ol 2\ Q A 593/923 N
\ + i &) \ € / \
_|_Well ‘LD ! <3 ' \ “/ \ 9 : 0 \l < 3 / o \\
\ / I : ¢ . ". 1 85 o 2 / k) |
-~ H q; £
\ \ J/ / g’ . e 0.S.S.F. Setback ~ _ /|“ : | Wl © & / \ ///j\
~— L 3l . N \ BFE ¥ / N | \ < 1 v
/ 2 8 3 N Minimum Finished 4 \, o \ | // /\*/ |
% > / 2 ~If~ % g Floor Elevation \ / il ‘! , Lot 6 % A A1
N o : R Az I8 N 1014.00° Y o \ 8 \ \ =7
) s |2~ g 5181 2] 3R |s ) 1 LR | i \ ST
< i s Lot 1 S 3 % 2 2 3 Lot7 i 3'\! | Deed Line \\\ /
2 2.464 A § B > 3.025 Acres i ‘%! v i 593/923 \ 57 4 204 J
Kl ES . cres % ‘ W s 3 W N ! © : Lo \ 68 Ro% Y
" (2.168 Net Acres) S« 21 Sy I N : =l | \ % Loun S
o Q9 R %‘ ! 8 ~N L5 g .8 '\ ‘\ P 3 [ | \ \ ~ C ~
£ ® -% 2 ~§ z| Iy S .\ \ 2 >\\ 1 -a \ ~~_ -
& 9 S 5| = alx I N ! &9 Detail "A”
\‘ & 3 o ~ ofN N & ! 8] , ! \
3 ) [5} < © 7 -3 \ ! g o | ‘l
. o 12 g o e \. [ > g{ \
2 : \. % 51 [\
B & b \. ! 1 !
< = 3 \ ! § " | \\
© | - \ \ Q |
GRID COORDINATE @ £ R ! ol i \ N
N 10242966.88 - S 6857'54" W 30.00° l 2 . . N 2] 5, 68.57‘54\ W 2000
£ 3043154.26 S \ : —S 685754° W 30.00 N 2
S 68'55'51” W 353.06° 3 . D 754" ’ 4 16.9" CenteXine Rd
S 685754 W 30.00° (SN /—S 68°57'54" W 30.00 \ - - enteryne K~ad.
15.0" Centerline Rd. [ ! I\ g,
J’SNS” SNS” A Rt ‘1—' = “~ K See Detail P 1 of 3
©— o0& — 0 —— - ) N age 1 o
® kT ® e * N P S 68°57'54" W_249.56 — Ly 2
_——————- - County Road 204 ¢ - —-
» (50"@_ht~of—ch)

Benchmark

WALKER

Elev. 1021.07°

P.O. Box 324

Cedar Park, Texas 78630—0324
Phone (512) 259-3361

Firm No. 10103800

TEXAS SURVEYORS

@r




)

Final Plat of

Windmill Acres Subdivision

24.043 Acres Out of the Nathaniel H. Mix Survey
Abstract No. 441, Willlamson County, Texas

PERIMETER DESCRIPTION

BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 24.043 ACRES, IN THE NATHANIL H. MIX SURVEY,
ABSTRACT 411, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID TRACT BEING OUT OF TRACT | AND TRACT I, CONTAINING
24.091 ACRES, AS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 2014085579 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE 394.665 ACRES CONVEYED TO SUZCO, LLC, IN A
WARANTY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2012037979 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID 24.043 ACRE TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

Beginning at a capped 1/2” Iron Rod Found marked “RLS 5785", in the Common line of said 394.665 acres
and a called 149.892 tract of land to Thomas G. Foust, as recorded in Volume 395, Page 636, of the Deed
Records of Williamson County, Texas, also being the Northeast corner of said Tract I, also being a point in
the West line of a 10.7389 acre tract conveyed to Robert M. & Tyree J. Wolesensky, recorded in Document
No. 2011066457 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, also being a point at the
Southeast Corner of a 40.001 acre tract conveyed to Patricia Reyna, recorded in Document No. 2014015652
of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, for the Northeast Corner hereof, from which a
capped 1/2” Iron Rod Found marked “CRIGHTON’, at the Northwest Corner of said 10.7389 acre tract bears:

North 20°57°31" West, 399.45 feet,

THENCE, South 20°59°06” East, with said Common line, along or near a fence, passing a 1/2” Iron Rod
Found, at the Southwest corner of said 10.7389 acre tract, also being the Northwest Corner of a 20.8428
acre tract conveyed to Robert M. and Tyree J. Wolesensky, recorded in Document No. 2011066457 of the
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, a distance of 7.09 feet, continuing along or near a
fence, to a capped 1/2" Iron Rod Set marked “WALKER 5283, at the Southwest corner of said 20.8428
acre tract, also being the Northwest Corner of a 16.00 acre tract conveyed to Pamela A. and Ronnie R.
Stevenson, recorded in Volume 593, Page 923, of the Deed Records of Williamson County, Texas, a total
distance of 794.58 feet, from which from which a 1/4” Iron Rod Found at the Northeast corner of said
16.00 acre tract, also being the Southeast corner of said 20.8428 acre tract, bears: North 69°36°09” FEast,
1154.15 feet,

THENCE, along the West Line of said 16.00 acre tract, South 20°20°39” East, 608.28 feet to a capped 1/2"
Iron Rod Set marked ‘WALKER 5283", a point in the Northerly Right—of—Way line of County Road 204, said
point being the Southwest Corner of said 16.00 acre tract, from which the Southeast Corner of said 24.091
acre tract, also being the Southeast Corner of said 394.665 acre tract, bears: North 68°57°54” East, 6.80

feet,

THENCE, South 68°57°54” West, with said Right—of—Way line, passing a capped 1/2" Iron Rod Found marked
“SNS”, at the Southwest corner of said Tract | same being the Southeast Corner of said Tract I, a
distance of 362.25 feet, for a total distance of 723.65 feet, to a capped 1/2” Iron Rod Found marked
“SNS*, in said Right—of—Way line, for the Southwest Corner hereof, also being the Southwest Corner of said
Tract I, same being the Southeast Corner of a 12.048 acre tract conveyed to Jessie Ronny Urive Jr.,
recorded in Document No. 2014038314 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, from which

a 1/2” Iron Rod Found at the Southwest Corner of said 12.048 acre tract bears: South 68°55°51” West,
353.06 feet,

THENCE, departing said Right—of—Way line with the Common line of said Tract Il and said 12.048 acre tract
along a fence, North 20°59°23" West, 1470.19, to a capped 1/2” Iron Rod Found marked “SNS”, in the
Southerly line of said 40.001 acre tract, at the Northwest Corner of said Tract I/l same being the Northeast
Corner of said 12.048 acre tract, from which a 1/2” Iron Rod Found at the Northwest Corner of said

12.048 acre tract bears: South 74°14°14” West, 354.40 feet,

THENCE, North 74°14°02" East, with the Common line of said Tract Il and said 40.001 acre tract along a
fence, passing a capped 1/2” Iron Rod Found marked “SNS”, at the Northeast Corner of said Tract I, same
being the Northwest Corner of said Tract |, a distance of 362.45 feet, and a total distance of 733.61, to
the Point of Beginning, and containing 24.043 Acres of land.

GENERAL PLAT NOTES

1. Lots 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 may not be further subdivided.

2. Water service provided by private wells.

3. Sewer service provided by On-—Site Sewage Facility.

4. A de facto certificate of compliance is hereby issued for all lots within this subdivision except for lots 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7.

O

o

10.

11.

12.
13.
14.

15.

16.

This certificate is valid until such time as FEMA revises or newly adopts floodplain boundaries in this area. A floodplain
development permit must be obtained from the Williamson County floodplain administrator for lots 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 prior to
any construction or development.

A ten (10) foot public utility and drainage easement is hereby dedicated adjacent to

all property lines unless otherwise noted on the plat.

A ten (10) foot building line is located adjacent to all property lines unless otherwise

noted on the plat.

It is the responsibility of the owner, not the County, to assure compliance with the provisions of all applicable state, federal
and local laws and regulations relating to the platting and development of this property.

The County assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of representations by other parties in this plat. Floodplain data, in
particular, may change. It is further understood that the owners of the tract of land covered by this plat must install at
their own expense all traffic control devices and signage that may be required before the roads in the subdivision have finally
been accepted for maintenance by the county.

Rural mailboxes shall be set three feet from the edge of the pavement or behind curbs, when used. All mailboxes within
county arterial right—of—way shall meet the current TxDOT standards. Any mailbox that does not meet this requirement may
be removed by Williamson County.

Right—of—way easements for future right of way, widening roadways or improving drainage shall be maintained by the
landowner until road or drainage improvements are actually constructed on the property. The County has the right at any time
to take possession of any road widening easement for the construction, improvement, or maintenance of the adjacent or
future roadway.

The landowner assumes all risks associated with improvements located in the right—of—way or road widening easements. By
placing anything in the right—of—way or road widening easements, the landowner indemnifies and holds the county, its officers,
and employees harmless from any liability owing to property defects or negligence not attributable to them and acknowledges
that the improvements may be removed by the county and that the owner of the improvements will be responsible for the
relocation and/or replacement of the improvement.

All public roadways and easements as shown on this plat are free of liens.

Landscaping is prohibited within the country road right—of—way.

Benchmark: Cotton Gin Spindle set at the North edge of pavement of CR 204, 35 feet west and 7.8 feet south of the
Southeast corner of subdivision. Elevation = 1012.07°

The minimum lowest finished floor elevation shall be one foot higher than the highest spot

elevation that is located within five feet outside the perimeter of the building, or one foot

above the BFE, whichever is higher.

The minimum finished floor elevations shown on this plat were determined by adding one (1) foot to the base flood elevation

(bfe) as determined by a study prepared by Phil Smith, P.E. Dated May 28, 2016.

Page 2 of 3

S

WALKER

P.O. Box 324

Phone (512) 259-3361
Firm No. 10103800

TEXAS SURVEYORS

Cedar Fark, Texas 78630—-0324

Job No.: 473003

=0




Final Plat of
Windmill Acres Subdivision

24.043 Acres Out of the Nathaniel H. Mix Survey
Abstract No. 441, Williamson County, Texas

OWNER'S CERTIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS
{ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

I, Edwin Roark, manager for ELR Land Investments, LLC, sole owner of the certain 24.091 acre tract of land shown hereon and
described in a deed recorded in Document No. 2016041025 of the Official Records of Williamson County, Texas, and do hereby
subdivide said tract as shown hereon, and do hereby consent to all plat note requirements shown hereon, and do hereby dedicate
to Williamson County, the streets, alleys, rights—of—way, easements and public places shown hereon for such public purposes as
Williamson County may deem appropriate. This subdivision is to be known as “Final Plat of Windmill Acres Subdivision”, TO CERTIFY
WHICH, Vﬂ'_NESS bym hand -this\the ’Qéday of 0(”’ l’éJ v, 2016.

ELR Land Investments, LLC
By: Edwin Roark, manager
3910 Sequoia Trail West
Georgetown, TX 78628

STATE OF TEXAS
{ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

Before me, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said county and state, on this day personally appeared
Edwin Roark, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL of office this the 2 © _ day of _ O ¢ Lh<Y 016

2= WA WL

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

THOMAS NEAL MCCOLLUM
Notary Public, State of Texas
My Commission Expires

c ¢ ;&
My Commission expires on: /\‘ y ! g > A0 /1
£ g April 08, 2019

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Robert P. Smith, Registered Professional Engineer in the State of Texas, do hereby certify that this said 24.091 acre tract, is not in the
Edwards Aquifer Recharge Zone and is encroached by a Zone A flood area, as denoted herein,

and as defined by Federal Emergency Management Administration Flood Hazard Boundary Map, Community Panel

Number 48491C0250E, effective date September 26, 2008, and that each lot conforms to the Williamson County, Texas regulations.

The boundary of the floodplain as determined by an engineering study is shown herein.

S 1
TO CERTIFY WHICH, WITNESS my hand and seal at Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, this the -j day of DC Ob&r 2016.

Rele @. S o,

Robert P. Smith

74
Registered Professional Engineer No. 40030 (sealed) grl -
State of Texas RQ,B.EEI..MH’P”?SWW
Y o83
&

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION

I, Charles G. Walker, Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Texas, do hereby certify that this plat is true and
correctly made from an actual survey made on the ground of the property legally described hereon, and that there are no
apparent discrepancies, conflicts, overlapping of improvements, visible utility lines or roads in place, except as shown on the
accompanying plat, and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under my supervision in accordance
with the subdivision regulations of Williamson County, Texas.

TO CERTIFY WHICH, WITNESS my hand and seal at Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, this the & day of ﬂéﬁé&rzom

/p\

Ve

Charles G. Walker

Registered Professional

Land Surveyor Number 5283 (Sealed)
State of Texas

ROAD NAME AND 911 ADDRESSING APPROVAL

Road name and address assignments verified this the 2016 A.D.

f“;‘s. A}'g
Feresa—Boker- 5&—&&;&5

Williamson Counly Addressing Coordinator

day of

HEALTH DISTRICT APPROVAL

Based upon the above representations of the engineer or surveyor whose seal is affixed hereto, and after a review of the
survey as represented by the said engineer or surveyor, | find that this blue line (survey) complies with the requirements of
Edwards Aquifer Regulations for Williamson County and Williamson County On—Site Sewage Facility Regulations. This
certification is made solely upon such representations and should not be relied upon for verifications of the facts alleged.
The Williamson County and Cities Health District (WCCHD) and Williamson County disclaim any responsibility to any

member of the public for independent verification of the representations, factual or otherwise, contained in this blue line (survey)

/]/0]/26/6

Deborah L. Marlow, RS, 0S0029596 Date
Assistent-Deputy Director, Environmental Health Services, WCCHD

and the documents associated with it.

COUNTY JUDGE'S APPROVAL

STATE OF TEXAS
{ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

I, Dan A. Gattis, County Judge of Williamson County, Texas, do hereby certify that this map of plat, with field notes heron, for a
subdivision having been fully presented to the Commissioner’s Court of Williamson County, Texas, and by the said Court duly
considered, were on this day approved and that this plat is authorized to be registered and recorded in the proper records of the
County Clerk of Williamson County, Texas.

Don A. Gattis, County Judge
Williamson County, Texas

COUNTY CLERK'S CERTIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS
Z{ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

I, Nancy E. Rister, Clerk of the County Court of said County, do hereby certify that the foregoing instrument in
day of , 2016, AD.,
M.,

writing, with its certificate of authentication was filed for record in my office on the
at o’clock, .M., and duly recorded this the day of , 20__, AD., at o’clock,
in the Official Public Records of said County in Document No.

TO CERTIFY WHICH, WITNESS my hand and seal at the County Court of said County, at my office in Georgetown, Texas,
the date last shown above written.

Nancy E. Rister, Clerk County Court
of Williamson County, Texas

By: _ Deputy

Page 3 of 3

©

WALKER

TEXAS SURVEYORS
P.O. Box 324

Cedar Park, Texas /78630—-0324
Phone (512) 259-3361

Firm No. 10103800 //
Job No.: 473003 (@

&



Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Recognition of Certification
Submitted For: D. Hobbs

14.

Submitted By: Stephanie Lloyd, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Agenda Item

Information

Acknowledge County Attorney employees for the Certification of “Basic Instructor Proficiency” from Texas
Commission on Law Enforcement(TCOLE).

Background

Brandon Dakroub, Stephanie Greger, Michael Cox, Melissa Hightower, Rudy Gonzalez, Blake Plueckhahn, Nathan
Rowland, and John McKinney each completed a 40 hour class and received the certification which will now allow
our office to instruct classes for local law enforcement and that officer will be able to receive credit from these

classes.

A Special thanks to the Sheriff's Office for providing the certification platform for the training and Georgetown Police
Department for providing the facilitators which made achieving the certification possible.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [

Acct No. | | Description ||

Amount

No file(s) attached.

Attachments

Inbox

County Judge Exec Asst.

Form Started By: Stephanie Lloyd
Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016

Form Review

Reviewed By Date
Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Started On: 11/02/2016 04:54 PM




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update
Submitted For: Robert Daigh Submitted By: Lydia Linden, Unified Road System
Department: Unified Road System

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description (| Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 10/18/2016 08:13 AM
Form Started By: Lydia Linden Started On: 10/17/2016 01:50 PM

Final Approval Date: 10/18/2016



Commissioners Court - Regular Session
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

2013 Road Bond Transfer

Submitted By: Jaime Aleman, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the transfer of 2013 Road Bond per the recommendations of
Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager in the amount of $1,700,000.00 from Non-Department (P290) to Arterial H
Extension (P276).

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description (| Amount

Attachments
2013 R Memo

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Jaime Aleman Started On: 11/02/2016 03:25 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



1508 S. Lamar Blvd.
Austin, Texas 78704

(512) 445-7074 voice Prime Strategies, Inc.
(512) 445-7064 fax

To: Jaime Aleman, Williamson County Auditor’s Office.
Pam Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office

From: Michael J. Weaver
Date: November 2, 2016
Re: 2013 Road Bond Budget Adjustments

Please make the following budget transfer for projects funded by the 2013
Road Bond Program.

e Move $1,700,000.00 from P-290 2013 Unallocated to P-276 Arterial H

If you have any questions, please let me know.

Cc: Bob Daigh, Williamson County Sr. Director of Infrastructure
Marie Walters, PSI
Christen Eschberger, P.E., HNTB

C:\Users\jaaleman\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet
Files\Content.Outlook\09SJAGZN\Memo_Auditors_2013RBBudgetAdjustmentst_11022016R (2).doc



Commissioners Court - Regular Session
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

2006 Road Bond Transfer

Submitted By: Jaime Aleman, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the transfer of 2006 Road Bond per the recommendations of
Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager in the amount of $250,000.00 from Non Department (P156) to CR 111
Extension (P249), $700,000.00 from Non-Department (P156) to Forest North Drainage Improvements (P255),
$850,000.00 from Non-Department (P156) to Inner Loop at Wilco Way (P226).

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description (| Amount

Attachments
2006 R Memo

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Jaime Aleman Started On: 11/02/2016 03:45 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



1508 S. Lamar Blvd.
Austin, Texas 78704

(512) 445-7074 voice Prime Strategies, Inc.
(512) 445-7064 fax

To: Jaime Aleman, Williamson County Auditor’s Office.
Pam Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office

From: Michael J. Weaver
Date: November 2, 2016
Re: 2006 Road Bond Budget Adjustments

In an effort to close out the 2006 Road Bond program budgets, please make
the following budget transfers for projects funded by the 2006 Road Bond
Program.

e Move $250,000.00 from P-156 2006 Unallocated to P-249 CR 111
Extension

e Move $700,000.00 from P-156 2006 Unallocated to P-255 Forest
North Drainage Improvements

e Move $850,000.00 from P-156 2006 Unallocated to P-226 Inner Loop
at Wilco Way

If you have any questions, please let me know.

Cc: Bob Daigh, Williamson County Sr. Director of Infrastructure
Marie Walters, PSI
Christen Eschberger, P.E., HNTB

C:\Users\jaaleman\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet
Files\Content.Outlook\09SJAGZN\Memo_Audit_2006RBBudgetAdjustment_11022016 (2).doc



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

CR 101 Real Estate Contract

Submitted For:  Charlie Crossfield Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Janie R. Barron for ROW needed on CR 101.
(PARCEL 42)

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount

Attachments
Barron Real Estate Contract

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 11/03/2016 09:33 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT
CR 101 Right of Way—Parcel 42

THIS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made by JANIE R. BARRON
(referred to in this Contract as “Seller”) and WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (referred to in
this Contract as “Purchaser”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.

ARTICLE I
PURCHASE AND SALE

By this Contract, Seller sells and agrees to convey, and Purchaser purchases and agrees to
pay for, the tract(s) of land described as follows:

All of that certain 0.007 acre (312 Sq. Ft.) tract of land in the John Thomas
Survey, Abstract No. 610, Williamson County, Texas; being more fully described
by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein
(Parcel 42)

together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances pertaining to the property, including
any right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent streets, alleys or rights-of-way (all of such
real property, rights, and appurtenances being referred to in this Contract as the “Property”), and
any improvements situated on and attached to the Property described in Exhibits “A” not
otherwise agreed herein to be retained by Seller, for the consideration and upon and subject to the
terms, provisions, and conditions set forth below.

ARTICLE 11
PURCHASE PRICE
Purchase Price
2.01. The Purchase Price for the Property described in Exhibit “A”, any improvements on
the Property, and any damage to or cost to cure for the remaining property of Seller shall be the

sum of NINE HUNDRED and 00/100 Dollars ($900.00).

Payment of Purchase Price

2.02. The Purchase Price shall be payable in cash at the Closing.

00366171.DOC



ARTICLE III
PURCHASER’S OBLIGATIONS

Conditions to Purchaser’s Obligations

3.01. The obligations of Purchaser hereunder to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby are subject to the satisfaction of each of the following conditions (any of
which may be waived in whole or in part by Purchaser at or prior to the Closing).

Miscellaneous Conditions

3.02. Seller shall have performed, observed, and complied with all of the covenants,
agreements, and conditions required by this Contract to be performed, observed, and complied
with by Seller prior to or as of the closing.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
OF SELLER

Seller hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser as follows, which representations and
warranties shall be deemed made by Seller to Purchaser also as of the Closing Date, to the best of
Seller’s current actual knowledge:

)] There are no parties in possession of any portion of the Property as lessees, tenants
at sufferance, or trespassers, other than as previously disclosed to Purchaser;

(2) Seller has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules
and restrictions relating to the Property, or any part thereof;

The Property herein is being conveyed to Purchaser under threat of condemnation.

ARTICLE V
CLOSING

Closing Date

5.01. The Closing shall be held at the office of Independence Title Company on or before
December 15“‘, 2016, or at such time, date, and place as Seller and Purchaser may agree upon, or
within 10 days after the completion of any title curative matters if necessary for items as shown on
the Title Commitment or in the contract (which date is herein referred to as the “Closing Date”).



Seller’s Obligations at Closing

5.02. At the Closing Seller shall:
(1) Deliver to Purchaser a duly executed and acknowledged Deed conveying good and
indefeasible title to Williamson County, Texas in fee simple to all of the Property described in

Exhibit “A”, free and clear of any and all liens and restrictions, except for the following:

(a) General real estate taxes for the year of closing and subsequent years not
yet due and payable;

(b) Any exceptions approved by Purchaser pursuant to Article IIT hereof; and
(c) Any exceptions approved by Purchaser in writing.

The Deed shall be in the form as shown in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

(2) Deliver to Purchaser a Texas Owner’s Title Policy at Purchaser's sole expense, issued
by Title Company, in Grantee’s favor in the full amount of the Purchase Price, insuring
Purchaser’s contracted interests in and to the Property subject only to those title exceptions listed
herein, such other exceptions as may be approved in writing by Purchaser, and the standard
printed exceptions contained in the usual form of Texas Owner’s Title Policy, provided, however:

() The boundary and survey exceptions shall be deleted;

(b) The exception as to restrictive covenants shall be endorsed “None of
Record”, if applicable; and

(©) The exception as to the lien for taxes shall be limited to the year of Closing
and shall be endorsed “Not Yet Due and Payable”.

(d) Deliver to Purchaser possession of the Property if not previously done.

Purchaser’s Obligations at Closing

5.03. At the Closing, Purchaser shall:

(a) Pay the cash portion of the Purchase Price and Additional Compensation.



Prorations

5.04. General real estate taxes for the then current year relating to the Property shall be
prorated as of the Closing Date and shall be adjusted in cash at the closing. If the Closing shall
occur before the tax rate is fixed for the then current year, the apportionment of taxes shall be
upon the basis of the tax rate for the next preceding year applied to the latest assessed valuation.
Agricultural roll-back taxes, if any, shall be paid by Purchaser.

Closing Costs

5.05. All costs and expenses of closing in consummating the sale and purchase of the
Property shall be borne and paid as follows:

€)) Owner’s Title Policy and survey to be paid by Purchaser.

2) Deed, tax certificates, and title curative matters, if any, paid by Purchaser.
3) All other closing costs shall be paid by Purchaser.

4) Attorney’s fees paid by each respectively.

ARTICLE VI
BREACH BY SELLER

In the event Seller shall fail to fully and timely perform any of its obligations hereunder or
shall fail to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason, except Purchaser’s default,
Purchaser may: (1) enforce specific performance of this Contract; or (2) request that the Escrow
Deposit, if any, shall be forthwith returned by the title company to Purchaser.

ARTICLE VII
BREACH BY PURCHASER

In the event Purchaser should fail to consummate the purchase of the Property, the conditions to
Purchaser’s obligations set forth in Article III having been satisfied and Purchaser being in default
and Seller not being in default hereunder, Seller shall have the right to receive the Escrow
Deposit, if any, from the title company, the sum being agreed on as liquidated damages for the
failure of Purchaser to perform the duties, liabilities, and obligations imposed upon it by the terms
and provisions of this Contract, and Seller agrees to accept and take this cash payment as its total
damages and relief and as Seller’s sole remedy hereunder in such event. If no Escrow Deposit has
been made then Seller shall receive the amount of $500 as liquidated damages for any failure by
Purchaser.



ARTICLE VIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Notice
8.01. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed received
when sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested,
addressed to Seller or Purchaser, as the case may be, at the address set forth opposite the signature

of the party.

Texas Law to Apply

8.02. This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State
of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Williamson
County, Texas.

Parties Bound
8.03. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns where

permitted by this Contract.

Legal Construction

8.04. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, this invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Contract shall be construed as
if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

Prior Agreements Superseded

8.05. This Contract constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties and supersedes
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within
subject matter.

Time of Essence

8.06. Time is of the essence in this Contract.



Gender
8.07. Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to include any
other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, and vice versa,

unless the context requires otherwise.

Memorandum of Contract

8.08. Upon request of either party, the parties shall promptly execute a memorandum of
this Contract suitable for filing of record.

Compliance

8.09 In accordance with the requirements of Section 20 of the Texas Real Estate License
Act, Purchaser is hereby advised that it should be furnished with or obtain a policy of title
insurance or Purchaser should have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of
Purchaser’s own selection.

Effective Date

8.10 This Contract shall be effective as of the date it is approved by Williamson County,
Texas which date is indicated beneath the County Judge’s signature below.

Counterparts
8.11 This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, which may together
constitute the Contract. Signatures transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail may be considered
effective as originals for purposes of this Contract.

[signature page follows]



SELLER:

QMDL‘C/ /g ﬁ/&%x?//{) Address:/a?é /D wa-ﬂg]ﬂéﬁwf )éé

Janie R. Barron
- Burtoet Loy 75))

Date: /ﬂ’;),g/,/é

PURCHASER:

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

By: Address: 710 Main Street, Suite 101
Dan A. Gattis Georgetown, Texas 78626
County Judge

Date:




Page 1 of 3

April 25, 2016
A Revised Sept. 26, 2016
EXHIBIT _£ A
County: Williamson
Highway: C.R. 101
Parcel: 42

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR
PARCEL 42

DESCRIPTION OF A 0.007 ACRE (312 SQUARE FOOT) TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE JOHN THOMAS SURVEY,
ABSTRACT NO. 610, IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF THAT CALLED 5.711 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
(TRACT 1) CONVEYED TO JANIE R. BARRON BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2000030575 OF THE
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID 0.007 ACRE (312 SQUARE FOOT) TRACT OF LAND
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING FOR REFERENCE at 1/2" iron rod found in the existing westerly Right-of-Way (ROW) line of County Road (C.R.) 101
{variable width ROW), being the southeasterly corner of said 5.711 acre tract, same being the northeasterly corner of Lot 1, Rolling
Acres, a subdivision of record in Cabinet G, Slide 123-124 of the Plat Records of Williamson County, Texas, conveyed to Duane B.
Toavs and Diane Toavs by instrument recorded in Document No. 2001055090 and Document No. 2001061976 hoth of the Official
Public Records of Williamson County, Texas;

THENCE, departing said Lot 1, with the common boundary fine of said 5.711 acre tract and said existing westerly ROW line
N 22°13'02" W for a distance of 576.86 feet to an iron rod with aluminum cap stamped *WILCO ROW 5050 set, 59.06 feet left of
proposed Counly Road basellne station 184+13.35, having grid coordinates of N=10,192,698.07, E =3,186,695.45, being the
proposed wasterly ROW line of C.R. 101, for the southerly corner and POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described tract;

1. THENCE, departing said existing westerly ROW line, through the interior of said 5.711 acre tract, with said proposed
westarly ROW line, N 66°42'567" W for a distance of 35.66 feet to an iron rod with aluminum cap stamped *WILCO ROW
5050" set, 84.06 feet left of proposed C.R. 101 baseline station 184+38.79, in the existing southerly ROW line of C.R. 394
(afk/a C.R. 100) (variable width ROW), for the westerly corner of the herein described tract, and from which a 1/2” iron rod
found in said existing southerly ROW line, being the northwesterly corner of the westerly one-half of that called 5.711 acre
tract of land conveyed to Bobby Rue Barron by instrument recorded in Volume 889, Page 48 of the Deed Records of
Williamson County, Texas, bears S 68°47°09" W at a distance of 802.11 feet;

2. THENCE, departing said proposed ROW line, with the existing southerly ROW line of said C.R. 394, same being the
northerly boundary line of said 5.711 acre tract (Tract 1), N 68°47'09” E for a distance of 25.00 fest to the calculated
intersection of said C.R. 394 and said C.R. 101, for the northeasterly corner of the herein described tract;

3. THENCE, departing said existing southerly ROW line of C.R. 394, with said existing westerly ROW line of C.R. 101, same
being the easterly boundary line of said 5.711 acre tract, S 22°13'02" E, for a distance of 25.00 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING, containing 0.007 acres (312 square feet) of land, more or less,

This property description is accompanied by a separate parcel plat.

All bearings recited herein are based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, Central Zone No. 4203, NAD 83.

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §

That |, Lawrence M. Russo, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that the above description is true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that the property described herein was determined by a survey made on the
ground under my direction and supervision.

WITNE__SS MY HAND AND SEAL at Round Rock, Williamson County, Texas.

) s

{ CLad g Ade . ) l\"i) N s NgY u‘?/c)/z-(ﬂf oS

Lavfrence M. Russo | J / Date/ g ZOF
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5050 / 'i ..,.m.., 45’ 7
infand Geodetics, LLC &7 ';: Tep o"iy

YL \._( &0"%0""

“nllunuullla 4

! A"’JIILI:\:E:‘E“M ni:thq-u); j
~45 5050

5o oY, @
XS g{o

' PK..U‘ ‘HJ“

= '.‘t.r\/‘

Firm Registration No: 100591-00
1504 Chisholm Trail Road, Suite 103
Round Rock, TX 78681

S:\_BROWNS&GAY\CR 101\PARCELS\ PARCEL 42-BARRON.doc




EXHIBIT "é"

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY PARCEL DESCRIPTION

N
¢ 1]1[{\"“1} '
P s ! [, 1|{
0 20 40 .1 -.-kf.J*\;"-__'r_?’} MO :
(== —| 1(‘,‘111\1||( 11'.{;&(»'
I" = 40’ ) ;_\f'; ¢

#y

REVY 09/27/16
PAGE 2 OF 3

+

|3

un
o

; i (7 EXTSTING R.O.W.
EXTSTING R, 0.V, Tt ‘5 ’
/7
; §!
D
C.R. 394 o
1A/K/4. C.R. 100) Y-
[R,O.W. WIDTH VARIES) STA. 184+38.79 g'
84.06% LT 5' (R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES
INT1°30735"E  827.11") &-
EXISTING R.0.W. ,|SGS°47 09"W _ 802. 1) %l v
(206. 75 )--/| [ (N71%30" 357 /
413.56") " | EXISTING R.0.W.
l PROPOSED -
R.O. W. |
)
vl\\ 0.007 AC,
al 312 S0. FT. | lg
BOBBIE RUE B!r, JANIE R. BARRON | P.0.B. . | @ n
ARRO e, . R
WESTERLY EASTERLY Vo~ 52711 AC. OR1D COGRD I NATESH %” AN
Y2 5,711 AC, (2.8555 AC.) N=10192698. 07 | ¥ = by
(2.8555 AC.) | DOC. NO. 2000030575 E=3186695, 45 3 Y &
VOL. 889, PG, 48 0.P.R.W.C. T, . - & 5 N\
RW.C.T. JANIE R, BARRON 2 | _ i
| TRTACT ! ° % 7 s .’f S
(5.711 AC.) .| =2 . (T
poc. NO. 2000030575 — )% | ol¥ 3 o«
| o.PRW.C.T. QS [~z [3o o o 6
= .2 o
w afE 0:". 9 2 .
NUMBER DIRECTION D1STANCE oo | S ] Sk
LI N66° 42/ 57" W 35, 66 : pd o € . nay
L2 N68° 47 09"E 25.00° o | N
L3 522° {3’ 02" 25. 00’ T2 | R ?
3 .
-
l =
P.O. R, }
I
- T / —— — —P — —
’ oo | |
aprCELING ACRES . DOC. NO. 2001055090 l
. g-R e DOC. NO. 2001061976
-R.W.C.T. 0.P.R.W.C.T. | ‘
.~ PARCEL PLAT SHOWING PROPERTY OF
INLANDUY &
o
GEODETICS 3 JANIE R, BARRON
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYORS P ARCEL 42

1504 CHISHOLM TRAIL RD. STE, 103

ROUND ROCK, TX. 78681
PH, (512) 236-1200, FAX (512) 236-1251 SCALE ity LRy
FIRM REGISTRATION NO, 100591-00 |v = 40 CR 10l WILL | AMSON

St \*BROWNGAY\CRIOI\PARCELS\PARCEL 42-BARRON\BARRON-42-092716.dgn



__EXHIBIT " A.

REV: 09/27/16
LEGEND PLAT TO ACCOMPANY PARCEL DESCRIPTION e acndle
# FENCE CORNER POST FOUND & ggg;ERTt”ﬁ'EN
i R ER INE
@ '/»" JRON ROD FOUND UNLESS NOTED ¢ ) RECORD |NFORMAT ION
® %" IRON ROD FOUND W/PLASTIC CAP —/~ LINE BREAK
O COTTON GIN SPINDLE FOUND P DENOTES COMMON OWNERSHIP
P.0. B, INT
® !Y,* IRON PIPE FOUND UNLESS NOTED p,8_3_ Eg.HT 8E SEE;QQQQE
X X CUT FOUND N.T.S. NOT TO SCALE
A  60/D NAIL FOUND D.R.W.C.T. DEED RECORDS
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS
A CALCULATED POINT O.R.W.C.T. OFFICIAL RECORDS
O " |RON ROD W/ ALUMINUM CAP WILL)AMSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STAMPED "WILCO-ROW-5050" SET O e R T A L o0
(UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE) B AE 7. BLAT REGORDS
WILL I AMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

1) All bearings shown hereon are based on grld bearing. All dlstonces are surface dlstances. Coordinates are
surfoce values based on the Texas State Plane Coordinote System, NAD 83, Central Zone.

THE SURVEY SHOWN HEREON WAS PREPARED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THAT COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE GF NO. 1622946-GTN,
ISSUED BY TITLE RESQURCES GUARANTY COMPANY, EFFECTIVE DATE JULY 20, 2016, ISSUE DATE JULY 29, 2016,

IOE. EASEMENT TO TEXAS POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 280, PAGE 356, DEED RECORDS OF WILLiAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, FROM ITS DESCRIPTION CANNOT BE LOCATED.

F. EASEMENT 7O JONAH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED iIN VOLUME 563, PAGE 697, DEED RECORDS OF WILL IAMSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, FROM ITS DESCRIPTION CANNOT BE LOCATED.

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE
BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BEL IEF AND THAT THE PROPERTY
SHOWN HEREIN WAS DETERMINED BY A SURVEY MADE ON THE
GRO%ND UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION.

LY

[ -
Uty o OC “‘\’{~"X){\.x e ;fsf*/c’{/ét 1o

\ LéE’JRENCE M. RUSSO | DATE!

SEARAIIFIIRRILR R hRpee Yeads

LAWRENCE M. RUSS 2

\REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 5050 N BOBO (s R

INLAND GEQDET [CS. ~\1c A £ ACQUISITION | 0,007 312
FIRM REGISTRATION NO, (0059)-00 £5819,)

1504 CHISHOLM TRAIL ROAD, SUITE 103 4’0 ”eé».,?; '\_ CALC/DEED AREA | 5. 711 | 248, 77|
ROUND ROCK, TEXAS 7868I h\&ll__}!.‘ﬁ_éfw REMAINDER AREA | 5,704 | 248, 459
PARCEL PLAT SHOWING PROPERTY OF

INLANDUV
ol
GEODETICS 1 JANIE R. BARRON
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYORS
o R ~ RS
PH. (512) 238-1200, FAX (512) 236-1251 SCALE FROSECT it
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 100591-00 I = 40 CR 101 WILL | AMSON

S5 \*BROWN&GAY\CR10I\PARCELS\PARCEL 42-BARRON\BARRON-42-092716.dgn



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Agreement forms for Catering services at Williamson County Expo Center

Submitted For: Randy Bell Submitted By: Randy Bell, Parks

Department: Parks

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding application and indemnification agreement forms for
issuance of event catering permits to support operations of the Williamson County Expo Center, including but not
limited to delegation of signing authority to Parks Department Head or Expo Center General Manager for the
county on approved forms on condition that forms are not changed (any changes to the forms will require
additional commissioners court approval).

Background

These forms are for short term or "event" catering. This is different from the county's concessionaire that was
obtained via an RFP process. The forms obtain necessary administrative details while preserving the county's
discretion to cancel a permit at any time.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments

Application for Catering Permit
Caterers Event Permit Agreement with Indemnification
Williamson County Expo Policy and Procedures Handbook Revised

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 11/02/2016 02:25 PM

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM

Form Started By: Randy Bell Started On: 11/01/2016 04:27 PM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



**x*kx*kSeparate Application Required for Each Caterer’s Event Permit Date — No Automatically
Reoccurring Events******

APPLICATION FOR
WILLIAMSON COUNTY EXPOSITION CENTER
CATERER’S EVENT PERMIT

All applications must be submitted to Expo Center staff at least ten (10)
business days before the event permit date. All applications must be approved
before being scheduled. Please submit the application through the General
Manager, 210 NW Carlos G. Parker Blvd., Taylor, TX 76574 or submit via email to
at expo@wilco.org.

Williamson County can only provide reservations for the space within the
boundaries of the county-owned facility, and such permitted activity must abide by
county policies.

Purpose: The purpose of the caterer’s permit is so that the Expo Center staff can
help ensure caterer’s understanding of County expectations.

Scope: A catering permit will be required for a vendor to bring outside food and/
or beverage (including alcohol) for a scheduled event. The permit will be requested by
the caterer. For legal compliance questions involving food service, please contact the
Williamson County and Cities Health District at (512) 943-3600 for regulations and
requirements.

Alcohol: Alcohol must be provided by an Approved Alcohol Caterer with
adequate liquor liability insurance coverage confirmed and submitted as required below.
The Licensee must provide security for any event serving or selling alcohol. Guests
attending events are never allowed to bring alcohol into the event. "Bring your own
bottle™ is prohibited in all parts of the facility for any event. All alcohol sales and service
must be stopped at a minimum of 30 minutes prior to the scheduled end of the event but
may be shut off sooner if deemed necessary by Expo Center staff, Licensee, law
enforcement or other authorized representative.

If alcohol is to be SERVED or SOLD in any Williamson County Exposition Center
facility for a scheduled event the following requirements must be met:


mailto:expo@wilco.org

e Approved Alcohol Caterer must comply with all Texas Alcoholic Beverage
Commission statues including “Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Temporary Licenses Permit” (Chapter 72 of the State of Texas Alcoholic
Beverage Commission Laws) when applicable.

e Approved Alcohol Caterer must provide certificate of insurance including liquor
liability as described in the insurance section herein.

e Approved Alcohol Caterer must provide security plan to Expo Center Staff for
final approval a minimum of 30 days prior to scheduled event.

Alcohol Insurance: Proof of current comprehensive liquor liability insurance is
required for all events at the Williamson County Exposition Center serving or selling
alcohol. A one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) with a two million dollars ($2,000,000.00)
aggregate comprehensive liquor liability insurance for bodily injury or death is required.
The policy must name, Williamson County as a certificate holder and additionally
insured. The policy must be effective during the times as stated on the Agreement,
including move-in and move-out dates. The policy must list the dates (including move-
in/move-out) and name of the event under description of operations.

Alcohol Signage and Permit: The alcohol caterer is responsible for all signage to
be posted according to the TABC regulations. The caterer must also provide the
Williamson County Exposition Center with a copy of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage
Commission Temporary Licenses Permit before the move in of any alcohol beverages.

Catering Prep and Tables: The caterer will be able to use the catering
preparation area if needed as part of the approved permit. The Williamson County Expo
Center will supply up to four (4) eight (8) foot-long rectangle tables for serving as part of
the approved permit.

Glass Containers: Glass drinking containers are not permitted in any Williamson
County Exposition Center facility or parking lots, with the exception of individual
beverage glasses confined to the Expo Hall rooms only. No glassware of any kind is
allowed in the Arena, Covered Expo, or Parking Lot.



Date of Submission: Event Permit Date:

Organization Planning Event:

Caterer for Event Permit:

Address of Caterer:

Contact Person for Caterer: Phone Number:

Requested Permit:
o Food and Beverage (non-alcohol)
o Food and Beverage (alcohol)
o Beverage (alcohol)

Catering Menu:

Beverage Menu:

Time Caterer’s Permit Starts: Time Caterer’s Permit Ends:

Number of guests to be served: Caterer’s Event Permit Cost:

Cost: Rates for obtaining a catering permit for the Expo Center.

Food and Beverage (non-alcohol)

o 25-150 Guest = $100
151-300 Guest = $200
301-500 Guest = $300
501-750 Guest = $400
751-1000 Guest =$500

o O O O

Beverage (alcohol)

o 25-150 Guest = $100
151-300 Guest = $200
301-500 Guest = $300
501-750 Guest = $400
751-1000 Guest = $500

o O O O

Food and Beverage (alcohol)

o 25-150 Guest = $200
151-300 Guest = $400
301-500 Guest = $600
501-750 Guest = $800
751-1000 Guest = $1000

0 O O O




If a Central Preparation Facility (CPF) is used for any part of the preparation of food for the event
provide the following information:

CPF Name:

Permit #: Permit expiration date

Address:

If the food being sold and/or sampled is produced under a Manufactured Foods Permit issued by
the Texas Department of State Health Services, a copy of that permit must be on site at each event.

All food and drink must be dispensed from a covered or "roofed" serving station. All equipment
used for heating foods must remain covered and opened only as required for service.

Grills or other cooking equipment, placed outside of the covered food prep area, must have a lid
or other durable cover. No food prep or service can be conducted on an uncovered surface or
cooking unit.

List ALL food and drinks to be prepared, cooked, held under temperature control, and/or served
(No part of food preparation or storage my take place in a home/unpermitted facility)

*Please indicate where each step will take place, TFE (on-site) or CPF.

Item Thaw Cut/Wash Cook  Temp Control Reheat Pre-Package

TCS foods requiring hot or cold hold will be transported to ensure proper temperature control
in ice chest(s) with cold packs and thermometer (41°F)
in ice chest(s) with hot pack and thermometer (135°F)

if other, describe:




The following foods will be purchased at an approved facility for preparation on site (circle all that
apply):

Beef Raw / Precooked Purchased from?
Chicken Raw / Precooked Purchased from?
Fish Raw / Precooked Purchased from?

If baked goods are to be sold, where were they prepared or purchased?

Will drinks be served (check one): in cups with ice in original containers

Describe the location and set-up for washing/rinsing/sanitizing of utensils:

| have read and understand the conditions of this permit application.

Applicant / Representative Signature Date

Special Requests:

Reservation Procedures and General Policies:

a) Reservations for Caterer’s Event Permit use of the County Expo facility will be
reviewed on a first come — first served basis.

b) No single group or individual will be given preference or priority so that the Expo
Facility is made available to serve the needs of as many different groups as
possible. Equal access shall be given to all groups and individuals applying, and
no group or individual shall be denied access because of considerations of race,
sex, religious or political persuasion, or because of the political, religious, or social
aims expressed by an individual or group, or by any group’s members.

5



c)

d)

9)

h)

The frequency with which one group may utilize the Expo facility for a Caterer’s
Event Permit is at the discretion of Williamson County.

Williamson County retains the right to refuse requests for use space or to cancel
reservations before or while they are in effect if these policies are not complied
with, or if the space requested is needed for governmental functions. The County
further reserves the right to mandate set-back lines for a designated space usage
and also reserves the right to set reasonable time limits on any permit request.

Williamson County reserves the right to mandate proof of event insurance
coverage, payment of any clean-up costs, adequate security measures, or other
reasonable requirements to protect the public health and safety.

Applicants must sign an indemnification and event permit agreement in exchange
for the permit.

Permission to use the public facility for a Caterer’s Event Permit shall not, in any
way, constitute an endorsement of the group or individual, or their policies and
activities.

1) Williamson County retains the right to amend the requirements and policies for

event use of a county owned facility at any time, or by any group.

For Expo Center Use Only:

Other Caterer’s Event Permits scheduled at same location on date of event: yes/no

If so, what events are scheduled:

1)

2)

1 Approved for the following date(s) and times:

[l Denied based on following:

Date Reviewed:

Authorized County Representative






WILLIAMSON COUNTY EXPOSITION CENTER
INDEMNIFICATION AND CATERER EVENT
PERMIT AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT:

IN EXCHANGE FOR AN EVENT(S) PERMIT, (HEREINAFTER
REFERRED TO AS “APPLICANT”), AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW,
TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS AND HER AGENTS,
REPRESENTATIVES, AND/OR EMPLOYEES HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR OR
ENTITLEMENT TO ANY DAMAGES ARISING FROM CLAIM(S) RELATING TO THE BELOW-
DESCRIBED EVENT(S), INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO OUT-OF-POCKET, SPECIAL,
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF, RESULTING
FROM, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THE EVENT(S) DESCRIBED BELOW AND AS FURTHER
DESCRIBED IN AN APPLICATION FOR USE OF A COUNTY-OWNED FACILITY, SUBMITTED ON
OR ABOUT (DATE) TO WILLIAMSON COUNTY, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS.
APPLICANT EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT IT IS ASSUMING ALL RISK WITH REGARD TO THE
EVENT(S) DESCRIBED BELOW AND SHALL REIMBURSE WILLIAMSON COUNTY FOR ALL
DAMAGES, INCLUDING COURT COSTS AND ATTORNEY’S FEES FOR THE COLLECTION OF
SUCH REIMBURSEMENT, IF NECESSARY.

Williamson County does not waive any sovereign immunity under this agreement.
This agreement is subject to Texas law with venue in Williamson County, Texas.

EVENT DESCRIPTION:

ADDITIONAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS:




Williamson County expressly reserves the right to rescind or revoke an event
permit where it is deemed necessary and will give as much notice as possible in good
faith in the situation that an event permit must be cancelled.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE:

APPLICANT expressly agrees to comply with any and all local, state or federal
requirements, including but not limited to health and safety regulations and compliance
with any applicable city code, state and federal laws.

DUTY TO REPORT PROBLEMS

APPLICANT expressly agrees to inform Williamson County and its
representative(s) of errors, mistakes, potential problems or any other problematic issue(s)
coming under observation during the event and will make good faith efforts to correct
any problems or errors that come to light in a timely and reasonable manner.

NO AGENCY RELATIONSHIP

APPLICANT expressly understands and agrees that APPLICANT shall not in any
sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with Williamson County, nor shall
APPLICANT in any manner hold itself out as an agent or official representative of
Williamson County.

CLEANING UP

APPLICANT expressly agrees it shall keep the premises and surrounding area free
from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under this permit
agreement. At completion of the event, APPLICANT shall remove from and about the
premises: waste materials and all rubbish. 1f APPLICANT fails to clean up as provided,
the cost thereof shall be charged to APPLICANT and all future applications for Caterer
event space will consider the APPLICANT’s compliance with previous permit
agreements in considering whether or not future permits will be granted.

NO ASSIGNMENT
APPLICANT may not assign this permit agreement.

Accepted by and for Williamson County, Texas:

BY:

Authorized Representative



Accepted by and for Applicant:

(Owner or Agent- Printed)

(Date Signed)

BY:

(Signature) (Signature)

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME by

(authorized agent) on this the __ day of , 201 .

Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas



Williamson County Exposition Center

WILLIAMSON COUNTY %
T

w ¥ x m

Facilities Management
Policies and Procedures

Adopted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court on

Page 1 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

PURPOSE OF POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Provide a consistent guideline for Event Holders, Licensees and Users. Provide a safe and quality experience
while using the Williamson County Exposition Center.

PURPOSE OF FEES

Generate revenues to offset the operational costs of the facility and to provide funds for future capital
improvements.

ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES

License and Use fees for Williamson County Exposition Center will be reviewed on an annual basis with
consideration given to:

o the service needs of the community,

¢ the facility target user market,

e competitive and reasonable rental rates and

e operational costs and the need for future capital improvements.
FACILITY

Williamson County Exposition Center:

Parking Lot

Main Arena

Indoor Exposition Hall (North)
Indoor Exposition Hall (South)
Outdoor Covered Exposition Hall
Meeting Room

Conference Room
Catering/Warming Kitchen

GENERAL USAGE POLICY

Williamson County retains control and management of the Williamson County Exposition Center at all times,
and shall have the right at all times to enforce all rules and regulations described hereto; and shall have the
right to eject all persons who fail and/or refuse to comply with the rules and regulations.

Williamson County retains the right to refuse any or all requests for use, or to cancel any and/or all
reservations before or while they are in effect if these policies are not complied with, or if the space or facility
requested is needed for governmental functions.

ACCESS DURING EVENTS

Williamson County Exposition Center employees responsible for management and maintenance of the facility
therefore, shall have the right to access the facility at any time during any event.

ADVERTISING

Licensee shall not hang signs, bunting or other advertising materials anywhere on the premises without prior
approval of Williamson County Exposition Center management. The County does recognize the need for event
holders to display sponsor advertising; therefore, advertising materials and locations will be determined on an
event by event basis.

Page 2 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

EVENT MARKETING

Williamson County Exposition Center employees shall not be responsible for event promotion. The Williamson
County government logo may not be used on any promotional materials without the express written consent of
Williamson County Exposition Center.

EVENT STAFFING

Licensee shall provide all ushers, announcers, ticket takers, clean-up crew and other personnel necessary to
conduct the activities described in the License & Use Agreement.

Williamson County may be able to provide personnel for limited activities.

A Williamson County Exposition Center employee may be on site or on call while the facility is occupied. This
will be determined on an event by event basis and finalized during planning meetings.

FACILITY ALTERATIONS

Licensee may not undertake any plumbing, electrical, telecommunications, carpentry or mechanical work on
any part of the facility without prior written authorization of Williamson County Exposition Center management.
All alterations must be requested in writing and submitted a minimum of 30 days prior to the event.

AGREEMENT FOR USE

A group, individual or business (“Licensee”) using the Williamson County Exposition Center must first obtain
permission from the Williamson County Exposition Center Manager. Agreements for use of the Williamson
County Exposition Center or any part thereof will be issued in printed form. (No verbal agreement for use of the
Williamson County Exposition Center shall be binding upon either party.) Advance payment and proof of
insurance is required at the time of issuance of the Agreement. Agreements will be mailed to Licensee.
Licensee will sign and return to Williamson County Exposition Center with advance payment required and
proof of insurance. The Williamson County Exposition Center Manager shall require the Licensee to provide
information to determine proper management of any event. Agreements will be issued six months in advance
when possible, unless events are booked within six months of event, at which time they will be issued
immediately upon booking.

BOOKING

All one day non-repeating events may book up to nine months prior to the event date and must book outside of
one month. All repeating and multi-day events may book up to two years in advance of dates at one time and
outside of one month.

FLOOR/AREA PLANS
Licensee shall submit floor / area plans to facility management at least 30 days in advance of event. The plan
should include decorations, dimensions of all aisles, booths, table and chair locations, parking areas, loading

and unloading areas, etc. Facility management will work with each Licensee on specific needs and
requirements to ensure compliance with fire safety standards and facility requirements.

HOURS OF OPERATION

Sunday - Thursday 8:00AM-11:00PM
Friday and Saturday 8:00AM-12:00AM

Events must end in accordance with their contracted end time. The Licensee will forfeit one-half of their deposit
if the finish time is exceeded by more than thirty minutes.

Page 3 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

MOVE IN-MOVE OUT

Move-in/Move-out days occur Monday-Friday 8am-5pm. Additional hours outside of 8am-5pm on a move-
in/out day will be subject to $75/hour fee. Move-in/out days requested outside of M-F are subject to a greater
rate not to exceed a full rental rate.

DEPOSIT

A deposit of $500 is payable at the time the space is reserved. "Tentative" holds for dates are not allowed. The
deposit reserves the date, and will cover any damage or insufficient clean-up resulting from the event. If no
damages are incurred and clean-up is satisfactorily completed, the deposit will be transferred to reserve the
facility for the next calendar year or refunded approximately 45 days after the event. An updated address is
required for timely deposit returns.

Payment

One Day Event-100% of the contracted Williamson County Exposition Center rental fees including furniture,
equipment and services are due 30 days before the day of the rental.

Multiple Day Event-The balance of the rental fees plus the furniture, equipment and service fees are due within
10 business days from the time of invoice. The invoice will include facility rental, equipment, furniture and
service fees.

CANCELLATIONS

In order to receive a deposit refund less $100 cancellation fee, notice must be given 60 days before the event.
Cancellation inside of 60 days from the event will forfeit the entire deposit. The Licensee will forfeit all of their
contracted fees if cancellation is received less than 30 days before the time of occupancy. Williamson County
Exposition Center reserves the right to cancel any event that has not met all criteria outlined in Williamson County
Exposition Center Policies. Licensee will forfeit deposit and any fees for cancellation of an event due to failure
to comply with these policies.

SUB-LEASING
Sub-Leasing is not available. If sub-leasing is reported, Licensee Agreement will be immediately terminated.
CREDIT CARD POLICY

Williamson County accepts payment by Visa, Discover and MasterCard only. Per Local Government Code we
assess a (2.19%) fee to each transaction

BAD CHECK POLICY

Any checks returned by the bank for any reason will be turned over to the County Attorney’s office for
prosecution, unless immediate and adequate payment is arranged with the approval of management. NSF (not
sufficient funds) checks will be charged an additional $30 fee.

KEY DISTRIBUTION

Facility key distribution will be arranged during event planning meetings. Loss of keys may result in the
expense on the Licensees part to re-key the facility.

Page 4 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS- Comprehensive Public Liability Insurance

Proof of current comprehensive public liability insurance is required for all events at the Williamson County
Exposition Center. A one million dollar ($1,000,000) with a two million dollar ($2,000,000) aggregate public
liability insurance for bodily injury or death is required. The policy must name the, Williamson County
Exposition Center as a certificate holder and additional insured. The policy must be effective during the times
as stated on the Agreement, including move-in and move-out dates. The policy must list the dates (including
move-in/move-out) and name of the event under description of operations

CLEANING

Contracted areas should be left in the state that they were found. General cleaning is the responsibility of the
Licensee in all areas after an event. If the Licensee fails to complete clean-up the event holder risk losing
deposit. For larger events and events open to the public, Williamson County Exposition Center management
may require the delivery of a roll off dumpster for the event. The Williamson County Exposition Center is not
responsible for any items left in the building after an event.

FREIGHT

Any freight delivered before an event must be approved by the Williamson County Exposition Center
management. Any freight left after an event move out date or time will be charged a fee of $100 per day.
Deliveries for event coordinators may be accepted by Williamson County employees with prior approval by
facility management.

FIRST AID

Licensee may be required to provide, at Williamson County Exposition Center management's discretion,
certified first aid personnel during the term. Licensee assumes total responsibility for the qualifications and
actions of these first aid personnel. Any accidents or incidents requiring first aid treatment must have a written
report and a copy filed with Williamson County Exposition Center management office by the close of the event
each day.

FOG AND SMOKE MACHINES
Use of fog or smoke machines is restricted to outside only. Inside use is prohibited
SECURITY

Uniformed officers, commissioned by a government organization, are required at all events having alcohol and
any event having over 500 guests or at the discretion of the Williamson County Exposition management.
Officers are scheduled by Licensee and must be paid individually by Licensee at the commencement of the
event.

Any event lasting longer than six hours may be required to have an additional uniformed officer.
ALCOHOL POLICY

Alcohol must be provided by an Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire with adequate liquor liability
insurance coverage confirmed and submitted as required below. The Licensee must provide security for any
event serving or selling alcohol. Guests attending events are never allowed to bring alcohol into the event.
"Bring your own bottle" is prohibited in all parts of the facility for any event. The Approved Alcohol Vendor/
Concessionaire will be charged a percentage of the gross sales. All alcohol will be shut off at a minimum of 30
minutes prior to the scheduled end of the event but may be shut off sooner if deemed necessary.

Page 5 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES
Alcohol is strictly prohibited at the Williamson County Exposition Center unless the following criteria are met:

1. Alcohol consumption must be outlined in the License and Use Agreement and details determined (such as
location, time and security plan) during planning meetings with facility management.

If alcohol is to be consumed on the premises of the Williamson County Exposition Center, Licensee is required
to obtain the services of an Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire with current liquor liability insurance
coverage and liquor license for the facility being used. Licensee will need to schedule at least 30 days in
advance with the facility manager.

2. If alcohol is to be SOLD in any Williamson County Exposition Center facility including the Exposition Center,
Exposition Hall, Arena or Covered Expo the following requirements must be met:

e Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire must obtain a “Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Temporary Licenses Permit” (Chapter 72 of the State of Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission Laws)

e Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire must provide certificate of insurance including liquor liability
as described in the insurance section herein.

o Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire must provide security plan to facility management for final
approval a minimum of 30 days prior to scheduled event.

3. If alcohol is to be SERVED, or otherwise made available in any Williamson County Exposition Center facility
including the Exposition Center, Exposition Hall, Arena or Covered Expo the following requirements must be
met:

e Licensee is required to obtain the services of an Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire with current
liquor liability insurance coverage and liquor license for the facility being used. Licensee will need to
schedule at least 30 days in advance with the facility manager.

e Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire must obtain a “Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
Temporary Licenses Permit” (Chapter 72 of the State of Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission Laws)

e Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire must provide certificate of insurance including liquor liability
as described in the insurance section herein.

e Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire and the Licensee must provide security plan to facility
management for final approval a minimum of 30 days prior to scheduled event.

4. If the Licensee fails to disclose that alcohol is to be sold, served or otherwise made available as described in
numbers 1 through 3 above, the Licensee, participants, spectators and anyone else involved with the event are
subject to removal, citation or arrest at the discretion of the Williamson County Sheriff’'s Office.

5. ARENA AREA:

No Bring Your Own Bottle (“BYOB”) events in the arena.

Alcohol sale and service will be permitted by an Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire.
All TABC rules will be followed.

No glass of any kind in the Arena.

No alcohol may leave the designated arena area.

6. Expo Hall AREA:

e Alcohol SALES will be permitted by an Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire only.
All TABC rules will be followed.

e Alcohol SERVICE will be permitted with limitations. Only the Approved Alcohol Vendor/ Concessionaire
may provide this service and will abide by the same security rules stated above.

e No Bring Your Own Bottle (“BYOB”) events in the Expo Hall Areas.

¢ No alcohol may leave the designated room the Lessee has retained.

Page 6 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

COOKING
Cooking on the premises is allowed only by approval of the Williamson County Exposition Center Manager.
CATERING

The Williamson County Exposition Center does require a Williamson County Exposition Center Caterer’s Event
Permit for a vendor to bring outside food and/ or beverage (including alcohol) for a scheduled event.

CONCESSIONS

All concessions are provided exclusively by the approved year-round Concessionaire for the Williamson
County Exposition Center.

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

Any donations or sponsorships (including food/beverage items) must be discussed with Williamson County
Exposition Center management prior to signing Agreement.

DECORATIONS

The Licensee is responsible for their own safety and the safety of those associated with their event during the
installation, display and removal of all decorations. Decorations causing damage to floors, walls or other
structure are not permitted. This includes the use of tape, tacks, nails or staples. Throwing rice, confetti, glitter
or flower petals and the use of sparklers or balloons are not allowed on the grounds or in our facility. All
decorations hung from ceilings or that require the use of equipment must be done by Williamson County
Exposition Center staff and be delivered no less than 72 hours prior to the event with instruction on where to
place. Decorations hung by staff are subject to a decoration fee.

CANDLES AND OPEN FLAMES

Per the International Fire Code Section 308.3, open flames on candles may be used only for a unity candle in
religious ceremonies and enclosed tea light candles on table tops. Any other open flame will be allowed at the
discretion of the facility manager and must comply with Section 308.3. No pyrotechnics inside.

ELECTRICAL

The Licensee may use up to 25 amps of 110-volt electricity. Events requiring special arrangements must
provide a detailed layout of the electrical needs to the Williamson County Exposition Center office 30 days prior
to the event and will be charged for additional electricity.

AUTOMOBILES

Automobiles will not be allowed in the Williamson County Exposition Center Exposition Hall without written
authorization at least two weeks prior to the event. All fire regulations must be strictly followed when an
automobile is used for display purposes. Protective material must be used to cover the floor area at the display
point. Non-emergency vehicles must have the batteries disconnected, keys removed and contain less than one
gallon of fuel.

EXIT DOORS AND FIRE CODE

A 10’ clearance on both sides of the exit doors, (egress and ingress) with no physical obstruction, must be
maintained at all times. No lighted exit sign or accompanying door can be blocked or locked during an event.

Page 7 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

All discrepancies arising out of fire code issues will be decided upon by the Williamson County Exposition
Center management.

ANIMALS

Licensees utilizing a Williamson County facility for any activity, in which animals are used or exhibited, shall
comply fully with all applicable government agency statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and/or order
applicable to the humane care and treatment of animals.

Licensee assumes the full responsibility to meet and satisfy all applicable ordinances, laws, rules, regulations,
and/or orders as they relate to the needs and rights of those animals, which are under the Licensee’s care and
control.

All animals must be penned, stalled and otherwise confined or under the direct control of owner or handler at
all times. Persons keeping animals on the premises must use every care to ensure safety of visitors and other
facility patrons/personnel. Violation of this policy may result in removal of animals from the premises or Animal
Control may be called. Animals and pets are not permitted in several Williamson County facility, refer to
specific facility information; service dogs are the exception.

As required by Texas Animal Health Commission, negative Coggins Test certificate must be required for all
equines brought into the facility. All other animals must comply with state mandated regulations from the Texas
Animal Health Commission.

ANIMAL BEDDING

There will be no outside bedding allowed at the Williamson County Exposition Center. Bedding may be
purchased from the Williamson County Exposition Center for the purpose of bedding stalls or animal pens.

GENERAL COMPLIANCE

Licensee agrees to comply with all applicable governmental agencies, ordinances and statutes. Licensee
assumes full responsibility for payment of all sales, use, assessments and/or fees in compliance with
Williamson County and the State of Texas.

Licensee must comply with any and all local, state or federal requirements, including but not limited to health
and safety regulations and compliance with any applicable city code, state and federal laws. Additionally,
Licensee shall comply with all posted rules within the Expo facility, and must act in good faith and cooperate
with Williamson County.

GLASS CONTAINERS

Glass drinking containers are not permitted in any Williamson County Exposition Center facility or parking lots,
with the exception of individual beverage glasses confined to the Expo Hall rooms only. No glassware of any
kind is allowed in the Arena, Covered Expo, or Parking Lot.

OPEN CARRYING OF FIREARMS
The carrying of firearms is pursuant to current Texas Statutes.

GUNS AND GUN SHOW POLICY

Only authorized permit holders or licensed peace officers or individual licensed under article 2.122 of the
Texas Code of Criminal Procedure may bring or carry firearms into the Williamson County Expo Center.
Exhibitors displaying approved firearms must comply with all federal, state and local laws governing the
possession and/or sale of such.

Page 8 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

Presumptively, firearms may not be loaded or fired in the interior or exterior of the center, including parking
areas.

Non-permitted or non-authorized individuals obtaining a firearm or handgun must leave the premises
immediately upon exiting the gun show. Trigger mechanisms must be secured with tie wraps or similar
devices. This policy does not apply to licensed peace officers or individual licensed under article 2.122 of the
Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.

FLAMMABLE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Flammable liquids or materials under high pressure are prohibited inside the Williamson County Exposition
Center. This includes, but is not limited to: gasoline, kerosene and propane.

HAZARDOUS WASTE

The Licensee agrees, at all times Licensee is on Williamson County property, not to have in its possession,
collect, distribute, dispose, release or otherwise discharge any toxic or hazardous waste as defined by
Williamson County and/ or any applicable laws. In the event the Licensee shall be in possession of such
hazardous or toxic waste, the Licensee shall immediately notify facility management and the Texas
Commission of Environmental Protection as well as the Federal Environmental Protection Agency and such
other governmental agency or body as may be required by law, relative to such materials.

Additionally, Licensee agrees not to dispose of any refuse or empty any fluids on Williamson County property.
In the event the Licensee, or its agents, vendors, sub licensees, concessionaires or employees dump grease in
the facility sewer system, or at locations not authorized by facility management, or shall otherwise violate the
provisions of this paragraph, Williamson County Exposition Center management will look to the Licensee and
shall subject the Licensee to possible fine or penalties, plus any costs incurred by County. Such fine or
penalties shall be imposed by facility management for each infraction and Licensee shall be deemed in
material breach of the License and Use Agreement and/or subject to immediate termination of the Agreement
and removal from the property.

HEALTH PERMITS REQUIREMENTS

When an event involves a temporary food service operation or food demonstration, the Licensee is responsible
for complying with all State Health Department guidelines. The County Health Officer can issue a temporary
food service certificate for such events.

INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Licensee shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers,
agents, employees and insurers from and against all claims, damages, losses, expenses and demands,
including court costs, attorney’s fees and expenses, due to injuries, losses or damages arising out of, resulting
from, or in any manner connected with the Licensee’s event, pursuant to the License and Use Agreement, if
any such injury, loss or damage is caused in whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in part
by, the act, omission, error, mistake negligence, other fault of Licensee, any officer, employee, representative
or agent of the Licensee, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Licensee, or anyone for whose acts the
Licensee may be liable; provided, however, that except for worker’s or workmen’s compensation, disability
benefits or other similar employee benefit claims, Licensee is not obligated to indemnify the County hereunder
for that portion of any claims, damages, losses, demands and expenses arising out of or resulting from any
grossly negligent act or omission of the County, or its officers, agents or employees.

Licensee’s indemnification obligation hereunder shall not be construed to negate, abridge or otherwise reduce
any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person described in
this section.

Page 9 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

With respect to any and all claims against the County or any of their officers, employees or agents by any
employee of Licensee or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Licensee, or anyone for whose acts
Licensee may be liable, the indemnification obligation described above shall not be limited in any way by any
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Licensee, under
worker’s or workmen’s compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

WARNING: UNDER TEXAS LAW (TEX.CIV.PRAC.&REM.CODE#87.003) A “PERSON, INCLUDING A
FARM ANIMAL ACTIVITY SPONSOR, FARM ANIMAL PROFESSIONAL, LIVESTOCK PRODUCER,
LIVESTOCK SHOW PARTICIPANT OR LIVESTOCK SHOW SPONSOR, IS NOT LIABLE FOR PROPERTY
DAMAGE OR DAMAGES ARISING FROM PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH OF A PARTICIPANT IN A
FARM ANIMALS ACTIVITY OR LIVESTOCK SHOW. IF THE PROPERTY DAMAGE, INJURY OR DEATH
RESULTS FROM THE DANGER OR CONDITIONS THAT ARE AN INHERIT RISK OF A FARM ANIMAL
ACTIVITY OR THE SHOWING OF AN ANIMAL ON A COMPETATIVE BASIS IN A LIVESTOCK SHOW”.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Licensee will assume all costs, expenses and damages arising from the use of patented, trademarked,
franchised or copyrighted music, materials, devices, processes or dramatic rights used at or incorporated in the
event. Licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Williamson County, its officers, agents and employees
harmless from any claims or costs, including legal fees, which might arise from use of any such material. The
Williamson County government logo may not be used on any promotional material without the express written
consent of Williamson County Commissioners Court.

LIABILITY AND LIMITATIONS OF PARKING

Williamson County shall not be responsible for fire, theft, damage to or loss of vehicles or articles left therein
parked on County property. Licensee is responsible for requesting designated parking. Guests of the
Williamson County Exposition Center who park in any non-designated area do so at their own risk and may be
ticketed or towed at their own expense.

LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITIES

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Williamson County will not be liable for any indirect, incidental,
special, consequential damages or damages resulting from the use of the Williamson County Exposition
Center, however arising, including failure of voice or data lines, even if Williamson County has been advised of
the possibility of such damages. Williamson County liability will in no event exceed the amount received under
this agreement for damages arising out of, relating to, or in any way connected with the License and Use
Agreement. Users of Williamson County Exposition Center are advised to procure event cancellation
insurance.

Williamson County will not assume liability for cancellation due to emergencies or unforeseen circumstances.
Recovery under such circumstances shall be limited to the amount of rental fees paid under the License and
Use Agreement.

LOST OR STOLEN ITEMS

Williamson County shall not be responsible, under any circumstances, for property of the Licensee while on the
Williamson County Exposition Center premises. Williamson County Exposition Center management will accept
lost and found articles for distribution during normal business hours.

In addition, Williamson County Exposition Center management is not responsible for any loss of articles or
equipment left unattended in any facility. The usage of security personnel when such equipment or articles are
left in buildings or in a County facility shall be the responsibility of the Licensee. All articles, equipment,
exhibits, displays or materials shall be brought into the facility only at such hours as designated by the License
and Use Agreement. Licensee assumes all responsibility for any goods or materials which may be placed in
County’s storage before, during, or after an event.

Page 10 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

USE OF COUNTY EQUIPMENT PROHIBITED

Without prior coordination and agreement of facility management, Licensees shall not operate motorized
County-owned equipment. Additionally, Licensee shall not dispose of in any manner equipment or materials
owned by Williamson County government.

USE RESTRICTIONS

Williamson County government and/or Williamson County Exposition Center management may refuse event
bookings when it is their opinion that the event may cause undue or unusual damage to the facility or that may
violate local, state or federal laws, rules or regulations.

Williamson County government and/or Williamson County Exposition Center Management may refuse event
bookings when it is their opinion that the event may cause a negative opinion of the County.

Williamson County government and/or Williamson County Exposition Center management may refuse event
bookings when it is their opinion that a requested event conflicts with a similar event previously scheduled on
the premises. Once a License and Use Agreement has been signed and executed and deposit has been paid
in full to the County, the County may, in its sole discretion, agree not to schedule a like event on any part of the
grounds during the same period of time as that scheduled by the Licensee.

The Williamson County Exposition Center management reserves the right to refuse any individual or group the
privilege of using the facility due to abuse of any facility policy, including but not limited to:

a) Past violations of the facility License and Use Agreement and/or policies

b) Past disregard for persons or property while using the facility

c¢) Past conduct which is deemed to be of an inappropriate manner

d) Failure to make full payment for any and all charges connected with Licensee’s use of the facility
EQUALITY

Licensees shall not discriminate against any person or persons in connection with admission, services or
privileges offered to or enjoyed by the general public because of race, creed, ancestry, sexual orientation,
disability, color, sex, marital status, age, religion or national origin.

PARKING LOTS AND ROADWAYS

Multiple events may be conducted simultaneously at Williamson County Exposition Center. It is the Licensee’s
responsibility to coordinate with facility management on parking area assignments. Fire lanes must be kept
open for police, fire, ambulance and other emergency units as well as for County maintenance workers.
Parking lots are subject to availability.

PHOTOS

Williamson County Exposition Center management may take photos of public events held at Williamson
County Exposition Center. These photos shall be the property of Williamson County and may be used by
Williamson County Exposition Center management for educational or promotional materials.

HELIUM BALLOONS

Helium balloons may not be distributed or sold inside the facility. With prior approval of the facility
management, helium balloons may be used as decoration when they are permanently attached to other
furniture or a display. If helium balloons are released for any reason in the facility, a charge for the removal of
the balloons will be assessed to the Licensee.

Page 11 of 12



Williamson County Exposition Center

RV PARKING

Any event camping or having RV usage at the Williamson County Exposition Center shall use designated area.

Williamson County Exposition Center management will work with Licensee to determine location, additional
fees and number of spaces allocated.

Page 12 of 12



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Unallocated Funds Policy and Process

Submitted By: Tara Raymore, Human Resources

Department: Human Resources

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving changes to the un-allocated funds policies and
procedures.

Background

The management of unallocated funds has many challenges that may be resolved with changes to the policies and
procedures.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 10/27/2016 12:58 PM

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 10/27/2016 02:52 PM

Form Started By: Tara Raymore Started On: 10/27/2016 11:05 AM

Final Approval Date: 10/27/2016



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

P/T Juvenile Supervision Officer Positions for Juvenile Services

Submitted By: John Pelczar, Juvenile Services

Department: Juvenile Services

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving four part-time Juvenile Supervision Officer positions in
Juvenile Services, funded by JJAEP Tier Il funds, entity 0571.

Background

Juvenile Services is requesting approval for four part-time JSO positions. These positions will be funded using
existing JJAEP Tier Il funds. The department receives Tier |l funds from the Texas Juvenile Justice Department,
Grant P, for any youth mandatorily expelled to the JJAEP and must be used for the ongoing operation of a JJAEP
program. If approved, these four positions will provide additional support and supervision to youth attending the
JJAEP. Approval of these positions will not impact the county budget. Additionally, while the department's JSO
turnover rate is lower than the statewide average, it is still higher than the department would like. Approval of these
part-time positions would help provide coverage when there are vacant positions. This would also allow the
department the opportunity to observe their work and offer full-time positions to those who prove to be a good fit
with the organizational culture when there is a vacancy, reducing the time needed to fill vacant positions.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 11:04 AM
Form Started By: John Pelczar Started On: 11/03/2016 09:17 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22,
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

DPS Lab Analyst contract renewal

Submitted By: Peggy Braun, Sheriff

Department: Sheriff

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a contract with the Texas Department of Public Safety for two (2)
full time equivalents (FTEs) as Forensic Scientists.

Background

The Crime Laboratory Service of the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) shall provide controlled substances,
marijuana, and blood alcohol analysis of evidence submitted by Law Enforcement agencies within Williamson
County. DPS shall in its discretion assign the services of two (2) full time equivalents (FTEs) as Forensic Scientists
to perform analysis in association with this contract. FISCAL IMPACT: The attached contract is a renewal. In fiscal
year 15/16, $133,292.43 was spent on this contract. For FY 16/17 the contract amount is $141,625.14.
$140,000.00 was requested in the FY 16/17 budget, however $133,292.43 was approved leaving a deficit of
$8,332.71. This amount will need to be provided to meet the financial terms of this renewal.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
DPS Lab Contract

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Peggy Braun Started On: 11/02/2016 10:47 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT (“Contract”) is entered into between the Agencies shown
below as Contracting Parties, pursuant to the authority granted and in compliance with the provisions of
the Interlocal Cooperation Act, “Chapter 791” of the Texas Government Code.

L

I1.

1.

Iv.

CONTRACTING PARTIES:

The Receiving Agency: Williamson County

The Performing Agency: Texas Department of Public Safety

STATEMENT OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED:

The Crime Laboratory Service of the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) shall provide
controlled substances, marijuana and blood alcohol analysis of evidence submitted by Law
Enforcement agencies within Williamson County. DPS shall in its discretion assign the services
of two (2) full time equivalents (FTEs) as Forensic Scientists to perform analysis in association
with this Contract. The FTEs shall be employees of DPS. DPS shall attempt to provide a thirty
(30) calendar day or less turn-around time, from the date of submission to the DPS Laboratory,
for controlled substance cases and ten (10) calendar days or less turn-around time for blood
alcohol cases. The assigned DPS FTEs shall work on Williamson County cases awaiting
analysis before examining evidence from other agencies, as long as this Contract is in place.
DPS shall in its discretion assign the FTEs other work if there are no services required under this
Contract within the parameters of DPS Crime Laboratory policies and procedures.

BASIS FOR CALCULATING REIMBURSABLE COSTS:

See the attached schedule, incorporated in Exhibit A, which reflects DPS’ costs associated with
this Contract. ‘

CONTRACT AMOUNT:

The total amount of this Contract will not exceed $141,625.14.

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES:

The Receiving Agency shall remit to the Performing Agency via interagency transaction voucher

all DPS costs for performing the services as identified in Exhibit A for each FTE assigned to this
Contract.

TXDPS Contract No. 405-LES-17-0002 and LES201709140946
Page 1 of §




VL

VIL

The Receiving Agency shall pay for services received from appropriation items or accounts of
the Receiving Agency from which like expenditures would normally be paid, based on vouchers
drawn by the Receiving Agency payable to Performing Agency.

The Performing Agency shall submit monthly invoices to the Receiving Agency. The
Performing Agency shall also submit an invoice upon the effective date of this Contract for the
payment of operating and equipment costs and administrative costs for each year that this
Contract is in effect. The Receiving Agency shall remit payment to the Performing Agency no
later than thirty (30) calendar days after the Receiving Agency’s receipt of the invoice.

Payments received by the Performing Agency will be credited to its current appropriation item(s)
or account(s) from which the expenditures of that character were originally made.

TERMS OF CONTRACT:

This Contract is to begin on October 1, 2016, and will terminate on September 31, 2017 and may
be renewed on an annual basis upon written agreement of the Parties.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

A. Termination for Convenience: Either Party may cancel this Contract for any reason upon
thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the other Party. In the event of such termination,
only the amounts due to the Performing Agency for services provided up to and including the
date of termination will be due and payable. In no event will termination under this section
by either Party give rise to any liability whatsoever on the part of the terminating Party.

B. Termination for Cause: If either Party commits an Event of Breach (a breach of any of the
covenants, terms, and/or conditions of this Contract), the non-breaching Party shall deliver
written notice of such Event of Breach to the breaching Party. Such notice will specify the
nature of the Event of Breach and inform the breaching Party that unless the Event of Breach
is cured within ten (10) business days of receipt of the notice, additional steps may be taken
to terminate this Contract. If the breaching Party begins a good faith attempt to cure the
Event of Breach within ten (10) business days, then and in that instance, the ten (10) business
day period may be extended by the non-breaching Party, so long as the breaching Party
continues to pursue a cure diligently to completion and continues to make a good faith
attempt to cure the Event of Breach. If, in the opinion of the non-breaching Party, the
breaching Party does not cure the breach within ten (10) business days or otherwise fails to
make any diligent attempt to correct the Event of Breach, the breaching Party shall be
deemed to be in breach and the non-breaching Party may, in addition to seeking the remedies
available hereunder and under the law, terminate this Contract.

C. Dispute Resolution: The Parties shall use the dispute resolution process provided in Chapter
2260 of the Texas Government Code to resolve any disputes under this Contract.

D. Funding Out: The Performing Agency is a state agency whose authority and appropriations
are subject to the actions of the Texas Legislature and the United States Congress. If the

TXDPS Contract No. 405-LES-17-0002 and LES201709140946
Page 2 of §




Performing Agency and/or the subject matter of this Contract become subject to a legislative
or regulatory change, the revocation of statutory or regulatory authority, or lack of
appropriated funds which would render the performance to be provided under this Contract
impossible, unnecessary, void, or substantially amended, the Performing Agency may
immediately terminate this Contract without penalty to, or any liability whatsoever on the
part of the Performing Agency, the State of Texas, and the United States. Termination under
this section is immediate.

The Receiving Agency is a political subdivision of the State of Texas whose authority and
appropriations are subject to the actions of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. If
the Receiving Agency and/or the subject matter of this Contract become subject to a lack of
appropriated funds which would render the performance to be provided under this Contract
impossible, unnecessary, void, or substantially amended, the Receiving Agency may
immediately terminate this Contract without penalty to, or any liability whatsoever on the
part of the Receiving Agency and such termination will be immediate.

. No Joint Enterprise: The provisions of this Contract are not intended to create, nor will they
be in any way construed to create a joint venture, a partnership, or to create the relationships
of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for the
Parties whatsoever with respect to the Parties’ indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations.

. Non-Incorporation:  Subject to the extent authorized by Texas law applicable to
governmental entities, including but not limited to the Texas Constitution, the Texas
Government Code, and the Texas Local Government Code, this Contract constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties with regard to the matters made the subject of this
Contract. There are no verbal representations, inducements, agreements, or understandings
between the Parties other than those specifically set forth herein.

. Amendments: No modifications, amendments or supplements to, or waivers of, any
- provision of this Contract will be valid unless made in writing and signed by both Parties to
this Contract.

. Force Majeure: Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any default or delay in the
performance of its obligations under this Contract caused by force majeure, provided the
Party seeking to be excused has prudently and promptly acted to take any and all reasonable
corrective measures that are within the Party’s control. Force majeure is defined as those
causes beyond the control of the Party required to perform that are generally recognized
under Texas law as a force majeure event, such as acts of God, unusual weather conditions,
fire, riots, sabotage, acts of domestic or foreign terrorism, or any other cause beyond the
reasonable control of such Party.

Governing Law and Venue: This Contract will be construed under and in accordance with
the laws of the State of Texas. Except as otherwise provided by Chapter 2260 of the Texas
Government Code, venue for any litigation between the Parties will be Travis County, Texas.

TXDPS Contract No. 405-LES-17-0002 and LES201709140946
Page 3 of 5




J. Severability: If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal
in any respect, such provision will be fully severable, and the remainder of this Contract will
remain valid and in full force and effect.

K. Notice: Any notice required or permitted under this Contract will be in writing and will be
directed to the Parties as designated below and will be deemed given: (1) when delivered in
hand and a receipt granted; (2) when received if sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested; (3) upon three business days after deposit in the United States mail; or (4) when
received if sent by confirmed facsimile or confirmed email:

If to the Performing Agency:

Texas Department of Public Safety

Law Enforcement Support, Crime Laboratory Service
Attn: Brady Mills

5800 Guadalupe

Austin, Texas 78752

Telephone: (512) 424-7151

Email: Brady.Mills@dps.texas.gov

If to the Receiving Agency:

Williamson County Sheriff’s Office
Attn: Kurt Showalter

508 S. Rock

Georgetown, Texas 78626

(512) 943-1359
kshowalter@wilco.org

With a copy to:

General Counsel,

Office Of Williamson County Judge,
710 Main Street, Suite 200,
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Either of the Parties may change its address or designated individual(s) to receive notices by
giving the other Party written notice as provided herein, specifying the new address and/or
individual and the date upon which it will become effective.

THE UNDERSIGNED CONTRACTING PARTIES do hereby certify that, (1) each Party paying for the
performance of governmental functions or services shall make those payments from current revenues
available to the paying Party; (2) this Contract is authorized by the governing body of the Parties; and
(3) each has the authority to enter into this Contract.

TXDPS Contract No. 405-LES-17-0002 and LES201709140946
Page 4 of 5




The RECEIVING AGENCY further certifies that it has the authority to contract for the above services
by authority granted in Section 791.001 and 791.025(b)-(c) of the Government Code.

The PERFORMING AGENCY further certifies that it has authority to perform the services contracted
for by authority granted in Section 411.009 of the Government Code.

RECEIVING AGENCY: PERFORMING AGENCY:
Williamson County Texas Department of Public Safety
By: By: %W
Authorized Signature /" Rébert J. Bodisch, Sr.
Title: Title: Deputy Director, Homeland Security and Services
Date: Date: /0 7 ; '%
GO

TXDPS Contract No. 405-LES-17-0002 and LES201709140946
Page 5 of 5




ATTACHMENT A

ESTIMATED SALARY AND BENEFITS FOR TWO (2) POSITIONS

year 3 (10/1/16 -

09/30/17)
FS It

Forensic Scientist Il salaries $98,979.12
Benefits @ 29% of salary $28,703.94
TOTAL SALARY AND BENEFITS $127,683.06
Estimated travel costs $500.00
Operating and equipment expense $10,000.00
Administrative costs (2.5%) $3,442.08

Total $141,625.14

|
|
|
|
|
|
1
|
|



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement for County Sheriff

Submitted By: Starla Hall, Sheriff

Department: Sheriff

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of Vehicle Reimbursement
Agreement with Celebration Church (annual renewal for traffic control and security during various church services).

Background
This agreement gives permission for Celebration Church to contract County Deputies in a private capacity.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Celebration Church

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/01/2016 04:58 PM
Form Started By: Starla Hall Started On: 11/01/2016 09:21 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/01/2016



STATE OF TEXAS § VEHICLE REIMBURSEMENT
§ AGREEMENT WITH

§ NON-GOVERNMENTAL

§ ORGANIZATION

§ REGARDING OFF-DUTY

§

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON CONTRACTING OF COUNTY DEPUTIES

This Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement with Non-Governmental Organization
Regarding Off-Duty Contracting of County Deputies (hereinafter, the “AGREEMENT”)
is entered into by and between the company/organization set forth on the signature page
below (hereinafter, “NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION”) in the State of
Texas, and Williamson County, Texas (hereinafter, “COUNTY™) a political subdivision
of the State of Texas, and the Williamson County Law Enforcement Agency set forth on
the signature page below (hereinafter, “LEA”).

For and in consideration of the permission given by COUNTY for the NON-
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION to contract in a private capacity DEPUTIES of
the LEA (hereinafter “DEPUTIES”), while DEPUTIES are not on duty with and for the
COUNTY, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1. It is mutually agreed that while the DEPUTIES are working for the NON-
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION, the DEPUTIES’ primary responsibility
is the enforcement of Federal and State laws and COUNTY Ordinances or
Regulations to protect life and property and to keep the peace. The DEPUTIES
are not allowed to enforce NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION policies
or rules. DEPUTIES are at all times subject to the rules and policies of the LEA.
NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION expressly acknowledges and
agrees that such DEPUTIES are at all times independent contractors of the
NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION when contracted by the NON-
GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION.

2. It is understood by the NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION that the
COUNTY shall retain the right to withdraw at any time its permission for the
DEPUTIES to work in a private capacity (including the right to terminate
this agreement at any time). If the permission of the COUNTY is withdrawn,
the NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION agrees to terminate its
contracting relationships with DEPUTIES. The NON-GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANIZATION, as part of this AGREEMENT, binds itself to release and hold
harmless the COUNTY from any liability or claim for damages in the event such
permission is withdrawn by the COUNTY.

3. Prior to the beginning of DEPUTIES contracting with the NON-
GOVERNMENTAL  ORGANIZATION, the NON-GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANIZATION shall obtain a comprehensive general liability insurance policy

1



from a company authorized to do business in the State of Texas with minimum
amounts of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) per occurrence for property damage,
One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) per person, and Three Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($300,000) per occurrence for personal injury. COUNTY
SHALL BE NAMED AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED UNDER THIS COVERAGE.

4. The term of this AGREEMENT shall begin on the ol |
20 \b and shall terminate on September 30, 20\ ). Any extension of thls
AGREEMENT must be set forth in writing and signed by both parties.

5. State law requires that law enforcement personnel conducting “off-duty” work
must be both “full time” and “entitled” to fringe benefits. Tex. Occup. Code Sec.
1702.322(A) & (B)(i). Thus, part-time deputies and “reserve” officers may not
conduct “off-duty” work. !

6. The COUNTY: agrees that each of the DEPUTIES will be properly insured with
automobile liability insurance while operating the patrol vehicle in accordance
with Section 612.005(b) of the Texas Government Code, and any other applicable
laws.

7. COUNTY agrees to invoice NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION for the
reimbursement amounts for deputy vehicle usage at the rate of $12.00 per hour
per vehicle (to cover NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION’s fair share of
costs for fuel, maintenance, and yearly premiums on automobile insurance).

8. NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION agrees to log and maintain all times
that vehicles are allotted to off-duty work, whether actually used or parked, for
each vehicle used by DEPUTIES on a monthly basis. NON-GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANIZATION shall provide such vehicle time records to COUNTY and LEA
no later than the last day of the end of each month in which vehicle usage occurs.
COUNTY will invoice based on the total usage and rate, as set forth in Paragraph
7, and NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION will pay such invoice within
ten (10) days of the invoice date. Reporting must be submitted to:

LEA: At the address set forth on signature page below.

COUNTY: Williamson County Auditor’s Office
Attn: Finance Director
710 Main Street, Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78626

9. NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION agrees that it shall pay deputies
directly and file 1099 forms with the Internal Revenue Service.

!'It is the commissioners court that sets what compensation (and benefits) deputies are entitled to, which affects
eligibility for off-duty work. Tex. Local Gov't Code § 152.011.

2



10. Each party to this AGREEMENT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall
act in an individual capacity and not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures
or associates of one another.

11. Nothing in this AGREEMENT shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any
legal defense available at law or in equity to COUNTY, its past or present officers,
employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third
party. COUNTY does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State
of Texas and of the United States.

NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION:
Name of Organization: CAdorah=n Onuyadns
Signature: m )&%/ \m

Printed Name: SY,V\J\L \Q"O(TL,

Title: xeccuhur Duzchs

Date: _ \©\\ .20 1

WILLIAMSON COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY:
Name of Office: 6“&("\ &%

Printed Name of Official: :S.O\XY\&S ’R.\Q\\BQY\
Signature of Official: ng,,,.m 76 Z\//(:Qp\(\
Date: _JO- T/ / .20

Address of Office: 508 S. Rock St.
Georgetown , TX 78626




WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT:

By:
Dan A. Gattis,
Williamson County Judge &

Presiding Officer, Williamson County Commissioners Court
710 Main Street, Suite 105

Georgetown, Texas 78626




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24,
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Amendment to Aetna Master Services Agreement for the addition of Teladoc Program

Submitted For: Tara Raymore Submitted By: Shelley Loughrey, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the County Judge to execute the Amendment to the
Aetna Life Insurance Company (“Aetna”) as an Amendment to Services Agreement Number (MSA) 866349 (the
Services Agreement) between Aetna and Williamson County. This Amendment is to enroll Williamson County in
the Teladoc, Inc. (“Teladoc”) program in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in this Amendment which
are hereby incorporated as part of the Services Agreement to be effective on January 1, 2017.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description (| Amount |

Attachments
Teladoc Amendment to Aetna Master Services Agreement

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Shelley Loughrey Started On: 11/03/2016 08:40 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



General Use Note: This Amendment is issued only to Customers who choose to enroll in the Teladoc,
Inc. Program.
AMENDMENT NO. :
Enrollment in Teladoc Program

THIS AMENDMENT between Wiliamson County and Aetna
Life Insurance Company (“Aetna”) is an Amendment to Services Agreement Number [MSA] -
866349 (the “Services Agreement”) between Aetna and Customer.

Customer hereby enrolls in the Teladoc, Inc. (“Teladoc™) program in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in this
Amendment, which are hereby incorporated as part of the Services Agreement.

I. Teladoc
A. Summary

In order to provide Customer’s Plan Participants with access to certain medical services without the necessity of a
physical visit to the doctor, Aetna has contracted with Teladoc, a vendor that provides (a) access to physicians who are
under contract with Teladoc, who provide Cross Coverage Consultations or Physician Consults where allowed by state
regulation via telephone or web based video, and (b) support for the operation and administration of that network. The
physicians are selected and engaged by Teladoc to provide patient and physician interaction, whereby the Physician
diagnoses the patient’s ailment, recommends therapy, and if necessary and appropriate, can write a prescription for a
non-Drug Enforcement Agency controlled drug. Aetna will be making the program available through Teladoc, which is
a subcontractor of Aetna for the purpose of forming the physician network. However, the physicians made available
through the program are independent contractors and are neither agents nor employees of Customer, Teladoc or Aetna.
Each physician represents that the physician is licensed to practice medicine, technologically proficient, trained in Cross
Coverage Consultations or Physician Consults and covered by medical malpractice insurance having limits equal to or
greater than the minimum required limits in the state where such physician practices.

Cross Coverage Consultations or Physician Consults are covered and paid using The American Medical Association
established unique procedure codes (99441, 99442, 99443& 99444) to identify eConsults.
B. Claim Submission/Payment Process

Members’ Cross Coverage Consultations or Physician Consults will be covered under the terms of the Customer’s Plan.
Any required copays, deductibles or coinsurance will be applied in the same manner as they are applied for office
visits. This includes plans that have health funds when the fund limit is exhausted. Members have no financial
responsibility for services described in this Agreement, other than Cross Coverage Consultations or Physician Consults.

II. Terms and Conditions

A. Ascompensation for the services arranged by Aetna, Customer shall pay a Transaction Fee to Aetna as shown below.
The Transaction Fee is in addition to the other Service Fee obligations of the Customer.

Transaction Fee

Teladoc Services Included Transaction Fee
Cross Coverage Consultation or Access to Teladoc network of $20evPmM  Per Employee Per Month
Physician Consults physicians 24/7/365 (PEPM) Network Access Fee.

Custom Teladoc Benefit (For [0 Non-Standard Teladoc Benefit (For plan | [ Split Teladoc Benefit (For plan

plan sponsors who wish to sponsors who want to exclude a part of their | sponsors who want both a Standard setup
choose a custom copay amount | employee population OR who do not want (for deductible-based plans) AND a
for Teladoc consults) claim wire billing) Custom setup (for copay-based plans) in

the same implementation)

Teladoc, Inc. Amendment Page 1



B. Teladoc Transaction Fees shall be billed to Customer by Aetna and paid via transfer method as mutually agreed upon
between Aetna and Customer.

C. Members covered by this Amendment include:
all members in CSAs 11-101-03, 11-102-03, 11-103-03, 11-601-03, 13-301-03, 13-302-03, 13-303-03, 13-601-03

D. This Amendment can be terminated by either party without cause by providing at least thirty (30) days advance written
notice of such termination to the other party.

E. Member Information Regarding Teladoc

For most products/plans, Customer will inform Plan Participants of the availability of the Teladoc program. Plan
Participants are required to register and complete a Medical History Disclosure (MHD) form via Teladoc’s website or
toll-free phone number to participate in the program.

Customer hereby authorizes and consents to: (i) the use and analysis by Aetna, Teladoc and any of its subcontractors
with respect to Customer's eligibility and claims data containing Member demographic information, which use shall be
subject to applicable law, including, without limitation, HIPAA,; and (ii) the communication by Aetna, Teladoc and any
of its subcontractors directly to the Members for the purpose of educating the members about the Teladoc Program.

F. Definitions

Capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the meanings set forth in the Services Agreement, unless otherwise
set forth herein.

“Transaction Fee” means the amount(s) to be paid by Customer to Aetna for access to Teladoc program for Cross
Coverage Consultations or Physician Consults. The Transaction Fee excludes the cost of the services provided by the
physician.

“Cross Coverage Consultation or Physician Consults” means the services rendered by a physician through the
Teladoc program consistent with The American Medical Association established unique procedure codes (99441, 99442
& 99443).

“Per Employee Per Month (PEPM)” means cost per month for each active employee enrolled in the plan as reported
by the Aetna Eligibility System for each Self Insured Plan Sponsor.

G. Customer Acknowledgements

Except as provided herein, this Amendment is subject to all of the provisions of the agreement between Aetna and
Customer governing Aetna’s third party administration of Customer’s self-funded health benefits plan. Customer agrees
that: (i) Aetna does not render medical services or treatments to Plan Participants; (ii) all of Aetna’s actions in providing
the services are ministerial in nature; (iii) neither Customer nor Aetna is responsible for the health care that is delivered
by contracting health care providers; (iv) health care providers are solely responsible for the health care they deliver to
Plan Participants; (v) health care providers are not the agents or employees of Customer or Aetna; and (vi) the
indemnification obligations between the parties under any third party administrative agreements between them, including
MSA 866349 , do not apply to any portion of any loss, liability, damage, expense, settlement, cost or obligation
caused by the acts or omissions of health care providers with respect to Plan Participants.

Teladoc, Inc. Amendment Page 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed by their duly authorized
representatives to take effect on January 1, 2017 .

Williamson County AETNA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
(“CUSTOMER”)

RS

Dan Gattis,

Name:

C. Carleton King
Head of National Networks & Contracting Services

Title: COUNty Judge

Date:

Address: 710 S. Main Street Date: 10/31/2016
Georgetown
Texas ;. 78626

City:

State:

Teladoc, Inc. Amendment Page 3



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Tobacco Fund Balance Policy

Submitted For: Melanie Denny Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Tobacco Fund Balance Policy, as stated in the Budget Order
Section IV Financial Policies.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount

Attachments
Tobacco Fund Balance Policy

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 11/03/2016 09:00 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



3. Tobacco Fund: The initial distribution of Williamson County’s share of the settlement
established the fund in 1999. Revenues to the fund consist of interest income and the annual
distribution by the state of the state trust earnings. To ensure continuation of the fund, the
Williamson County Commissioner’s Court has designated the portion of fund balance representing
the amount of the original settlement ($2.5M). Designation means that this amount, or “principal”
balance, cannot be expended. In addition to the original settlement amount, each year, 20% of the
revenues from both interest income and the annual distribution from the state will be added to the
designated fund balance in order to allow the fund to grow over time. Only 80% of revenues earned
from interest and the earnings distributed annually by the state will be budgeted and expended. When
determining the next year’s budget, the amount available to expend will be calculated using actual
revenue and interest revenue amounts from May 1% of the previous year to April 30" of the current
year. Any unspent funds at the end of the fiscal year will be available to budget in the next year. If
Tobacco Fund expenditures are budgeted to offset expenditures in other funds, the actual program
cost to the other Funds will be determined prior to transferring in any dollars from the Tobacco Fund.
This available balance will be tracked annually by the County Auditor’s office.



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 26.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Letter of Agreement with Office of Court Administration for Long Distance Services

Submitted For:  Julie Kiley Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss and take action to approve Letter of Agreement with the Office of Court Administration regarding long
distance services for the IV-D court.

Background

Office of Court Administration is requesting that we provide long distance service to the IV-D Court and will
reimburse the county for all expenses. This agreement has been reviewed by legal and contract audit.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Office of Court Adminsitration Letter of Agreement

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 11:04 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 11/03/2016 10:48 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



OFFICE OF COURT ADMINISTRATION

DAVID SLAYTON
Administrative Director

October 1, 2016

The Honorable Dan A. Gattis
County Judge

Williamson County

710 S. Main St., Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Re: Letter of Agreement pursuant to Tex. Fam. Code Ch. 201 and Chapters 72, 74 and
791, Tex. Gov’t Code
Reimbursement of long-distance calling and facsimile services

Dear Judge Gattis:

This will confirm the Agreement between the Office of Court Administration (OCA) and
Williamson County for long-distance calling and facsimile services for the Title IV-D court
hosted in Georgetown, Texas.

1. a. The associate judge and court coordinator of the IV-D court hosted in
Georgetown, Texas, may from time-to-time determine it is necessary to place
long-distance phone calls or send faxes in relation to court business from the
office provided by Williamson County.

b. Williamson County agrees to make those utilities available to the court and to bill
OCA for their use.

c. OCA will reimburse Williamson County for those utilities.

d. Williamson County will remit a monthly bill to: Office of Court Administration,
Accounts Payable, P.O. Box 12066, Austin, TX 78711-2066.

2. The total amount of this Letter Agreement shall not exceed Three Hundred and no/100
Dollars ($300.00). The total amount of this Agreement may be amended with the
mutual consent of both parties at any time during the term of this Agreement.



This Letter Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2017, and shall terminate on
August 31, 2017, unless terminated sooner upon receipt by one party of written notice
sent by the other party at least ten (10) days prior to early termination date, or extended.

Williamson County and OCA agree to use alternative dispute resolution to resolve any
dispute arising under this contract.

This Letter Agreement is authorized pursuant to Tex. Fam. Code Ch. 201 and Chapters
72, 74 and 791, Tex. Gov’t Code.

Office of Court Administration Williamson County

I

David Slayton Dan A. Gattis
Administrative Director County Judge




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 27.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Approve Advertising for the purchase of Crushed Granite Base materias (IFB 1611-125)

Submitted For: Max Bricka Submitted By: Teri Jeffries, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive bids
for the purchase of Crushed Granite Base materials for use within the Road and Bridge Division of Williamson
County, IFB #1611-125.

Background

Williamson County is seeking qualified companies to provide for the purchase of Crushed Granite Base, picked up
at Vendor's plant site or delivered to Williamson County's central Maintenance Facility in Georgetown, Texas.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Crushed Granite Base

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Teri Jeffries Started On: 11/02/2016 10:38 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICIATION 1611-125
Crushed Granite Base

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE:
Nov 30, 2016 2:00:00 PM CST

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED:
Nov 30, 2016 2:00:00 PM CST

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to
distribute and receive bids. Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com.

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this
Bid.

All electronic bids must be submitted via: www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Conditions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the
Bidder.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p.1



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

General Information:

« If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope

on or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER

901 South Austin Avenue

Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
‘Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

0 Bidder should submit one (1) original.

o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked
envelopes.

o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by
third party carriers.

0 Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

o Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

o All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

o Itis the Bidder's responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM

0 Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com.

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure

any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information.

p.2



Bid Number
Bid Title

Bid Start Date
Bid End Date

Question & Answer
End Date

Bid Contact

Contract Duration
Contract Renewal
Prices Good for
Pre-Bid Conference

Bid Comments

Item
Quantity

Unit Price

Delivery Location

Description

Williamson County, Texas

Bid 1611-125
Crushed Granite Base

1611-125
Crushed Granite Base

In Held
Nov 30, 2016 2:00:00 PM CST

Nov 23, 2016 2:00:00 PM CST

Teri Jeffries

Senior Purchasing Specialist
512-943-1553
Teri.jeffries@wilco.org

1year
2 annual renewals
90 days

Nov 16, 2016 11:00:00 AM CST

Attendance is optional

Location: Williamson County - Road and Bridge Dept
3151 S.E. Inner Loop

Georgetown, TX 78626

Williamson County is seeking qualified companies to provide for the purchase of Crushed Granite Base,

Bid 1611-125

picked up at the plant site, or delivered to Williamson County's Central Maintenance Facility in Georgetown,

TX.

Item Response Form

1611-125--01-01 - Attach all documents to this line item
1ton

Williamson County, Texas
Road and Bridge
3151 S. E. Inner Loop
Suite B
Georgetown TX 78626
Qty 1

Attach all documents to this line item.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM

p.3



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Williamson County = Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS

Addendum/Addenda - means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications,
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) — means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the
Bidder's Bid. Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents — means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid - means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package. A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless awaiveris
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder — means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract - means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder's Bid is properly accepted by the
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner’s Court — means the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

County — means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) — means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder - means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 4



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

SECTION 2 - BID FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

2.1 ORGANIZATION OF BID CONTENTS FOR SUBMITTAL

Each Bid should be organized and items submitted in the order described below:
A. Transmittal Letter. Please see Section 2.3, Transmittal Letter, for more information.
B. Price Sheet.

C. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire. Please see Section 2.2, Conflict of Interest, for more
information in regards to this. Please note that even if you deem there to be no Conflict of Interest,
this signed questionnaire must be included in your package.

D. References. Please see Section 3.15, References, for more information.

E. Bid Affidavit.

F. Form 1295. Please see Section 2.4, Certificate of Interested Parties - Form 1295.
2.2 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated,
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended.

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5,
Subtitle C, Chapter 176. Additional information may be obtained from the County's website at the
following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this IFB. Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project
that is subject to this IFB. Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the
principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers
must be disclosed. Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County
employees or officials may be cause for termination.

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification.
By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount,

trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in
connection with this procurement.

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package. Package may
be deemed incomplete without this form.

2.3 TRANSMITTAL LETTER

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p.5



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

The Bidder should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following information:
A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Bid.

B. Name, physical address, email address, business and fax number of the Bidder’s principal
contact person regarding all contractual matters relating to this IFB.

C. The Bid's Federal Employer Identification Number.

D. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any
state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged to provide
information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact. See Section 4.36, Air Quality
for more information.

2.4 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES - FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government
Code, Section 2252.908. The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder
submits the signed Contract. The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1,
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding,
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff's seized fun
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000.

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing
application that must be used to file Form 1295. Information regarding how to use the filing application is
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. Have the form notarized.

E. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient)
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Contract is submitted for
approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the

Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven
business days after receiving notice from the County.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p.6



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125
2.5 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.6 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and
General Information listed in this IFB package. Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance
with this IFB.

2.7 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals. It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB
package, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: Bid Name and Number

901 South Austin Avenue

Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder. The County will not accept
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p.7



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements. All Bidders are responsible
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB. Be sure your Bid
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the ¢
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an e
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fid
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum. All Addenda will be numbered consecutively,
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of g
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-ei
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.
3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER
A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with ¢
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner’'s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with i

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p.8



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.
3.6 BID OBLIGATION

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder il
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Bids. Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be
considered if submitted after the deadline. Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder's Bid, may also
be noted and made part of the evaluation file. The County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Lo
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

Price;

The Bidder’s experience and reputation;

Quality of the Bidder’'s goods and/or services;

The Bidder’s safety record;

The Bidder’s proposed personnel;

The Bidder’s financial capabilities; and

. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

GMmMoOO®>

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p.9



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905, in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3) percent of ¢
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best
combination of contract price and additional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waie
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of !
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results my
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.11 RESPONSIBILITY

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility. A
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required,;

Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;

Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and
Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

OCOw>

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.12 FIRM PRICING

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or
unit quantity of each item. The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB. Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be

considered. The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and
best Bid.

3.13 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.14 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 10



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are
to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.15 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles,
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP. The County reserves the right to
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB. Bid may not be deemed
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 11



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, exceptto
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder'sBid. In
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and
2. The Bidder's Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder's Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;
2. The IFB its Addenda; and
3. The Bidder’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of
business. Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to
finance the costs of the Contract. All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 12



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court. The
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder. Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all
other requirements to the County’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30)
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend
this period if it is in the best interest of the County. In the event the County exercises its right to
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including
the date of termination, will be due and payable. No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

49 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set
forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services
that were not provided and/or performed to the County’s satisfaction.

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses,
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 13



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified
marked as being proprietary. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and
available to the public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County’s website and/or a similar
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information
that has been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder’'s Bid is in conflict with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no
force or effect. Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texasin
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to
whether or not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that the County, and its
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to !
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. The Successful Bidder
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the
provisions of this section. The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the
County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION
The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees,
agents and agent’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable

attorneys’ fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 14



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies.

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents’ employees shall not be liable for
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to,
theft. The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its
officials, employee, agents and agents’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring
in relation to the Successful Bidder’'s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s).

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15”‘) day of each month; provide the County with a written
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter. The Successful Bidder's duty to defend, indemnify and
hold the County harmless shall be absolute. It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in
writing. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise.

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding,
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter.

The Successful Bidder’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful
Bidder to perform the work described in this request. The provision by the Successful Bidder of
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing
Agreement(s).

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder's insurance carrier waive any and all rights
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder's performance under this Contract and any
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only. The County shall not retain or
have the right to control the Successful Bidder's means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful
Bidder’'s performance of the work. The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an
‘Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141,
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of the County, and that the Successful Bidder andits
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 15



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority,
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other
party shall grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions,
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race,
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County: Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: Purchasing Agent
901 South Austin Avenue
Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:  Address set out in Bidder’'s Transmittal Letter.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION
The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or

goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 16



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers' Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations,
licensing laws and regulations. When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set
forth verbatim herein. Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or
collect any of taxation. It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County’s budget for the fiscal year
in question. The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to !
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise
specified in the Invitation for Bids. The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 17



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of the County.

431 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. T
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services. Tk
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein. The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County
accordance with the County's requirements and procedures. The Successful Bidder’'s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, 1
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder's skill
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than ¢
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but
may be modified, at the County's sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement. Therefore, the
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and
conditions of this IFB. If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to !
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY
All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or

termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 18



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125
4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of aBidder
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality. If the Bid being submitted will have an
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard),
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality
impact. All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered,
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County's payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code,

Chapter 2251. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (315!) day after the later of the
following:

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract;
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texs
Government Code, Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County'’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes
due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County
receives the invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in
accordance within the time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the
event the payment is to be made to a different address.

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order.

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 19



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125
D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount.
E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract.

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:

Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special
Provisions section of this IFB. The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the
Successful Bidder is notified of award. The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as !
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB. The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued. Bidders should raise any questions
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB. Because the
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement,
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid. Again, the attached Agreement, if
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB. Failure or
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices,
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities. Another entity’s participation in the
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter-i
Agreement with the County. Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in
this IFB Package.

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this
IFB Package.

443 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual kg
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. Tk
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 20



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

contract to the Commissioners Court.
444 |INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next
business day the County is open. If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested
in the project to extend the deadline. It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the
stated deadline. The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline.

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3| | 4l

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 21



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Williamson County = Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS

Addendum/Addenda - means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications,
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) — means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the
Bidder's Bid. Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents — means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid - means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package. A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless awaiveris
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder — means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract - means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder's Bid is properly accepted by the
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner’s Court — means the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

County — means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) — means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder - means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 22



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

SECTION 2 - BID FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

2.1 ORGANIZATION OF BID CONTENTS FOR SUBMITTAL

Each Bid should be organized and items submitted in the order described below:
A. Transmittal Letter. Please see Section 2.3, Transmittal Letter, for more information.
B. Price Sheet.

C. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire. Please see Section 2.2, Conflict of Interest, for more
information in regards to this. Please note that even if you deem there to be no Conflict of Interest,
this signed questionnaire must be included in your package.

D. References. Please see Section 3.15, References, for more information.

E. Bid Affidavit.

F. Form 1295. Please see Section 2.4, Certificate of Interested Parties - Form 1295.
2.2 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated,
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended.

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5,
Subtitle C, Chapter 176. Additional information may be obtained from the County's website at the
following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this IFB. Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project
that is subject to this IFB. Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the
principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers
must be disclosed. Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County
employees or officials may be cause for termination.

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification.
By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount,

trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in
connection with this procurement.

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package. Package may
be deemed incomplete without this form.

2.3 TRANSMITTAL LETTER

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 23



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

The Bidder should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following information:
A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Bid.

B. Name, physical address, email address, business and fax number of the Bidder’s principal
contact person regarding all contractual matters relating to this IFB.

C. The Bid's Federal Employer Identification Number.

D. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any
state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged to provide
information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact. See Section 4.36, Air Quality
for more information.

2.4 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES - FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government
Code, Section 2252.908. The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder
submits the signed Contract. The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1,
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding,
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff's seized fun
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000.

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing
application that must be used to file Form 1295. Information regarding how to use the filing application is
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. Have the form notarized.

E. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient)
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Contract is submitted for
approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the

Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven
business days after receiving notice from the County.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 24



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125
2.5 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.6 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and
General Information listed in this IFB package. Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance
with this IFB.

2.7 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals. It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB
package, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: Bid Name and Number

901 South Austin Avenue

Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder. The County will not accept
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 25



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements. All Bidders are responsible
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB. Be sure your Bid
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the ¢
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an e
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fid
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum. All Addenda will be numbered consecutively,
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of g
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-ei
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.
3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER
A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with ¢
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner’'s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with i

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 26



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.
3.6 BID OBLIGATION

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder il
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Bids. Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be
considered if submitted after the deadline. Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder's Bid, may also
be noted and made part of the evaluation file. The County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Lo
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

Price;

The Bidder’s experience and reputation;

Quality of the Bidder’'s goods and/or services;

The Bidder’s safety record;

The Bidder’s proposed personnel;

The Bidder’s financial capabilities; and

. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

GMmMoOO®>

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 27



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905, in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3) percent of ¢
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best
combination of contract price and additional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waie
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of !
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results my
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.11 RESPONSIBILITY

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility. A
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required,;

Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;

Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and
Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

OCOw>

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.12 FIRM PRICING

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or
unit quantity of each item. The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB. Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be

considered. The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and
best Bid.

3.13 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.14 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 28



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are
to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.15 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles,
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP. The County reserves the right to
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB. Bid may not be deemed
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 29



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, exceptto
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder'sBid. In
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and
2. The Bidder's Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder's Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;
2. The IFB its Addenda; and
3. The Bidder’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of
business. Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to
finance the costs of the Contract. All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 30



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court. The
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder. Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all
other requirements to the County’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30)
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend
this period if it is in the best interest of the County. In the event the County exercises its right to
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including
the date of termination, will be due and payable. No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

49 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set
forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services
that were not provided and/or performed to the County’s satisfaction.

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses,
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 31



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified
marked as being proprietary. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and
available to the public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County’s website and/or a similar
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information
that has been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder’'s Bid is in conflict with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no
force or effect. Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texasin
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to
whether or not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that the County, and its
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to !
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. The Successful Bidder
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the
provisions of this section. The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the
County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION
The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees,
agents and agent’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable

attorneys’ fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 32



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies.

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents’ employees shall not be liable for
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to,
theft. The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its
officials, employee, agents and agents’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring
in relation to the Successful Bidder’'s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s).

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15”‘) day of each month; provide the County with a written
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter. The Successful Bidder's duty to defend, indemnify and
hold the County harmless shall be absolute. It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in
writing. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise.

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding,
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter.

The Successful Bidder’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful
Bidder to perform the work described in this request. The provision by the Successful Bidder of
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing
Agreement(s).

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder's insurance carrier waive any and all rights
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder's performance under this Contract and any
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only. The County shall not retain or
have the right to control the Successful Bidder's means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful
Bidder’'s performance of the work. The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an
‘Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141,
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of the County, and that the Successful Bidder andits
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 33



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority,
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other
party shall grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions,
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race,
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County: Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: Purchasing Agent
901 South Austin Avenue
Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:  Address set out in Bidder’'s Transmittal Letter.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION
The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or

goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 34



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers' Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations,
licensing laws and regulations. When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set
forth verbatim herein. Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or
collect any of taxation. It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County’s budget for the fiscal year
in question. The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to !
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise
specified in the Invitation for Bids. The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 35



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of the County.

431 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. T
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services. Tk
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein. The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County
accordance with the County's requirements and procedures. The Successful Bidder’'s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, 1
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder's skill
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than ¢
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but
may be modified, at the County's sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement. Therefore, the
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and
conditions of this IFB. If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to !
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY
All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or

termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only.

4.36 AIR QUALITY

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 36



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of aBidder
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality. If the Bid being submitted will have an
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard),
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality
impact. All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered,
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code,

Chapter 2251. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (315!) day after the later of the
following:

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract;
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texs
Government Code, Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County'’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes
due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1%t) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County
receives the invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in
accordance within the time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the
event the payment is to be made to a different address.

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order.
C. ldentification of items or service as outlined in the Contract.

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 37



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125
E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract.
Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:

Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special
Provisions section of this IFB. The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the
Successful Bidder is notified of award. The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as !
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB. The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued. Bidders should raise any questions
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB. Because the
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement,
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid. Again, the attached Agreement, if
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB. Failure or
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices,
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities. Another entity’s participation in the
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter-lid
Agreement with the County. Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in
this IFB Package.

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this
IFB Package.

443 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual kg
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal orinternational governmental entities. T
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed
contract to the Commissioners Court.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 38



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125
4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next
business day the County is open. If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested
in the project to extend the deadline. It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the
stated deadline. The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline.

4.45 PREVAILING WAGE RATES

To the extent this procurement is for the construction of a public work, including a building, highway,
road, excavation, and repair work or other project development or improvement, paid for in whole or in
part from public funds, without regard to whether the work is done under public supervision or direction,
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2258, shall apply and the contractor shall pay not less than the wage
scale of the various classes of labor as shown on the “Prevailing Wage Schedule” provided by the
County. Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 2258.022(a)(2), the County has determined the
general prevailing rate of the “Prevailing Wage Schedule” in the locality in which the public work is to be
performed for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the contract and the prevailing rate for legal
holiday and overtime work by using the prevailing wage rate as determined by the United States
Department of Labor in accordance with the United States Code, Section 276a (Davis-Bacon Act).

The specified wage rates are minimum rates only, and are not representations that qualified labor
adequate to perform the work is available locally at the prevailing wage rates. The County is not bound to
pay—and will not consider—any claims for additional compensation made by any contractor because the
contractor pays wages in excess of the applicable minimum rate contained in the Contract Documents.
The “Prevailing Wage Schedule” is not a representation that quantities of qualified labor adequate to
perform the work may be found locally at the specified wage rates.

For classifications not shown, workers shall not be paid less than the wage indicated for laborers. The
contractor shall notify each worker commencing work on the project the worker’s job classification and
the established minimum wage rate required to be paid, as well as the actual amount being paid. The
notice must be delivered to and signed in acknowledgement of receipt by the employee and must list
both the monetary wages and fringe benefits to be paid or furnished for each classification in which the
worker is assigned duties. When requested by the County, competent evidence of compliance with the
Texas Prevailing Wage Law shall be furnished by contractor. A copy of each worker wage rate
notification shall be submitted to the County with the Application for Payment for the period during which
the worker began on-site activities.

Should the contractor at any time become aware that a particular skill or trade not reflected on the
County’s “Prevailing Wage Schedule” will be or is being employed in the work, whether by the contractor
or by a subcontractor, the contractor shall promptly inform the County and shall specify a wage rate for
that skill or trade, which shall bind the contractor.

The contractor and any subcontractor shall pay to the County a penalty of sixty dollars ($60.00) for each
worker employed for each calendar day, or portion thereof, that the worker is paid less than the wage
rates stipulated in the “Prevailing Wage Schedule” or any supplement thereto. The contractor and each
subcontractor shall keep, or cause to be kept, an accurate record showing the names and occupations
of all workers employed in connection with the work, and showing the actual per diem wages paid to
each worker, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours for the inspection by the County.

Within thirty-one (31) days of receipt of information concerning a violation of the Texas Government Code
Chapter 2258, the County shall make an initial determination as to whether good cause exists to believe
a violation occurred. The County’s decision on the initial determination shall be reduced to writing and
sent to the contractor or subcontractor against whom the violation was alleged, and to the affected

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 39



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

worker. When a good cause finding is made, the County shall retain the full amounts claimed by the
claimant or claimants as the difference between wages paid and wages due under the “Prevailing Wage
Schedule” and any supplements thereto, together with the applicable penalties, such amounts being
subtracted from successive progress payments pending a final decision on the violation.

After the County makes its initial determination, the affected contractor or subcontractor and worker have
fourteen (14) calendar days in which to resolve the issue of whether a violation occurred, including the
amount that should be retained by the County or paid to the affected worker. If the contractor or
subcontractor and affected worker reach an agreement concerning the worker’s claim, the contractor
shall promptly notify the County in a written document signed by the worker. It the contractor or

Subcontractor and affected worker do not agree before the fifteenth (15 calendar day after the County
determination, the contractor or subcontractor and affected worker must participate in binding arbitration
in accordance with the Texas General Arbitration Act, Chapter 171, (Texas Civil Practice and Remedies
Code). The parties to the arbitration have ten (10) calendar days after the expiration of the fifteen (15)

calendar days referred to above, to agree on an arbitrator; if by the eleventh (11th) calendar day there is
no agreement to an arbitrator, a district court shall appoint an arbitrator on the petition of any of the
parties to the arbitration.

If an arbitrator determines that a violation has occurred, the arbitrator shall assess and award against the
contractor or subcontractor the amount of penalty as provided above and the amount owed the worker.
The County may use any amounts retained hereunder to pay the worker the amount as designated in the
arbitration award. If the County has not retained enough from the contractor or subcontractor to pay the
worker in accordance with the arbitration award, the worker has a right of action against the contractor
and subcontractor as appropriate, and the surety of either to receive the amount owed, attorneys’
and court costs. The contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the arbitration award to the County.

Money retained pursuant to the provisions above shall be used to pay the claimant or claimants the
difference between the amount the worker received in wages for labor on the project at the rate paid by
the contractor or subcontractor and the amount the worker would have received at the general prevailing
wage rate as provided by the agreement of the claimant and the contractor or subcontractor affected, or
in the arbitrator's award. The full statutory penalty of sixty dollars ($60.00) per calendar day of violation
per worker shall be retained by Williamson County to offset its administrative costs, pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section, 2258.023. Any retained funds in excess of these amounts shall be paid to
the contractor on the earlier of the next progress payment or final payment. Provided, however, that the
County shall have no duty to release any funds to either the claimant or the contractor until it has
received the notices of agreement or the arbitration award as provided under the provision herein-above.

4.46 CONFIDENTIALITY
The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access

unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3| | al

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 40



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar
goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were recently provided
by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:

| |

Contact Name: Title:

| |

Phone: E-mail

| |

Contract Date To: Contract Date From: Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

=
6l
Reference 2
Client Name: Location:
| |
Contact Name: Title:
| |
Phone: E-malil
| |
Contract Date To: Contract Date From: Contract Value: $
| | |
Scope of Work:
[=
Bl

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 41



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:

| |

Contact Name: Title:

| |

Phone: E-mail

| |

Contract Date To: Contract Date From: Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

il Gl

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 42



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local

. . . . OFFICE USE ONLY
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

Date Received I

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person
becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.
ﬂ Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
J Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

[l

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than
September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and
not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity
who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to
expenditure of money.
5
6l
4

Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this

guestionnaire.
5

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 43



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 44



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE Form CIQ
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental Page 2
entity
5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship.

(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or Cis YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessatry.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer
of the questionnaire?

l:l Yes ]:I No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

J:I Yes l:l No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

[1 ves [] No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

N il

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

Jou e

—

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

3| | al

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 45



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are submitted as
correct and final. Bidder further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which
prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person
or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, | certify that the
Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool or
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or
persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon.”

Name of Bidder: I

Address of Bidder:

Email:

Printed Name of Person Submitting
Affidavit:

Signature of Person Submitting
Affidavit:

|
|
Telephone: I
|
|

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative impact on the
County’s evaluation of the Bid.

] I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County’s Contract.
] I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the quoted prices to
all authorized entities.*

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared I

(Name of Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: ‘I, |

(Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for (Name of Bidder) and
have been duly authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said | (Name of
Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named |

on this the I day ofl : 20|
|

Notary Public in and for

The State of |

The County of |

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 46



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

1.0 BID FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1 Organization of Bid Contents for Submittal

Each Bid should be organized and items submitted in the order described in of this IFB.

1.2 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government Code Title
5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended.

As of January 1, 2006, Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 176. Additional
information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofinterestDisclosure/tabid/689/lanquage/en-US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the requirements of this
IFB. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal relationship between the
Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or any other entity or person involved

in_ any way in the project that is the subject of this IFB. Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the
Bidder, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with any employee or official of Williamson County orits suppliers must be
disclosed. Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any
such relationship or reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification.

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm that they have not given, nor intend to give, at any time hereafter
any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County
public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in connection with this procurement.

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this IFB.

1.3 Certificate of Interested Parties

As of January 1, 2016, Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government Code Section 2252.908. The law states that
Williamson County may not enter into certain contracts with a Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to
Williamson County at the time the Bidder submits the signed contract to Williamson County. The law applies only to a contract of
Williamson County that either (1) requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the contract may be signed or (2) has a
value of at least $1 million. The disclosure requirement applies to a contract entered into on or after January 1, 2016.

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website a new filing application that must be used to file
Form 1295. A Bidder must use the application to enter the required information on Form 1295 and print a copy of the form and a
separate certification of filing that will contain a unique certification number. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed
copy of the form and have the form notarized. The completed Form 1295 and certification of filing must be filed with Williamson
County.

Williamson County must notify the commission, using the commission’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 1295 and
certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the contract binds all parties to the contract. The commission will post the
completed Form 1295 to its website within seven business days after receiving notice from Williamson County.

Information regarding how to use the filing application will be available on the Texas Ethics Commission website by January 1, 2016.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 47



IFB Standard Documents

Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

1.4 Ethics

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with any employee,
official or agent of Williamson County.

1.5 Bid Submittal Deadline

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information’ listed above for
this IFB. Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance with this IFB.

1.6 Delivery of Bids

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted electronically through BidSync
or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before the submittal
deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information’ listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department

Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER

901 South Austin Avenue Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.

Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers. Bidder should submit one (1) original,
and one (1) copy of their Bid on CD (or other portable storage

device). Bids will be opened publicly and read aloud. In the case of an RFP (Request for Proposal)
submissions may be recognized in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, names of Bidders will then be read aloud.

Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

2.1 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THIS BID

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for fulfilling all requirements and
specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by the Bid Specifications,
Addenda issued as a part of this IFB and Modifications issued as a part of this IFB. Be sure your Bid package is complete.

2.2  Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the IFB

If Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, Bidder shall immediately notify
Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request modification or clarification of the document.
Madifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for

submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to Bidder, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been
known to Bidder, then Bidder shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the IFB, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids, by
issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning with 1.

2.3 Notification of Most Current Address

Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address changes, contact person
changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

2.4 Bid Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Bids is entirely the responsibility of Bidders and shall not be charged to Williamson County.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 48



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

2.5 Signature of Bidder

If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited Liability Company shall be
provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of each partner authorized to
sign.

If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner's General Partner shall be provided with the signature of the
officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability Company, General
Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson
County Purchasing Department.

2.6 Assumed Business Name

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the Williamson County Clerk
a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

2.7 Bid Obligation

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall become part of the contractual
obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing Agreement.

2.8 Compliance with IFB Specifications

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure comparable Bids. Failure to comply
with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Withdrawal of Bid

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized individual, as described herein
above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline. The Bidder may thereafter submit a
new Bid prior to the deadline. Modification of the Bid in any manner will not be considered if submitted after the deadline. Withdrawal of
a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.10 Evaluation/Award

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than disclosed in the BID
process) that might affect Williamson County’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an award to the lowest and best evaluated
Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not
within the Bidder’s Bid, may also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for
determining the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, Williamson County prohibits unsolicited communication initiated by the
Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the time an award has been made. Unsolicited
communication may be ground for disqualifying the offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation then in evaluation,
or any future solicitation.

Communication between Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official or Employee in order to obtain
information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate evaluation of the solicitation.

To award the lowest responsible bidder in accordance with Texas Government Code and Local Government Code, the County may
consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

Price

Bidder’s experience and reputation

Quality of the Bidder's goods and/or services
Bidder’'s safety record

Bidder’s proposed personnel

Bidder’s financial capabilities

Any other relevant factors specifically listed in the IFB

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 49



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Consideration of Location of Principal Office

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 271.905, in purchasing under this title any real property or personal property
that is not affixed to real property, if Williamson County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose principal place of business is
in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three percent (3%) of the lowest bid price received by Williamson County from a
Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, Williamson County may enter into a contract with:

the lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the Williamson County Commissioners
Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers Williamson County the best combination of contract price and additional
economic development opportunities for Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents of
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

This consideration does not prohibit Williamson County from rejecting all Bids. It is understood that the Commissioners Court of
Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in
this IFB, and to waive informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid it shall deem to be in the best interest of Williamson
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date Results may be obtained by viewing the
Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/lanqguage/en-US/Default.aspx

2.11 Responsibility

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Bidder’s responsibility. A prospective Bidder
should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required,;

b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;

¢) have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided

d) have a satisfactory record of performance with Williamson County; and €) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an
award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Bidder's ability to meet these
minimum standards listed above.

2.12 Firm Pricing

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or unit quantity of each item. Bidder
must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB. Unless the IFB
expressly states otherwise, this period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period. Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which
are subject to change without notice, will not be considered. The Court may award a contract for the period implied or expressly stated in
the lowest and best Bid.

2.13 Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the Successful Bidder for goods
and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for
payment.

2.14 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning any
point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made
on the basis of this statement.

2.15 References

Williamson County may require Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services and/or goods have been
supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years. References should be provided in accordance with this IFB.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 50



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

3.1 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS
3.2 Definitions

a) “Addenda” — Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the consideration of Bids which
modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections.

b) “Agreement” — The Successful Bidder may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement containing terms
necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and Bidder’s Bid. Such ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid Specifications,
Terms and Conditions that are derived from the IFB.

c) “Contract” — This IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a contract between the Successful Bidder and

d) Williamson County once the Successful Bidder’s Bid is properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

e) “Bid Documents” — The Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of any Bids.

f) “Bid” — The completed and signed bid form referred to as the Price Sheet and ALL required forms and documentation listed in
the bid package which have been submitted in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package. A Bid
submitted in accordance with this IFB is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a
waiver is obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

g) “Bidder” — A person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

h) “IFB” — Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued by Williamson County.

i) “Successful Bidder"— The liable Bidder to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action arising out of or in connection
with this IFB, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division
of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except
to the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this IFB, the

Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas,
excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the IFB and its Schedules; and (2) the Bidder’s Bid. In the event of a dispute under the Contract,

applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1)
the IFB and its Schedules; and (2) the Bidder’s Bid.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute arises between the
terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the IFB, and its Schedules; and (3) the Bidder’s Bid, applicable documents will be
referred to for the purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the
ensuing Agreement, (2) the IFB; and (3) the Bidder’s Bid.

3.2.3 Ownership of Bid

Each Bid shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders unless received after the
submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Bidder

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment to Williamson County certifies
that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of this state codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the
Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in
such line of business. Any or all Bids may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

3.2.5 Funding

Williamson County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the costs of the
Contract. Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on
Williamson County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable administrative discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 51



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or interests obtained under the
Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the functional capabilities described
by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

3.2.8 Termination

a) Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement for
default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the IFB Specifications, Terms and Conditions, including warranties of
Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is
in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be
provided hereunder. Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services
within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County’s
satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and requirements.

b) Termination for Convenience: Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement for convenience
and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar day’s written notice to Successful Bidder. Williamson
County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises
its right to terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Bidder for goods,
commaodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable.
No penalty will be assessed for Williamson County’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set forth herein. In addition
to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment
equal to the amount of the goods and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to Williamson County’s satisfaction. In the
event of such non-performance, Williamson County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If Williamson County elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or
by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Bidder shall reimburse Williamson County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand,
for all costs incurred by Williamson County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field
overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful
Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse Williamson
County as set out in this provision, Williamson County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts
that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to Williamson County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information Act upon receipt. If
a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary
at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and
marked as being proprietary. Williamson County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the
information that has been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set forth under this provision
will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the public. For all information that has not been
clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Bidder, Williamson County may choose to place such information on the County’s
website and/or a similar public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder’s Bid is in conflict with Tex. Gov't Code 552.001 et seq., as

amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or effect. Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that
Williamson County, its officers and employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas
in regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or not the
same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County’s officers and employees shall have the right to rely on
the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability
or obligation to any party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the

Attorney General of the State of Texas.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 52



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Bidder agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after
termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books,
documents, papers and records of Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be
delivered for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Bidder agrees that Williamson
County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work
space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Bidder
reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

3.2.12 Testing and Inspections

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality and compliance with this
IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be available for review. Should the goods or services fail to
meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation, Williamson County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the
Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Bid Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of Bidders and shall not be charged to Williamson County. There is no expressed or
implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse Bidders for any expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and
Williamson County will not reimburse Bidders for such expenses.

3.2.14 INDEMNIFICATION

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS WILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS,
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITY, AND EXPENSES,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES, ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF BIDDER, ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR
EMPLOYEES, PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION OF
BIDDER OR ANY OF BIDDER’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES, AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE
TO THE BIDDER’S AND WILLIAMSON COUNTY’S PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT, AND/OR SUPPLIES.

FURTHERMORE, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’' EMPLOYEES SHALL
NOT BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY,
DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS WILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’
EMPLOYEES AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY, OR
DAMAGE WHATSOEVER CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN
RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL BIDDER’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE
TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT(S).

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, SUITS, ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS, LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO WILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL, UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION,
PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT, NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15w) DAY OF EACH MONTH; PROVIDE
WILLIAMSON COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER, SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH
MATTER, THE SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACHMATTER AND THE
COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY, OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL BIDDER IN THE
DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER’S DUTY TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD WILLIAMSON
COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT(S) UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY
WILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE
CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER
WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION,
PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT
OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, BIDDER SHALL NEVER-THE- LESS
FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND

UNLESS THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND
OMISSIONS OF BIDDER ARE

NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER'S INDEMNIFICATION SHALL COVER, AND SUCCESSFUL BIDDER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY
WIRRIAMBOR AMOUNTY, IN THE EVENT WILLIAMSON COUNTY IS FOUND TO HAVE BEEN NEGLIGENT FOR HAVINGp. 53



IFB Standard Documents
SELECTED SUCCESSFUL BIDDER TO PER THE WORKs®ESGRIBERasIN THIS REQUEST. THE PROVISION BYBid 1611-125

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER OF INSURANCE SHALL NOT LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF SUCCESSFUL BIDDER UNDER THE CONTRACT
AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation

Successful Bidder and Successful Bidder's insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever with regard to subrogation against

Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder’s performance
under this Contract and any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, liabilities, applicable to it as
such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may appear to give Williamson County the right to direct the
Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein covered or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean
that the Successful Bidder shall follow the desires of Williamson County in the results of the work only. Williamson County shall not
retain or have the right to control the Successful Bidder's means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Bidder’'s performance
of the work. Williamson County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that the Successful Bidder is an independent
contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas
Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of Williamson County, and that the Successful Bidder and

its employees, agents and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by Williamson County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the goods and/or services described
herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its
sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of God, or other
unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the
performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on
force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or
any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the
rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any
provision of this IFB, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of
each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to the
intent of this IFB, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, sex, religion or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery, or by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department Purchasing Agent 901 South Austin Avenue Georgetown, Texas 78626

Bidder: Address set out in IFB referred to as the Bid Affidavit.

I\,%%giyﬁ%iﬂﬁccordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i) receipt by the party to which notice is given, or (ii) on the p_tgi{d



IFB Standard Documents
(3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs fii&iliamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from sales and use taxes

under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods subject hereof are being secured for use by
Williamson County.

3.2.23Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations,
and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract
and any ensuing Agreement, including, without limitation, Workers’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations,

licensing laws and regulations. When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish Williamson County with certification of compliance
with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Schedules, Exhibits, Appendices & Attachments

All of the Schedules, Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim
herein. All of the Schedules, Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth

verbatim herein. Any conflicting terms in the contract documents will be resolved at the sole discretion of the Williamson County
Commissioners Court.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to Williamson County, its past
or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not

waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of
Texas and of the United States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this IFB, the Contract or any ensuing
Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every
provision. Furthermore, no term or provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall
be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the
other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of
Williamson County for which Williamson County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is understood and agreed that
Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing Agreement at the end of any Williamson County
fiscal year if the governing body of Williamson County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County’s

budget for the fiscal year in question. Williamson County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 FOB — Destination

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination (FOB Destination) with all
transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise specified in the Invitation for Bids. The title and risk of
loss of the goods shall not pass to Williamson County until receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

3.2.29 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective permitted
assigns and successors.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 55



IFB Standard Documents
Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

3.2.30 Assignment

The Successful Bidder’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party without the express written
consent of Williamson County.

3.2.31 Safety

Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with any

services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational
Safety and Health Act and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

3.2.32 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably inferable and necessary for
completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The Successful Bidder shall keep Williamson County
informed of the progress and quality of the services. Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that Williamson County is relying
on Successful Bidder's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein. Successful Bidder
agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance with the highest standards used in
the profession and to further the interests of Williamson County in accordance with Williamson County’s requirements and
procedures. Successful Bidder's duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval
by the Williamson County nor shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by Williamson
County, it being understood that Williamson County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder's skill and
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.33 Estimated Quantities

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only an estimate -- the actual quantity to
be purchased may be more or less. Williamson County is not obligated to purchase any minimum amount, and Williamson County

may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be
stated expressly in the Bid.

3.2.34 Contractual Development

The contents of the IFB and the selected Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County’s
sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing Agreement. Therefore, the Bidder must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the
Bid Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this IFB. If an ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

3.2.35 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Successful Bidder and Williamson County under the terms and conditions of

the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract
has been awarded.

3.2.36 Air Quality

In determining the overall best Bid, Williamson County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the following option granted to local
governments under the Texas Local Government Code.

Option — TLGC § 271.907. This option allows Williamson County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a
Bidder that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental standards, including voluntary
standards, relating to air quality. If the Bid being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to any
state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the
anticipated air quality impact. Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

3.2.37 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the Successful Bidder and
Willieosonm Geumy and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the services apdiér



IFB Standard Documents
goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shalWigabiadhrepupenrthxesparties and may not be waived, modified amesidé@1dr125
altered except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and Williamson County.

3.2.38 Payment

Williamson County’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice
shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date Williamson County receives the goods under the Contract; (2) the
date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice
for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by Williamson County in accordance with Texas
Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on
September 1 of Williamson County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be
equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Bidder, Williamson County shall notify Successful Bidder of the
error not later than the twenty first (21st) day after the date Williamson County receives the invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of
Successful Bidder, Successful Bidder shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of Williamson County,
Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the time set forth above. The unpaid balance
accrues interest as provided by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the
appropriate date.
As a minimum, invoices shall include:

a) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Bidder and similar information in the event the payment is to be made to a

different address

b) Williamson County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number

c) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract

d) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount

e) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office,
Accounts Payable Department: accountspayable@wilco.org , 512-943-1500.

3.2.39 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The IFB and the Bidder’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court, shall constitute a contract
equally binding between the Successful Bidder and Williamson County.

If an ensuing Adreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special Provisions section of this
IEB. The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately
ten (10) calendar days after the Successful Bidder is notified of award. The ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB. The only anticipated changes in the ensuing Agreement will be to include additional
exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to
accommodate corrections, changes in the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued. Bidders should raise any
guestions regarding the terms of the Agreement in the of written questions or submittals as described in the Public
Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB. Because the signed ensuing Agreement will be substantively and
substantially derived from the attached Agreement, each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about
the terms, conditions or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid. Again, the attached Agreement contains
important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB. Failure or refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be
grounds for Williamson County to revoke any award which has been issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another
Bidder.

3.2.40 Cooperative Purchasing Program

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, Williamson County would like to afford the same prices, terms and conditions to
other political subdivisions or public entities. Another entity’s participation in the Contract resulting from this Invitation to Bid is subject to
a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter-local Agreement with Williamson County. Any liability created by Purchase Orders
issued against the Contract shall be the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

3.2.41 Insurance Requirements

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Special Provisions section of this IFB.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 57



IFB Standard Documents

Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

3.2.42 Bidders Bond, Warranty Bond, Performance and Payment Bonds

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Special Provisions section of this IFB.

3.2.43 Legal Liability Information

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or anticipated litigation that your
firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters with private parties and any local, State, Federal or
international governmental entities. Williamson County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the
recommendation of any proposed contract to the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.44 Inclement Weather

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the date of a
bid/proposal submission deadline, the bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next business day the County is

open. If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays in carrier service operations, the County may
issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project to extend the deadline. It will be the responsibility of the vendor
to notify the County of their interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the
stated deadline. The County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 58



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

WILLIAMSON COUNTY BID FORM

CRUSHED GRANITE BASE FOR WILLIAMSON COUNTY
UNIFIED ROAD AND BRIDGE SYSTEM

NAME OF BIDDER:

Mailing Address:

City: State: Zip:
Email Address:
Telephone: ( ) Fax: ( )
Mobile Phone: ( )
UNIT PRICING -
DELIVERED TO
UNIT PRICING WILCO CENTRAL
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT PICKED UP MAINTENANCE
FACILITY IN
GEORGETOWN!

CRUSHED GRANITE BASE
1 TYPEA TON

CRUSHED GRANITE BASE
2 TYPEB TON

CRUSHED GRANITE BASE
3 TYPEC TON

Note 1: Wilco Central Maintenance Facility, Road and Bridge, 3151 SE Inner Loop, Georgetown, TX 78627

Date of Bid:

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign Bid

Printed Name and Title of Signer:

DO NOT SIGN OR SUBMIT WITHOUT READING ENTIRE DOCUMENT THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED,
SIGNED, AND RETURNED WITH BID

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 59



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

General Notes and Technical Specifications

CRUSHED GRANITE BASE

General Information

Williamson County is seeking qualified companies to provide for the purchase of Crushed
Granite Base, picked up at plant site or delivered to Williamson County Central Maintenance
Facility in Georgetown, TX.

Material must be bid separately as Item picked up or Item delivered to Williamson County. Fuel
surcharge and Sales Tax of Item delivered price shall be included in bid. Sales Tax of Item
picked up shall be included in bid.

Williamson County reserves the right to award the bid in whole to one vendor or to award a
contract on each separate item or combination of items as may be most advantageous to the
County. A primary, secondary, tertiary, and/or subsequent award may be made for this bid by
the County. A vendor will not be disqualified for a “no bid” on items they cannot provide.

The County is not obligated to purchase any minimum amount and the County may purchase
any reasonable amount for the same unit price. Items will be ordered on an “As Needed” basis.

It is expressly understood and agreed that in case Williamson County should need any item(s)
not available within the time frame needed from the successful vendor(s) during the term of this
contract, the County reserves the right to purchase the item(s) from vendors other than the
successful vendor(s) and shall not be in violation of any terms or conditions of said contract.

Invoiced tonnage shall be based on certified scale weights at the time of shipment.

Location is an important factor in evaluation of bids, due to transportation costs which must be
taken into consideration. Williamson County reserves the right to evaluate the bids based on
estimated County transportation costs.

It is expressly understood and agreed that in case Williamson County should need any item(s)
not available within the time frame needed from the successful vendor(s) during the term of this
contract, the County reserves the right to purchase the item(s) vendors from other than the
successful vendor(s) and shall not be in violation of any terms or conditions of said contract.

Definition of Terms

County: Williamson County Road and Bridge Division
Vendor: Successful bidder of the attached invitation to bid.
Engineer: Director of Road and Bridge Division

Inspector: Employee of Williamson County supplied full time to the contractor's crew for the
selection, prosecution, and quality control of the work. Should the work, as well as the
geographical location, allow, the County may supply one foreman for multiple crews.

Page 10of4

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 60



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Specifications: Texas Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction
and Maintenance of Highways, Streets, and Bridges 2014.

Department: Road and Bridge Division

Control of Materials

Source Control. Use only materials that meet Contract requirements. Unless otherwise
specified or approved, use new materials for the work. Secure the Engineer’s approval of the
proposed source of materials to be used before their delivery. Materials can be approved at a
supply source or staging area but may be re-inspected.

Material Quality. Successful Bidder shall correct or remove materials that fail to meet the
contract requirements, and pay for cost incurred if additional sampling and testing is required by
a change of source. Materials hot meeting Contract requirements will be rejected, unless the
Engineer approves corrective actions. Upon rejection, immediately remove and replace
rejected materials. If the Successful Bidder does not comply with this Article, the County may
remove and replace defective material. The cost of testing, removal, and replacement will be
deducted from invoice.

Manufacturer Warranties. Transfer to the County warranties and guarantees required by the
Contract or received as part of normal trade practice.

Sampling, Testing, and Inspection. Testing may be performed at the request of the County
any time during the length of the contract through an independent testing laboratory. Testing
may be requested by the County on any and/or all items on this contract. If the results
determine the item did not meet specifications, then the cost of the testing will be borne by the
Vendor. If the results of the test determine that the item did meet specifications, the cost of the
testing will be borne by the County.

Sieve Analysis and Atterberg Limits test reports shall be from an approved independent testing
laboratory, providing the proposed materials compliance and adequacy shown below in Tables
1and 2.

Table 1. Sieve Analysis Specifications

Sieve Analysis

Specification Limit
Sieve Size TYPE A TYPEB | TYPEC
% Retained Required
1-3/4 0-15 0-10 0
7/8" 0-35 0-20 0
3/8" 30-75 15-40 0-10
No. 4 45-85 30-50 5-15
No. 40 65-95 70-90 70-85
No. 200 95-100 80-95 83-90
Page 2 of 4

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 61



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Table 2: Atterberg Limits Specifications

Atterberg Limits
Specification Limit
TYPE A TYPE B TYPE C
Pl 5-20 5-20 5-20

The material requirements and standard test methods in effect at the time the proposed
Contract is advertised, govern. Additional testing may be requested by the County on any
and/or all items on this contract.

Material which that has been tested and approved at a supply source or staging area may be re-
inspected or tested before or during incorporation into the work, and rejected if it does not meet
Contract requirements. Copies of test results are available upon request. Do not use material
that, after approval, becomes unfit for use.

Plant Inspection and Testing. The Engineer may but is not obligated to inspect materials at
the acquisition or manufacturing source. Material samples will be obtained and tested for
compliance with quality requirements. Materials produced under County inspection are for
County use only unless released in writing by the Engineer.

If inspection is at the plant, meet the following conditions unless otherwise specified:

o Cooperate fully and assist the Engineer during the inspection
Ensure the Engineer has full access to all parts of the plant used to manufacture or
produce materials.

¢ In accordance with pertinent items and the Contract, provide a facility at the plant for use
by the Engineer as an office or laboratory.

¢ Provide and maintain adequate safety measures and restroom facilities.

e Furnish and calibrate scales, measuring devices, and other necessary equipment.

The Engineer may provide inspection for periods other than daylight hours if:

e Continuous production of materials for County use is necessary due to the production
volume being handled at the plant and
e The lighting is adequate to allow satisfactory inspection.

General Notes

All products furnished under the provision of the Contract shall comply with requirements which
pertain to the various items of work included herein as Standard Specifications for Construction
of Highways, Streets and Bridges of the Texas Department of Transportation, adopted
November, 2014, and as amended and/or updated, which is incorporated herein by reference
for all purposes.

In the event that any specification set out herein conflicts with the said TxDOT specifications,
the specification set out herein shall control and govern.

Delivery or Pick Up. Delivery or Pick Up will be stated on the Williamson County purchase
order.

Page 3 of 4

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 62



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Measurement. Crushed Granite Base will be measured by the ton (dry weight). When material
is furnished in trucks, the weight of the material will be determined on certified scales, or the
vendor must provide a set of standard platform truck scales at a location approved by the
Engineer.

Page 4 of 4

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 63



Williamson County, Texas Bid 1611-125

Question and Answers for Bid #1611-125 - Crushed Granite Base

Overall Bid Questions

There are no questions associated with this bid.

11/2/2016 11:18 AM p. 64



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 28.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Approving Supplemental Agreement and WA for San Gabriel

Submitted For: Max Bricka Submitted By: Sydney Richardson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Contract Amendment and Supplemental
Agreement for the Engineering Design Services for the Repair of San Gabriel Ranch Road (Contract 1511-030)
with Freese and Nichols, Inc.

Background

Requested by Terron Everston, Director of Road & Bridge; this is to amend the current Contract because during
the analysis and schematic phase of the engineering services for this roadway repair project, Road & Bridge
received notification from the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) that the dam, upon which the
deteriorated roadway sits, is in poor condition and needs signifigant repairs. The dam has been reclassified as a
high hazard dam due to the development downstream and increased health and safety risks to the downstream
population. The high hazard classifcation requires that a dam meet more stringent requirements which it currently
doesn't meet, so repairing the road on an unsafe dam is not an option. These new findings have led the Project to
a quite different scope, requiring different studies, permits and designs. The maximum amount payable for services
under the Work Authorization has been increased from $265,143.00 to $533,524.00.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount
Attachments

Original Contract

Contract Amendment

Supplemental Agreement

Form 1295
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM

Form Started By: Sydney Richardson Started On: 11/03/2016 07:53 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



WILLIAMSON COUNTY
CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

FIRM: Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“Engineer”)
ADDRESS: 10431 Morado Circle, Building 5, Suite 300, Austin, TX 78759
PROJECT: Engineering Design Services for the repair of San Gabriel Ranch Road (“Project”)

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §

THIS CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Contract”) is made and
entered into, effective as the date of the last party’s execution hereinbelow, by and between
Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, whose offices are located
at 710 Main Street, Suite 101, Georgetown, Texas, 78626 (hereinafter referred to as “County”),
and Engineer, and such Contract is for the purpose of contracting for professional engineering
services.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A
entitled “Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of
services of professional engineers; and

WHEREAS, County and Engineer desire to contract for such professional engineering
services; and

WHEREAS, County and Engineer wish to document their agreement concerning the
requirements and respective obligations of the parties;

NOW, THEREFORE, WITNESSETH:

That for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and
valuable considerations, and the covenants and agreements hereinafter contained to be kept and
performed by the respective parties hereto, it is agreed as follows:

Engineering Services Contract — Williamson County Fiscal Year 2016 — Williamson County Road & Bridge
(040215)



ARTICLE 1
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS

A. Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist of this Contract, any
exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this
Contract), any fully executed Work Authorizations; any fully executed Supplemental Work
Authorizations and all fully executed Contract Amendments (as defined herein in Article 14)
which are subsequently issued. These form the entire contract, and all are as fully a part of this
Contract as if attached to this Contract or repeated herein.

B. Project Documents. In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project
documents, the following documents shall be used in the development of the Project:

A. TxDOT 2011 Texas Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and
Highways, including latest revisions

B. Texas Department of Transportation's Standard Specifications for Construction
of Highways, Streets, and Bridges, 2014 (English units)

C. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)

D. Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) of the Architectural Barriers Act, Article
9102, Texas Civil Statutes, Effective April 4, 1994, including latest revisions

E. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Regulations

F. U.S. Army Corps Regulations

G. International Building Code, current edition as updated

H. Williamson County Design Criteria & Project Development Manual, latest
edition

[. Williamson County Multi-Corridor Transportation Plan Project Level
Environmental Review and Compliance Protocol, latest edition

J.  Williamson County Protocol for Sustainable Roadsides, latest edition

K. TxDOT Bridge Design Manual - LRFD, latest edition

L. TxDOT Geotechnical Manual, latest edition

ARTICLE 2
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT: AND FINANCIAL INTEREST
PROHIBITED
A. Non-collusion. Engineer warrants that he/she/it has not employed or retained any

company or persons, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Engineer, to solicit or
secure this Contract, and that he/she/it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or engineer any
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or
resulting from the award or making of this Contract. For breach or violation of this warranty,
County reserves and shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability or, in its discretion
and at its sole election, to deduct from the contract price or compensation, or to otherwise recover,
the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee.

B. Debarment Certification. Engineer must sign the Debarment Certification



enclosed herewith as Exhibit A.

C. Financial Interest Prohibited. Engineer covenants and represents that Engineer,
his/her/its officers, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors will have no financial
interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any product, materials or equipment that will
be recommended or required for the construction of the Project.

ARTICLE 3
ENGINEERING SERVICES

Engineer shall perform Engineering Services as identified in Exhibit B entitled
“Engineering Services.”

County will prepare and issue Work Authorizations, in substantially the same form
identified and attached hereto as Exhibit C and entitled “Work Authorization No. ", to
authorize the Engineer to perform one or more tasks of the Engineering Services. Each Work
Authorization will include a description of the work to be performed, a description of the tasks and
milestones, a work schedule for the tasks, definite review times by County and Engineer of all
Engineering Services and a fee amount agreed upon by the County and Engineer. The amount
payable for a Work Authorization shall be supported by the estimated cost of each work task as
described in the Work Authorization. The Work Authorization will not waive the Engineer’s
responsibilities and obligations established in this Contract. The executed Work Authorizations
shall become part of this Contract.

All work must be completed on or before the date specified in the Work Authorization.
The Engineer shall promptly notify the County of any event which will affect completion of the
Work Authorization, although such notification shall not relieve the Engineer from costs or
liabilities resulting from delays in completion of the Work Authorization. Should the review times
or Engineering Services take longer than shown on the Work Authorization, through no fault of
Engineer, Engineer may submit a timely written request for additional time, which shall be subject
to the approval of the County. Any changes in a Work Authorization shall be enacted by a written
Supplemental Work Authorization before additional costs may be incurred. Any Supplemental
Work Authorization must be executed by both parties within the period specified in the Work
Authorization.

ARTICLE 4
CONTRACT TERM

A, Term. The Engineer is expected to complete the Engineering Services described
herein in accordance with the above described Work Authorizations or any Supplemental Work
Authorization related thereto. If Engineer does not perform the Engineering Services in accordance
with each applicable Work Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto,
then County shall have the right to terminate this Contract as set forth below in Article 20. So long
as the County elects not to terminate this Contract, it shall continue from day to day until such time
as the Engineering Services are completed in accordance with each applicable Work Authorization
or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto. Any Engineering Services performed or



costs incurred after the date of termination shall not be eligible for reimbursement. Engineer shall
notify County in writing as soon as possible if he/she/it determines, or reasonably anticipates, that
the Engineering Services will not be completed in accordance with an applicable Work
Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto.

B. Work Authorizations. Engineer acknowledges that each Work Authorization is
of critical importance, and agrees to undertake all reasonably necessary efforts to expedite the
performance of Engineering Services required herein so that construction of the Project will be
commenced and completed as scheduled. In this regard, and subject to adjustments in a particular
Work Authorization, as provided in Article 3 herein, Engineer shall proceed with sufficient
qualified personnel and consultants necessary to fully and timely accomplish all Engineering
Services required under this Contract in a professional manner.

C. Commencement of Engineering Services. After execution of this Contract,
Engineer shall not proceed with Engineering Services until Engineer has been thoroughly briefed
on the scope of the Project and has been notified in writing by the County to proceed, as provided
in Article 8.

ARTICLE §
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES

County shall pay and Engineer agrees to accept up to the amount shown below as full
compensation for the Engineering Services performed and to be performed under this Contract.
The basis of compensation for the services of principals and employees engaged in the
performance of the Engineering Services shall be based on the Rate Schedule set forth in the
attached Exhibit D.

The maximum amount payable under this Contract, without modification, is Three
Hundred Six Thousand Seven Hundred Two Dollars ($306,702.00) (the “Compensation Cap”),
provided that any amounts paid or payable shall be solely pursuant to a validly issued Work
Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto. In no event may the
aggregate amount of compensation authorized under Work Authorizations and Supplemental
Work Authorizations exceed the Compensation Cap. The Compensation Cap shall be revised
equitably only by written Contract Amendments executed by both parties in the event of a change
the overall scope of the Engineering Services set forth in Exhibit B, as authorized by County.

The Compensation Cap is based upon all labor and non-labor costs estimated to be required
in the performance of the Engineering Services provided for under this Contract. Should the actual
costs of all labor and non-labor costs rendered under this Contract be less than the above stated
Compensation Cap, then Engineer shall receive compensation for only actual fees and costs of the
Engineering Services actually rendered and incurred, which may be less than the above stated
Compensation Cap.

The Compensation Cap herein referenced may be adjusted for Additional Engineering
Services requested and performed only if approved by a written Contract Amendment signed by
both parties.



Engineer shall prepare and submit to County monthly progress reports in sufficient detail
to support the progress of the Engineering Services and to support invoices requesting monthly
payment. The format for such monthly progress reports and invoices must be in a format acceptable
to County. Satisfactory progress of Engineering Services shall be an absolute condition of
payment.

Engineer shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the
performance of the services under this Contract in accordance with the Williamson County Vendor
Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit E. Invoices requesting reimbursement for costs
and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of the
provider’s invoice and comply with the Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy. The
copies of the provider’s invoice must evidence the actual costs billed to Engineer without mark-

up:

ARTICLE 6
METHOD OF PAYMENT

Payments to Engineer shall be made while Engineering Services are in progress. A monthly
progress report, as referenced in Article 5 above (in a form acceptable to the County), shall be
submitted to Williamson County Department of Infrastructure, to the attention of the Sr. Director
of Infrastructure. Such progress report shall provide a summary of the work accomplished during
the billing period for each Work Authorization task with an estimated percentage of completion
for the task.

Simultaneous with submission of such progress report, Engineer shall prepare and submit
one (1) original of a certified invoice to the Director of Road & Bridge in a form acceptable to the
County Auditor. All invoices submitted to County must, at a minimum, be accompanied by an
original complete packet of supporting documentation and time sheets detailing hours worked by
staff persons with a description of the work performed by such persons. For Additional
Engineering Services performed pursuant to this Contract, a separate invoice or itemization of the
Additional Engineering Services must be presented with the same aforementioned requirements.

Payments shall be made by County based upon Engineering Services actually provided and
performed.? Upon timely receipt and approval of each statement, County shall make a good faith
effort to pay the amount which is due and payable within thirty (30) days of the County Auditor’s
receipt. County reserves the right to reasonably withhold payment pending verification of
satisfactory Engineering Services performed. Engineer has the responsibility to submit proof to
County, adequate and sufficient in its determination, that tasks of an applicable Work
Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto were completed.

The certified statements shall show the total amount earned to the date of submission and
shall show the amount due and payable as of the date of the current statement. Final payment does
not relieve Engineer of the responsibility of correcting any errors and/or omissions resulting from
his/her/its negligence.

& See also, Art. 32(P) “Termination of Work Authorization”.



Upon submittal of the initial invoice, Engineer shall provide the County Auditor with an
Internal Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is
complete in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations.

ARTICLE 7
PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY

In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to
Engineer will be made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was
complete, or within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct
invoice for services, whichever is later.

Engineer may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is permitted by
Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; however, this
policy does not apply in the event:

A. There is a bona fide dispute between County and Engineer concerning the supplies,
materials, or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment
to be late; or

B. The terms of a federal contract, grant, regulation, or statute prevent County from
making a timely payment with federal funds; or
C. There is a bona fide dispute between Engineer and a subcontractor/subconsultant

or between a subcontractor/subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies,
materials, or equipment delivered or the Engineering Services performed which
causes the payment to be late; or

D. The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County® in strict accordance with
instructions, if any, on the purchase order, or this Contract or other such contractual
agreement.

The County Auditor shall document to Engineer the issues related to disputed invoices
within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of such invoice. Any non-disputed invoices shall be
considered correct and payable per the terms of Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code.

ARTICLE 8
COMMENCEMENT OF ENGINEERING SERVICES

The Engineer shall not proceed with any task of the Engineering Services until Engineer
has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project and instructed, in writing by the County,
to proceed with the applicable Engineering Services. The County shall not be responsible for work
performed or costs incurred by Engineer related to any task for which a Work Authorization or a
Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto has not been issued and signed by both parties.
Engineer shall not be required to perform any work for which a Work Authorization or a
Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto has not been issued and signed by both parties.

ARTICLE 9

b See Art. 6, supra.



PROJECT TEAM

County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Contract is as follows:

Williamson County Dept. of Infrastructure
Attn: Director of Road & Bridge

3151 SE Inner Loop, Suite B

Georgetown, Texas 78626

County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated
Representative by giving Engineer written notice thereof. With respect to any action, decision or
determination which is to be taken or made by County under this Contract, the County’s
Designated Representative may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall
notify Engineer in writing of an individual responsible for and capable of taking such action,
decision or determination and shall forward any communications and documentation to such
individual for response or action. Actions, decisions or determinations by the County’s Designated
Representative on behalf of County shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless
express standards or parameters therefor are included in this Contract, in which case, actions taken
by the County’s Designated Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or
parameters. Any consent, approval, decision or determination hereunder by the County’s
Designated Representative shall be binding on County; provided, however, the County’s
Designated Representative shall not have any right to modify, amend or terminate this Contract,
an Executed Work Authorization, an executed Supplemental Work Authorization or executed
Contract Amendment. County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute
a Contract Amendment, Work Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization unless
otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Engineer’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Contract is as follows:

Mike Nichols, P.E.

Freese and Nichols, Inc.

10431 Morado Circle, Building 5, Suite 300
Austin, TX 78759

Engineer shall have the right, from time to time, to change the Engineer’s Designated
Representative by giving County written notice thereof. With respect to any action, decision or
determination which is to be taken or made by Engineer under this Contract, the Engineer’s
Designated Representative may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall
notify County in writing of an individual responsible for and capable of taking such action,
decision or determination and shall forward any communications and documentation to such
individual for response or action. Actions, decisions or determinations by the Engineer’s
Designated Representative on behalf of Engineer shall be done in his or her reasonable business
Jjudgment unless express standards or parameters therefor are included in this Contract, in which
case, actions taken by the Engineer’s Designated Representative shall be in accordance with such
express standards or parameters. Any consent, approval, decision or determination hereunder by



the Engineer’s Designated Representative shall be binding on Engineer. Engineer’s Designated
Representative shall have the right to modify, amend and execute Work Authorizations,
Supplemental Work Authorizations and Contract Amendments on behalf of Engineer.
ARTICLE 10
PROGRESS EVALUATION

Engineer shall, from time to time during the progress of the Engineering Services, confer
with County at County’s election. Engineer shall prepare and present such information as may be
pertinent and necessary, or as may be reasonably requested by County, in order for County to
evaluate features of the Engineering Services. At the request of County or Engineer, conferences
shall be provided at Engineer's office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by
County. When requested by County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the
Engineering Services. County may, from time to time, require Engineer to appear and provide
information to the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Should County determine that the progress in Engineering Services does not satisfy an
applicable Work Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto, then
County shall review same with Engineer to determine corrective action required.

Engineer shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a
significant impact upon the progress of the Engineering Services, including but not limited to the
following:

A. Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the
objectives of an applicable Work Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization
related thereto, or preclude the attainment of Project Engineering Services units by
established time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by statement of actions
taken or contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the situation, if any; and

B. Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in
relation to an applicable Work Authorization’s or any Supplemental Work Authorization
related thereto.



ARTICLE 11
SUSPENSION

Should County desire to suspend the Engineering Services, but not to terminate this
Contract, then such suspension may be effected by County giving Engineer thirty (30) calendar
days’ verbal notification followed by written confirmation to that effect. Such thirty-day notice
may be waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties. The Engineering Services
may be reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written
notice from County to resume the Engineering Services. Such sixty-day (60) notice may be
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties. If this Contract is suspended for
more than thirty (30) days, Engineer shall have the option of terminating this Contract and, in the
event, Engineer shall be compensated for all Engineering Services performed and reimbursable
expenses incurred, provided such Engineering Services and reimbursable expenses have been
previously authorized and approved by County, to the effective date of suspension.

If County suspends the Engineering Services, the contract period as determined in Article
4, and the Work Authorization or any Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto, shall be
extended for a time period equal to the suspension period.

County assumes no liability for Engineering Services performed or costs incurred prior to
the date authorized by County for Engineer to begin Engineering Services, and/or during periods
when Engineering Services is suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date.

ARTICLE 12
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

If Engineer forms a reasonable opinion that any work he/she/it has been directed to
perform is beyond the overall scope of this Contract, as set forth in Exhibit B, and as such
constitutes extra work (“Additional Engineering Services”), he/she/it shall promptly notify
County in writing. In the event County finds that such work does constitute Additional
Engineering Services, County shall so advise Engineer and a written Contract Amendment will
be executed between the parties as provided in Article 14. Any increase to the Compensation Cap
due to Additional Engineering Services must be set forth in such Contract Amendment. Engineer
shall not perform any proposed Additional Engineering Services nor incur any additional costs
prior to the execution, by both parties, of a written Contract Amendment. Following the execution
of a Contract Amendment that provides for Additional Engineering Services, a written Work
Authorization, which sets forth the Additional Engineering Services to be performed, must be
executed by the parties. County shall not be responsible for actions by Engineer nor for any costs
incurred by Engineer relating to Additional Engineering Services not directly associated with the
performance of the Engineering Services authorized in this Contract, by a fully executed Work
Authorization or a fully executed Contract Amendment thereto.

ARTICLE 13
CHANGES IN COMPLETED ENGINEERING SERVICES

If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed



Engineering Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Engineering Services
or character of Engineering Services under this Contract, then Engineer shall make such revisions
as requested and as directed by County. Such revisions shall be considered as Additional
Engineering Services and paid for as specified under Article 12.

Engineer shall make revisions to Engineering Services authorized hereunder as are
necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by County. No additional
compensation shall be due for such Engineering Services.

ARTICLE 14
CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

The terms set out in this Contract may be modified by a written fully executed Contract
Amendment. Changes and modifications to a fully executed Work Authorization shall be made
in the form of a Supplemental Work Authorization. To the extent that such changes or
modifications to a Work Authorization do not also require modifications to the terms of this
Contract (i.e. changes to the overall scope of Engineering Services set forth in Exhibit B,
modification of the Compensation Cap, etc.) a Contract Amendment will not be required.

ARTICLE 15
USE OF DOCUMENTS

All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications and data or programs
stored electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “Engineering Work Products”) prepared by
Engineer and its subcontractors/subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in
this Contract and are intended to be used with respect to this Project. However, it is expressly
understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of Engineer’s designs under this
Contract (including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, investigations,
studies and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the property of County
to be thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects. Any such subsequent use made of
documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability to Engineer.

By execution of this Contract and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under
this Contract, Engineer hereby conveys, transfers and assigns to County all rights under the Federal
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs
and work product developed under this Contract. Copies may be retained by Engineer. Engineer
shall be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the
possession of or while being worked upon by Engineer or anyone connected with Engineer,
including agents, employees, Engineers or subcontractors/subconsultants. All documents so lost
or damaged shall be replaced or restored by Engineer without cost to County.

Upon execution of this Contract, Engineer grants to County permission to reproduce
Engineer’s work and documents for purposes of constructing, using and maintaining the Project,
provided that County shall comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums
when due, under this Contract. Engineer shall obtain similar permission from Engineer’s



subcontractors/subconsultants consistent with this Contract. If and upon the date Engineer is
adjudged in default of this Contract, County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed
design professionals to reproduce and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections or
additions to the work and documents for the purposes of completing, using and maintaining the
Project.

County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any permission
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of Engineer. However, County
shall be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers
to reproduce applicable portions of the Engineering Work Products appropriate to and for use in
the execution of the Work. Submission or distribution of Engineering Work Products to meet
official regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted.
Any unauthorized use of the Engineering Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without
liability to Engineer and its Engineers.

Prior to Engineer providing to County any Engineering Work Products in electronic form
or County providing to Engineer any electronic data for incorporation into the Engineering Work
Products, County and Engineer shall by separate written contract set forth the specific conditions
governing the format of such Engineering Work Products or electronic data, including any special
limitations not otherwise provided in this Contract. Any electronic files are provided by Engineer
for the convenience of County, and use of them is at County’s sole risk. In the case of any defects
in electronic files or any discrepancies between them and any hardcopy of the same documents
prepared by Engineer, the hardcopy shall prevail. Only printed copies of documents conveyed by
Engineer shall be relied upon.

Engineer shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other engineers
subsequent to the completion of the Project. Any such change shall be sealed by the engineer
making that change and shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified.

ARTICLE 16
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL

Engineer shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of
all Engineering Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the
Engineering Services as required. All employees of Engineer shall have such knowledge and
experience as will enable them to perform the duties assigned to them. Any employee of Engineer
who, in the reasonable opinion of County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental
to the Engineering Services shall immediately be removed from association with the Project when
so instructed by County. Engineer certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in
its employment for performance of the Engineering Services required under this Contract, or will
obtain such personnel from sources other than County. Engineer may not change the Project
Manager without prior written consent of County.



ARTICLE 17
SUBCONTRACTING

Engineer shall not assign, subcontract or transfer any portion of the Engineering Services
under this Contract without prior written approval from County. All subcontracts shall include the
provisions required in this Contract. No subcontract shall relieve Engineer of any responsibilities
under this Contract.

ARTICLE 18
REVIEW OF ENGINEERING SERVICES

Engineer's Engineering Services will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical
requirements and procedures.

A. Completion. Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be
submitted by Engineer on or before the dates specified in the applicable Work Authorization or
Supplemental Work Authorization related thereto. Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the required items,
as set out in the applicable Work Authorization, have been included in compliance with the
requirements of this Contract. The completeness of any Engineering Services submitted to County
shall be determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and County shall notify
Engineer in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Engineering Services have been
found to be incomplete. If the submission is Complete, County shall notify Engineer and County’s
technical review process will begin.

If the submission is not Complete, County shall notify Engineer, who shall perform such
professional services as are required to complete the Engineering Services and resubmit it to
County. This process shall be repeated until a submission is Complete.

B. Acceptance. County shall review the completed Engineering Services for
compliance with this Contract. If necessary, the completed Engineering Services shall be returned
to Engineer, who shall perform any required Engineering Services and resubmit it to County. This
process shall be repeated until the Engineering Services are Accepted. "Acceptance" or
“Accepted” shall mean that in the County’s reasonable opinion, substantial compliance with the
requirements of this Contract has been achieved.

C. Final Approval. After Acceptance, Engineer shall perform any required
modifications, changes, alterations, corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to
receive Final Approval by the County. "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal
recognition that the Engineering Services have been fully carried out.

D. Errors and Omissions. After Final Approval, Engineer shall, without additional
compensation, perform any work required as a result of Engineer's development of the work which
is found to be in error or omission due to Engineer’s negligence. However, any work required or
occasioned for the convenience of County after Final Approval shall be paid for as Additional
Engineering Services.



E. Disputes Over Classifications. In the event of any dispute over the classification
of Engineer’s Engineering Services as Complete, Accepted, or having attained Final Approved
under this Contract, the decision of the County shall be final and binding on Engineer, subject to
any civil remedy or determination otherwise available to the parties and deemed appropriate by
the parties.

F. County’s Reliance on Engineer. ENGINEER’S DUTIES AS SET FORTH HEREIN
SHALL AT NO TIME BE IN ANY WAY DIMINISHED BY REASON OF ANY REVIEW, EVALUATION OR
APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY NOR SHALL THE ENGINEER BE RELEASED FROM ANY LIABILITY BY
REASON OF SUCH REVIEW, EVALUATION OR APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY, IT BEING UNDERSTOOD
THAT THE COUNTY AT ALL TIMES 1S ULTIMATELY RELYING UPON THE ENGINEER’S SKILL,
ABILITY AND KNOWLEDGE IN PERFORMING THE ENGINEERING SERVICES REQUIRED
HEREUNDER.

ARTICLE 19
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/BREACH OF CONTRACT

Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by Engineer shall be grounds for
termination of this Contract, and any increased costs arising from Engineer’s default, breach of
contract, or violation of contract terms shall be paid by Engineer.

ARTICLE 20
TERMINATION

This Contract may be terminated as set forth below.

A. By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties.

B. By County, by notice in writing to Engineer, as a consequence of failure
by Engineer to perform the Engineering Services set forth herein in a
satisfactory manner.

C. By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations
as set forth herein.

D. By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of
Engineer, upon not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice to Engineer.
E. By satisfactory completion of all Engineering Services and obligations

described herein.

Should County terminate this Contract as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid to
Engineer. In determining the value of the Engineering Services performed by Engineer prior to
termination, County shall be the sole judge. Compensation for Engineering Services at
termination will be based on a percentage of the Engineering Services completed at that time.
Should County terminate this Contract under Subsection (D) immediately above, then the amount
charged during the thirty-day notice period shall not exceed the amount charged during the
preceding thirty (30) days.



If Engineer defaults in the performance of this Contract or if County terminates this
Contract for fault on the part of Engineer, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs
incurred by Engineer in performing the Engineering Services to the date of default, the amount of
Engineering Services required which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of
the Engineering Services which are usable to County, the cost to County of employing another
firm to complete the Engineering Services required and the time required to do so, and other
factors which affect the value to County of the Engineering Services performed at the time of
default.

The termination of this Contract and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed
above shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Contract. If the
termination of this Contract is due to the failure of Engineer to fulfill his/her/its contractual
obligations, then County may take over the Project and prosecute the Engineering Services to
completion. In such case, Engineer shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable
costs incurred by County.

Engineer shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues
arising out of any procurements made by Engineer in support of the Engineering Services under
this Contract.

ARTICLE 21
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

A. Compliance. Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local
laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any court,
or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting the performance of this Contract,
including without limitation, minimum/maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, and
licensing laws and regulations. Engineer shall furnish County with satisfactory proof of his/het/its
compliance.

Engineer shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the
Engineering Services contracted for herein.

B. Taxes. Engineer will pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the
Engineering Services performed hereunder. County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the
provisions of Section 151.309 of the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act.

ARTICLE 22
INDEMNIFICATION

ENGINEER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
THE COUNTY HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES,
JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES™) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM
AN NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY ENGINEER,



ENGINEER’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH
ENGINEER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ENGINEER’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER
ENTITY OVER WHICH ENGINEER EXERCISES CONTROL.

ENGINEER FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY
AND HOLD THE COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES,
JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES™) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM
ENGINEER’S FAILURE TO PAY ENGINEER’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR
SUPPLIERS, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS
CONTRACT BY ENGINEER.

ENGINEER FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY
AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE
CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT
OF THE USE OF ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY ENGINEER IN THE
PERFORMANCE OF THIS CONTRACT.

THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS CONTRACT AND/OR THE CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT LIMIT ENGINEER’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION. THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
AND/OR CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER. TO THE EXTENT
THAT ANY LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND
EXPENSES ARE CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF THE COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM
ENGINEER IS NOT LEGALLY LIABLE, ENGINEER’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO
ENGINEER’S FAULT. THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY THE
COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION.

IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST THE COUNTY IN WHICH
THE CONTRACTOR ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACTS, ERRORS OR
OMISSIONS OF ENGINEER, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR
SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH ENGINEER EXERCISES CONTROL, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS, THEN THE COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO JOIN
ENGINEER IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDINGS AT THE COUNTY’S COST. ENGINEER SHALL ALSO HOLD THE
COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY THE COUNTY TO THE EXTENT THAT ENGINEER, ANY OF ITS
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES
OVER WHICH ENGINEER EXERCISES CONTROL, CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO CONTRACTOR,
INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES INCURRED BY THE COUNTY IN
CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE ENGINEER, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH ENGINEER
EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT.

ARTICLE 23



ENGINEER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Engineer shall be responsible for the accuracy of his/her/its Engineering Services and shall
promptly make necessary revisions or corrections to its work product resulting from errors,
omissions, or negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation. County shall
determine Engineer’s responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or
omissions, subject to the dispute resolution provisions of Article 33. Engineer shall not be relieved
of responsibility for subsequent correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or
for clarification of any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the Project has been
completed.

ARTICLE 24
ENGINEER’S SEAL

The responsible engineer shall sign, seal and date all appropriate engineering submissions
to County in accordance with the Texas Engineering Practice Act and the rules of the State Board
of Registration for Professional Engineers.

ARTICLE 25
INSURANCE

& Engineer must comply with the following insurance requirements at all times during this
ontract:

A. Coverage Limits. Engineer, at Engineer’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain
during the entire term while this Contract is in effect the following insurance:

o

Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements.

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury
and Property Damage limits of $1.000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in
the aggregate.

3. Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with
combined minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of
$500,000.00 per occurrence and $1,000.000.00 in the aggregate.

4. Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of

$2.000.000.00 per claim.

B. Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation. County, its directors, officers and
employees shall be added as additional insureds under policies listed under (2) and (3) above, and
on those policies where County, its directors, officers and employees are additional insureds, such
insurance shall be primary and any insurance maintained by County shall be excess and not
contribute with it. Such policies shall also include waivers of subrogation in favor of County.

C. Premiums and Deductible. Engineer shall be responsible for payment of
premiums for all of the insurance coverages required under this section. Engineer further agrees
that for each claim, suit or action made against insurance provided hereunder, with respect to all



matters for which the Engineer is responsible hereunder, Engineer shall be solely responsible for
all deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions over
$50,000 in the Engineer’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by County in
advance.

D. Commencement of Work. Engineer shall not commence any field work under
this Contract until he/she/it has obtained all required insurance and such insurance has been
approved by County. As further set out below, Engineer shall not allow any
subcontractor/subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection with this
Contract until all required insurance has been obtained and approved and such approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld. Approval of the insurance by County shall not relieve or decrease the
liability of Engineer hereunder.

E. Insurance Company Rating. The required insurance must be written by a
company approved to do business in the State or Texas with a financial standing of at least an A-
rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a similar rating system recognized within the
insurance industry at the time the policy is issued.

F. Certification of Coverage. Engineer shall furnish County with a certification of
coverage issued by the insurer. Engineer shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit
any insurance to lapse. In addition to any other notification requires set forth hereunder,
Engineer shall also notify County, within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt, of any notices of
expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in coverage it receives from its
insurer.

G. No Arbitration. It is the intention of the County and agreed to and hereby
acknowledged by the Engineer, that no provision of this Contract shall be construed to require the
County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the settlement of any claim, cause of action or dispute,
except as specifically required in direct connection with an insurance claim or threat of claim under
an insurance policy required hereunder or as may be required by law or a court of law with
jurisdiction over the provisions of this Contract.

H, Subcontractor/Subconsultant’s Insurance. Without limiting any of the other
obligations or liabilities of Engineer, Engineer shall require each subcontractor/subconsultant
performing work under this Contract (to the extent a subcontractor/subconsultant is allowed by
County) to maintain during the term of this Contract, at the subcontractor/subconsultant’s own
expense, the same stipulated minimum insurance required in this Article above, including the
required provisions and additional policy conditions as shown below in this Article.

Engineer shall obtain and monitor the certificates of insurance from each
subcontractor/subconsultant in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements.
Engineer must retain the certificates of insurance for the duration of this Contract, and shall have
the  responsibility = of  enforcing these insurance requirements among its
subcontractor/subconsultants. County shall be entitled, upon request and without expense, to
receive copies of these certificates of insurance.



I Insurance Policy Endorsements. Each insurance policy shall include the
following conditions by endorsement to the policy:

1. County shall be notified thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, non-
renewal or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given
to County by certified mail to:

Williamson County Auditor
c/o: Pam Navarrette

710 Main Street, Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78626

With copy to: Williamson County Dept. of Infrastructure
Attn: Director of Road & Bridge
3151 SE Inner Loop, Suite B
Georgetown, Texas 78626

2. The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage
currently held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured
Retentions of whatever nature.

J. Cost of Insurance. The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and
maintained by Engineer shall be borne solely by Engineer, with certificates of insurance
evidencing such minimum coverage in force to be filed with County. Such Certificates of
Insurance are evidenced as Exhibit F herein entitled “Certificates of Insurance.”

ARTICLE 26
COPYRIGHTS

County shall have the royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce,
publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, any reports developed by Engineer for
governmental purposes.

ARTICLE 27
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their
successors, lawful assigns, and legal representatives. Engineer may not assign, sublet or transfer
any interest in this Contract, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without
obtaining the prior written consent of County.



ARTICLE 28
SEVERABILITY

In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such invalidity, illegality
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Contract shall be construed
as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

ARTICLE 29
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED

This Contract constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto, and supersedes any prior
understandings or written or oral contracts between the parties respecting the subject matter
defined herein. This Contract may only be amended or supplemented by mutual agreement of the
parties hereto in writing.

ARTICLE 30
ENGINEER’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS

Engineer agrees to maintain, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this
Contract, detailed records identifying each individual performing the Engineering Services, the
date or dates the services were performed, the applicable hourly rates, the total amount billed for
each individual and the total amount billed for all persons, records of reimbursable costs and
expenses of other providers and provide such other details as may be requested by the County
Auditor for verification purposes. Engineer agrees that County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Contract,
have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and
records of Engineer which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Contract
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Engineer further
agrees that County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary Engineer
facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in
compliance with the provisions of this section. County shall give Engineer reasonable advance
notice of intended audits.

ARTICLE 31
NOTICES

All notices to either party by the other required under this Contract shall be personally
delivered or mailed to such party at the following respective addresses:

County: Williamson County Judge

710 Main Street, Suite 101
Georgetown, Texas 78626

With copy to: Williamson County Dept. of Infrastructure



Attn: Director of Road & Bridge
3151 SE Inner Loop, Suite B
Georgetown, Texas 78626

and to: Office of General Counsel
Williamson County
710 Main Street, Suite 102
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Engineer: Mike Nichols, P.E.
Freese and Nichols, Inc.
10431 Morado Circle, Building 5, Suite 300
Austin, TX 78759

ARTICLE 32
GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Time is of the Essence. Subject to Article 3 hereof, Engineer understands and
agrees that time is of the essence and that any failure of Engineer to complete the Engineering
Services for each phase of this Contract within the agreed work schedule set out in the applicable
Work Authorization may constitute a material breach of this Contract. Engineer shall be fully
responsible for his/het/its delays or for failures to use his/her/its reasonable efforts in accordance
with the terms of this Contract and the Engineer’s standard of performance as defined herein.
Where damage is caused to County due to Engineer’s negligent failure to perform County may
accordingly withhold, to the extent of such damage, Engineer’s payments hereunder without
waiver of any of County’s additional legal rights or remedies.

B. Force Majeure. Neither County nor Engineer shall be deemed in violation of this
Contract if prevented from performing any of their obligations hereunder by reasons for which
they are not responsible or circumstances beyond their control. However, notice of such
impediment or delay in performance must be timely given, and all reasonable efforts undertaken
to mitigate its effects.

C. Enforcement and Venue. This Contract shall be enforceable in Georgetown,
Williamson County, Texas, and if legal action is necessary by either party with respect to the
enforcement of any or all of the terms or conditions herein, exclusive venue for same shall lie in
Williamson County, Texas. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws and court decisions of the State of Texas excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

D. Standard of Performance. The standard of care for all professional engineering,
consulting and related services performed or furnished by Engineer and its employees under this



Contract will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of Engineer’s profession practicing
under the same or similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.

E. Opinion of Probable Cost. Any opinions of probable Project cost or probable
construction cost provided by Engineer are made on the basis of information available to Engineer
and on the basis of Engineer’s experience and qualifications and represents its judgment as an
experienced and qualified professional engineer. However, since Engineer has no control over the
cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, or over the contractor(s’)
methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer does
not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project or construction cost will not vary from opinions
of probable cost Engineer prepares.

F. Opinions and Determinations. Where the terms of this Contract provide for
action to be based upon opinion, judgment, approval, review, or determination of either party
hereto, such terms are not intended to be and shall never be construed as permitting such opinion,
judgment, approval, review, or determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable.

G. Reports of Accidents. Within 24 hours after Engineer becomes aware of the
occurrence of any accident or other event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person
or property of any third person (other than an employee of the Engineer), whether or not it results
from or involves any action or failure to act by the Engineer or any employee or agent of the
Engineer and which arises in any manner from the performance of this Contract, the Engineer
shall send a written report of such accident or other event to the County, setting forth a full and
concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto. The Engineer shall also immediately send the
County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents served upon the Engineer,
its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in connection with any matter
before any court arising in any manner from the Engineer’s performance of work under this
Contract.

H. Gender, Number and Headings. Words of any gender used in this Contract shall
be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held
to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires. The headings and section numbers are
for convenience only and shall not be considered in interpreting or construing this Contract.

L Construction. Each party hereto acknowledges that it and its counsel have
reviewed this Contract and that the normal rules of construction are not applicable and there will
be no presumption that any ambiguities will be resolved against the drafting party in the
interpretation of this Contract.

J. Independent Contractor Relationship. Both parties hereto, in the performance
of this Contract, shall act in an individual capacity and not as agents, employees, partners, joint
ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed
or construed to be the employees or agents of the other party for any purposes whatsoever.

K. No Waiver of Immunities. Nothing in this Contract shall be deemed to waive,
modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to County, its past or present



officers, employees, or agents or employees, nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of
any third party. County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability
of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

L. Texas Public Information Act. To the extent, if any, that any provision in this
Contract is in conflict with Tex. Gov’t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information
Act”), the same shall be of no force or effect. Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed
that County, its officers and employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas in regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any
items or data furnished to County as to whether or not the same are available to the public. It is
further understood that County’s officers and employees shall have the right to rely on the advice,
decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that County, its officers and employees shall
have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person
or persons, of any items or data furnished to County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice,
decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

M. Governing Terms and Conditions. If there is an irreconcilable conflict between
the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract or any Contract Amendment and the terms and
conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix, Work Authorization or Supplemental Work
Authorization to this Contract, the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract or any Contract
Amendment shall control over the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix, Work
Authorization or Supplemental Work Authorization to this Contract.

N. Meaning of Day. For purposes of this Contract, all references to a “day” or “days”
shall mean a calendar day or calendar days.

0. Appropriation of Funds by County. County believes it has sufficient funds
currently available and authorized for expenditure to finance the costs of this Contract. Engineer
understands and agrees that County’s payment of amounts under this Contract is contingent on
the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County,
in the exercise of reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under this
Contract. It is further understood and agreed by Engineer that County shall have the right to
terminate this Contract at the end of any County fiscal year if the governing body of County does
not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to Engineer.

P. Termination of Work Authorization. Should it be determined that the progress
in the production of Engineer’s services and work does not satisfy the requirements of the
approved Work Authorization as provided by Exhibit "C", attached hereto, the County shall
review the approved Work Authorization with the Engineer to determine the corrective action
needed, including potential termination of such Work Authorization by Williamson County.
Additionally, if an approved Work Authorization has not been completed by the end of the
applicable County fiscal year under this contract and the Williamson County Commissioners
Court does not provide for funding through its budgetary oversight for the subsequent County
fiscal year, Williamson County reserves the right to terminate such Work Authorization at its
discretion.



ARTICLE 33
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, County and Engineer shall work together
in good faith to resolve any controversy, dispute or claim between them which arises out of or
relates to this Contract, whether stated in tort, contract, statute, claim for benefits, bad faith,
professional liability or otherwise ("Claim"). If the parties are unable to resolve the Claim within
thirty (30) days following the date in which one party sent written notice of the Claim to the other
party, and if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such Claim shall be addressed through non-binding
mediation. A single mediator engaged in the practice of law, who is knowledgeable about subject
matter of this Contract, shall be selected by agreement of the parties and serve as the mediator.
Any mediation under this Contract shall be conducted in Williamson County, Texas. The
mediator’s fees shall be borne equally between the parties. Such non-binding mediation is a
condition precedent to seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction, but this provision shall
not preclude either party from filing a lawsuit in a court of competent jurisdiction prior to
completing a mediation if necessary to preserve the statute of limitations, in which case such
lawsuit shall be stayed pending completion of the mediation process contemplated herein. This
provision shall survive the termination of the Contract.

ARTICLE 34
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT

During the performance of this Contract and to the extent the Project is a federally funded
project, Engineer, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest agrees as follows:

A, Compliance with Regulations. The Engineer shall comply with the Regulations
relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation
(hereinafter, "DOT") Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from
time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by
reference and made a part of this Contract.

B. Nondiscrimination. The Engineer, with regard to the work performed by it during
the Contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection
and retention of subcontractors/subconsultants, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment. The Engineer shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination
prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract
covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and
Equipment. In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Engineer
for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of
equipment, each potential subcontractor/subconsultant or supplier shall be notified by the Engineer
of the Engineer's obligations under this Contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.



D. Information and Reports. The Engineer shall provide all information and reports
required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its
books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by
the County (referred to in this Article as the “Recipient”) or the Texas Department of
Transportation to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and
instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of
another who fails or refuses to furnish this information the Engineer shall so certify to the
Recipient, or the Texas Department of Transportation as appropriate, and shall set forth what
efforts it has made to obtain the information.

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the Engineer's noncompliance with
the nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the Recipient shall impose such contract
sanctions as it or the Texas Department of Transportation may determine to be appropriate,
including, but not limited to:

1. withholding of payments to the Engineer under the contract until the
Engineer complies, and/or;

2. cancellation, termination or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part.

F. Incorporation of Provisions. The Engineer shall include the provisions of

Subsections (A) through (F) above in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and
leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The
Engineer shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or
the Texas Department of Transportation may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions
including sanctions for non-compliance: Provided, however, that, in the event a contractor
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor/subconsultant or
supplier as a result of such direction, the Engineer may request the Recipient to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient, and, in addition, the Engineer may request the
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

SIGNATORY WARRANTY

The undersigned signatory for Engineer hereby represents and warrants that the signatory
is an officer of the organization for which he/she has executed this Contract and that he/she has
full and complete authority to enter into this Contract on behalf of the firm. The above-stated
representations and warranties are made for the purpose of inducing County to enter into this
Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County has caused this Contract to be signed in its name by
its duly authorized County Judge, as has Engineer, signing by and through its duly authorized
representative(s), thereby binding the parties hereto, their successors, assigns and representatives
for the faithful and full performance of the terms and provisions hereof, to be effective as of the
date of the last party’s execution below. NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, TO AMEND, TERMINATE OR MODIFY THIS CONTRACT, EXCEPT
PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT.



COUNTY

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

By:%/ %

Dan A. GattisyCounty Judge
Date: d9— &7 .20 /£
ENGINEER
FREESE AND NICHOLS

By WA’%

Printed Name: Victor M. Vasquez, P.E.

Title: Principal

Date: Mqﬂclry [ 3 20 1L

SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me the undersigned authority by VA Jger VAS C!’ W2 &
the YO\ N pal of ENGINEER 0n behalf of said firm.

Notary Public in and for the

AMANDA N GRIFFIN State of Texas

My Commission Expires
May 1, 2017 My commission expires: i I ) l L]




LIST OF EXHIBITS ATTACHED

(1) Exhibit A Debarment Certification

(2) Exhibit B Engineering Services

(3) Exhibit C Work Authorization

(4) Exhibit D Rate Schedule

(5) Exhibit E Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy

(6) Exhibit F Certificates of Insurance



EXHIBIT A
DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §

I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States
and the State of Texas, certifies that Engineer and its principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency:
(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* transaction or
contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(1)(b) of this certification;
(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions* terminated for cause or default; and
(e) Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for
professional accreditation within the past three years.

M&A&I&—

Name of Firm / 7

— ol 7Y

Signature of Certlfymg Official

v,c-la/r. M Vﬂn}t’z—

Printed Name of Cértlfymg Official

g

Title of C ertlfymg Official

MAF-KA 5 JOL{

Date

(2) Where the PROVIDER is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such
PROVIDER shall attach an explanation to this certification.

* federal, state, or local



SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me the undersigned authority by A (/J( v Nas CL\/LQ%*
the ¥TiNUp of I?Y[\\]mae/r‘ , on behalf of

Wl/\

AMANDA N GRIFFIN Notarnyubllc in and for the
My Commission Expires State of Texas

said firm.

May 1, 2017

My commission expires: Z |\ 7]




EXHIBIT B

ENGINEERING SERVICES

Project Description

4+ San Gabriel Ranch Road (SGRR) is located in Williamson County on Lackey Creek. The
roadway suffered significant damage in recent floods and is currently closed to traffic. The road

“embankment creates a small lake just upstream of SGRR. This lake has very limited storage
capacity and the control structures consist of one ~27-inch corrugated metal pipe for a principal
spillway and two ~30-inch concrete pipes for the emergency spillway. The drainage area is
approximately five square miles and the spillways are inadequate for passing anything other than
very small storms. When the pipes are overwhelmed, the roadway embankment is then subjected
to overtopping. This overtopping recently resulted in damage to the roadway and subsequent
closure of the roadway.
The roadway embankment is classified as a dam by Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ) and TCEQ has performed several inspections throughout the years. Williamson
County does not own the dam but is responsible for the roadway. Williamson County has
selected Freese and Nichols, Inc. to evaluate the frequent flooding of the roadway and develop
possible alternatives to reduce the frequency of roadway overtopping and to provide erosion
protection for the site. As part of the evaluation, Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) will perform a
high level review of the dam as it relates to TCEQ Dam Safety Criteria.

It is anticipated that there will be two Work Authorizations that will include, but not limited to, a
Design Phase and a Construction Phase:

A. DESIGN PHASE

Evaluation and Schematic Design
1. Perform survey

a. Roadway profile and select cross sections of embankment

b. Flow line elevations for existing pipes and channel

c. Pond cross sections to determine storage capacity

d. 1-ft topo of the spillway approach channel

e. 1-ft topo of the river channel from the roadway to 100-feet downstream

2. Perform geotechnical Investigation

a. Perform four borings

b. Provide geotechnical witness logging of soil strata and characterizations

c. Perform geological reconnaissance of soil and bedrock exposures in the Lackey
Creek channel between the spillway and its confluence with the North Fork San
Gabriel River

d. Perform basic soil tests (Atterberg limits, minus 200, moisture contents) and
penetrometer tests as appropriate



e. Perform preliminary evaluation of dam embankment stability of existing dam in
accordance with TCEQ Dam Safety Guidelines for steady-state and rapid
drawdown loading conditions.

. Perform hydrologic and hydraulic (H&H) analyses in accordance with TCEQ Dam

Safety Guidelines and City of Austin Drainage Criteria Manual.

a. Evaluate drainage area and runoff characteristics for existing and ultimate

development

b. Develop stage-storage-discharge rating curves to represent existing dam
conditions

c. Develop peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 2 to 100-year recurrence
intervals

d. Develop peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 75% PMF

. Develop schematic design for three alternative repair concepts as follows:

a. Removing embankment at approximate location of original Lackey Creek stream
channel and installation of bridge crossing Lackey Creek while keeping same
roadway alignment.

b. Leaving dam hydraulics and roadway alignment unchanged, replace the principal
spillway corrugated metal pipe, re-laying the existing concrete pipe, and
providing channel and slope armoring at outfall of the present emergency
spillway concrete pipes.

c. Removing the existing emergency spillway concrete pipes and installation of an
emergency spillway structure to pass flows under the roadway and into a drop
structure at the outfall, including armoring the outfall area as needed, replacing
the principal spillway corrugated metal pipe. Evaluate and address seepage
control and erosion along the embankment interface. Keep roadway elevations
unchanged.

. Evaluate the following for each alternative:

a. Peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 2-100-year recurrence intervals

b. Peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 75% PMF

c. Increased water levels in Lackey Creek from San Gabriel Ranch Road to
confluence with San Gabriel River.

d. Opinion of probable construction costs

e. Permit requirements

. Provide documentation of proposed alternatives

a. Document geotechnical results in Technical Memorandum

b. Document H&H results in Technical Memorandum

c. Summarize results of alternative analysis in Summary Report

d. Attend up to two (2) meetings with Williamson County staff to present results

e. Attend one (1) public meeting to inform area residents of concepts

. Deliverables



Design
l.

Geotechnical Results Technical Memorandum
Hydrology and Hydraulics Technical Memorandum
Alternative Summary Report

Posters for public meeting

oo o9

Environmental Permitting
a. Develop permitting strategy for selected alternative.
b. Site visit by Environmental Scientist
¢. Coordination with Texas Historical Commission (THC).
d. Develop and submit a pre-construction notification (PCN) to USACE.

2. Prepare conceptual set of sketches for either alternative 4.b or 4.c based upon
County’s selection. The County has indicated previously that the bridge alternative is
unlikely to be selected.

a. Provide proposed typical section and cross sections
b. Provide proposed plan and profile sketches

c. Provide proposed drainage feature sketches

d. Provide table of contents for technical specifications

3. Prepare 90% set of construction documents

a. Finalize
1. Roadway grades and cross sections
2. Grading plans
3. Roadway details
4. Detailing of all drainage structures
5. Environmental Controls
b. Provide complete set of draft specifications
c. Provide opinion of probable construction cost
d. Submit plans and specifications to TCEQ Dam Safety

4. Develop final plans and specifications for bidding that incorporate County’s latest
comments

5. Submit Issued for Bid plans and specifications to County and TCEQ Dam Safety

6. Update OPCC for Issued for Bid set

7. Deliverables

a. Conceptual sketches, specification outline
b. 90% Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
c. Issued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction
Cost
Bid Phase
1. Attend Pre-Bid Meeting

2. Prepare any necessary addenda



3. Attend Bid Opening
4. Assist County with bid evaluations

B. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

FNI will proceed with the performance of construction phase services as described below. FNI
will endeavor to protect COUNTY in providing these services; however, it is understood that
FNI does not guarantee the Contractor's performance, nor is FNI responsible for supervision of
the Contractor's operation and employees. FNI shall not be responsible for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction selected by the Contractor, or any safety
precautions and programs relating in any way to the condition of the premises, the work of the
Contractor or any Subcontractor. FNI shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any
person (except its own employees or agents) at the Project site or otherwise performing any of
the work of the Project.

The ENGINEER or ENGINEER OF RECORD shall be defined as the professional engineer
responsible for the preparation, modification, and interpretation of the design documents for the
project including evaluations, analyses, technical reports, plans and specifications.
The purpose of this phase is for FNI to provide the following professional engineering services
to support the construction in accordance with Texas Administrative Code Title 30, Part 1,
Chapter 299 Dams and Reservoirs. The overall construction schedule is assumed to be 120
calendar days. Any effort directly or indirectly related to a time extension to the CONTRACTOR
and project duration will be an additional service for FNI.
General Construction Management Services shall include:

1. Prepare and provide COUNTY with five (S) sets of "Issued for Construction”

construction plans and contract documents incorporating addenda changes. Provide
TCEQ with one (1) copy of "Issued for Construction" documents.

2. Assist COUNTY in conducting pre-construction conference with the CONTRACTOR
and review construction schedules prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to the
requirements of the construction contract. Coordinate communication procedures with
COUNTY and CONTRACTOR.

3. Designated FNI staff that participated in the design phase shall visit the project site for up
to four (4) visits to observe the general progress of the construction work, observe critical
construction activities, and coordinate with the COUNTY'S Onsite Representative. In this
effort FNI will endeavor to protect the COUNTY against defects and deficiencies in the
work of CONTRACTOR and will report any observed deficiencies or non-conforming
work in writing to the COUNTY. Visits to the site in excess of the number listed under
this item are an additional service. The site visits under this task do not include
attendance to monthly progress meetings or special technical support visits.

4. Attend monthly construction progress meetings (one-half day trip per meeting, 4
meetings total) separate from the site visits described above to evaluate overall progress,
submittal status, and contract changes.



5. Interpret the intent of drawings and specifications for COUNTY and Contractor. Review
key contractor's submittals for consistency with plans, specifications, and project
requirements, including requests for information, modification requests, certified test
results, and shop drawings in accordance with the requirements of the construction
contract documents. Prepare design clarification responses required.

6. Submit monthly reports of construction progress to the COUNTY and TCEQ Dam
Safety. Reports will describe construction progress in general terms and summarize
project costs, construction schedule and pending and approved contract modifications.
Report outline will be based on TCEQ Dam Safety Program guidelines for Design and
Construction for Dams in Texas. Provide COUNTY and TCEQ with one (1) copy of
monthly report.

7. Conduct, in company with COUNTY’s representative, a substantial completion review of
the Project for conformance with the design concept of the Project and general
compliance with the Construction Contract Documents. Prepare a list of deficiencies to
be corrected by the contractor before recommendation of final payment. Conduct a
follow up final review to determine that items on the substantial completion checklist
have been completed and are in accordance with Construction Contract Documents.
Review and comment on the certificate of completion and the recommendation for final
payment to the CONTRACTOR.

8. Revise the construction drawings in accordance with the information furnished to the
COUNTY to by CONTRACTOR reflecting changes in the Project made during
construction. "Record Drawings" shall be provided by FNI to the following:

a. COUNTY, three (3) sets of prints;
b. TCEQ, one (1) set of prints;
9. Submit Record Drawings within sixty (60) calendar days upon receipt of all

documentation from CONTRACTOR of record changes. Submit project completion
certificate per TCEQ requirements within 45 days of project substantial completion.

Deliverables
d. Conceptual sketches, specification outline

e. 90% Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

f. Issued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
g. Issued-For-Construction Plans

h. Record Drawings

C. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by CLIENT, which are not included in
the above described basic services, are described as follows:
1. Additional survey and geotechnical investigations

2. Hydraulic or hydrologic impact on San Gabriel River
3. FEMA floodplain coordination, including Letter of Map Revision



USACE Individual Permit

Permitting for dam removal

Bridge design

Additional construction phase services

A L

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

COUNTY shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of
FNI:
1. Obtain Right-Of-Entry or perform public notifications as needed to conduct survey

services, geotechnical investigation, and site visits.
Right-of-way and easement document preparation

Public Involvement Coordination

Onsite resident representation during construction

Quality control testing during construction

Ll



EXHIBIT C
WORK AUTHORIZATION
(To Be Completed and Executed After Contract Execution)

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.
PROJECT:

This Work Authorization is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Williamson County
Contract for Engineering Services, being dated , 20 and entered into
by and between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the
"County") and (the "Engineer").

Partl. The Engineer will provide the following Engineering Services set forth in Attachment “B”
of this Work Authorization.

Part 2. The maximum amount payable for services under this Work Authorization without
modification is

Part 3. Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall
be made in accordance with the Contract.

Part 4. This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance and full
execution of the parties hereto and shall terminate on ; 28 : The
Engineering Services set forth in Attachment “B” of this Work Authorization shall be fully
completed on or before said date unless extended by a Supplemental Work Authorization.

Part 5. This Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations
provided under the Contract.

Part 6. This Work Authorization is hereby accepted and acknowledged below.

EXECUTED this __ day of 320
ENGINEER: COUNTY:
[Insert Company Name HERE)] Williamson County, Texas
By: By:
Signature Signature
Printed Name Printed Name

Title Title



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County

Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer

Attachment C - Work Schedule

Attachment D - Fee Schedule



EXHIBIT D

RATE SCHEDULE

Please see attached rate sheet, fee, and schedule.

CPI Rate Adjustments: Rates will remain firm for the initial first year of the Contract and such
rates shall be deemed the “Initial Base Rates”. Engineer must request rate adjustments, in writing,
at least thirty (30) days prior to each annual anniversary date of the Contract and any rate changes
will take effect on the first day following the prior year. If Engineer fails to request a CPI rate
adjustment, as set forth herein, the adjustment will be effective thirty (30) days after the County
receives Engineer’s written request. No retroactive rate adjustments will be allowed.

Price adjustments will be made in accordance with changes in the U.S. Department of Labor
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, South Region (Base 1982-84
=100).

The rate adjustment will be determined by multiplying the Initial Base Rates by a fraction, the
numerator of which is the index number for most recently released index before each annual
anniversary date of the Contract and the denominator of which is the index number for the first
month of the Contract (the index number for the month in which the Contract was originally
executed). If the products are greater than the Initial Base Rates, County will pay the greater
amounts as the rates during the successive year until the next rate adjustment. Rates for each
successive year will never be less than the Initial Base Rates.



ATTACHMENT CO

COMPENSATION

Compensation to FNI for Basic Services in Attachment SC shall be computed on the basis of the Schedule of Charges, but shall
not exceed Three Hundred Six Thousand Seven Hundred Two Dollars and No Cents ($306,702). If FNI sees the Scope of
Services changing so that Additional Services are needed, including but not limited to those services described as Additional
Services in Attachment SC, FNI will notify OWNER for OWNER's approval before proceeding. Additional Services shall be
computed based on the Schedule of Charges.

Schedule of Charges:
Position Rate
Professional - 1 (Env. Scientist I-1ll, Hydrologist I-lil, GIS I-lII) 113
Professional - 2 (Engineer |-, Hydrologist IV, GIS V) 137
Professional - 3 (Engineer IV, Env. Scientist 1V, Hydrologist V, GIS V, Senior Geologist) 156
Professlonal - 4 (Engineer V, Env. Scientist V-VI) 178
Professional - 5 (Engineer VI, Env. Scientist VII, Hydrologist VI) 209
Professional - 6 (Engineer VII-VIII, Env. Scientist VIII) 240
Construction Manager - 1 91
Construction Manager - 2 117
Construction Manager - 3 138
Construction Manager - 4 173
CAD Technician/Designer - 1 96
CAD Technician/Designer - 2 126
CAD Technician/Designer - 3 153
Corporate Project Support - 1 92
Corporate Project Support - 2 11
Corporate Project Support - 3 148
Intemn/ Coop 57
Rates for In-House Services
Technology Charge Bulk Printing and Reproduction
$8.50 per hour B&W Color
Small Format (per copy) $0.10 $0.25
Travel Large Format (persq. ft)
Standard IRS Rates Bond $0.25 $0.75
Glossy / Mylar $0.75 $1.25
Vinyl / Adhesive $1.50 $2.00
Mounting (per sq. ft.) $2.00
Binding (per binding) $0.25
OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES:

Other direct expenses are reimbursed at actual cost. They include outside printing and reproduction expense, communication
expense, travel, transportation and subsistence away from the FNI office and other miscellaneous expenses directly related to the
work, including costs of laboratory analysis, test, and other work required to be done by independent persons ather than staff
members. For Resident Representative services performed by non-FNI employees and CAD services performed In-house by non-
FNI employees where FNI provides workspace and equipment to perform such services, these services will be billed at cost.

These rates are subject to annual adjustment. Last Updated February 2015.

2022015
FNI I{Zt_:”/

OWNER



Frosse and Nichels, ihe

L:\Resources\OLCRWWilliamson County\San Gabrel River Ranch Road\San Gabriel River Ranch Road Fee-Classificatiors Added for Cliernt xism

‘Willismzon oty
9-Mar-18
= Detailod Cost Broakdown
e i ] L Corparats Propet | Corpora Conmucion CAD Technean/ | CAD Teehneant
= - | Suppant Supon 1 | [T Deagrar2 Devgrer 1 Total Hours T°';","';:b°' Tm'E'E'X‘:"" Total Sub Effort|  Total Effort
Hourly il Aats 517800 515500 $13790 514800 s00_ | shm 312600 600 2 |
| Doy, T 2 + =T 1340 = 10,354
’ 1 = 5 s
= z 3 it TE0 | E -
— 10 3400 285 -
—= i 34 158 arz *
= R 3 3 13 fea= | 111 -
gr3 % 1511 S - 2
=% = = =
] (73 Az i o) a5l P - (5]
7 = = — === = = s 386 P ans
1 2 1 = i —— __19 =52 as * BT
4 ES 1 13 720 103 - Bz
; I i 5 - . -
| 2 4 _ 4 | 3z 088 2 - €358
1 2 3 n H 35 7000 358 - T8
] 4 & £ 7010 37 TS
i i - Is - - = -
: 14 i3 1 = 3 6732 388 - 7,028 ]
2 i) (3 1l o 3 G 204 - 4750
20 355 170 - 3730
3 1Z a i 30 2535 255 - 180
= x = ¥ 58 5408 s02 - a10
i3 I i E] & ] = 5,281 318 - 556
T £l 3 3 g T 18 ) 153 B 577 |
3 i : 2 £ £ 32 £0x7 E=Tl L, 384
| 10 1 2 [ 2 3a 5564 487 . 131
i § - - - -
= ] — = ] 2
N i3 2 1% 135 -
= : - i3 4396 204 B
£l F 3 1o 18364 o35
i ] A3 1T = 5 i = 3622 75711 E 74 374 |
[ 2 £l 3= $a33 F= 5331
——= i ] =2 = ] 121 =oEn RIS E
4 1 I 51 14,572 B2 -
it 2 ] T fid B.358 200
EL 18 = ol ] 10,440 = - 11,478
2 = 3 718 43 - T |
E 3 | ——| = o 5784 =54 ES D48
£ i 8 34 5550 20l S ¥ 236}
3 10 2152 18]S B 270
A —_— = e — — ! SR RN 2 ) R
= = S = i 3 °5 == 1F. B £ 3 -
i < - Is - s -
4 4 £ & 5 275 E=T] B 3 184 |
= Ed = — = 1 4 RS =
= a 8 50 555 -
a0 4800 300 -
= 7 E3 D E =8 z
8 £ (3 ® — 3 178 308 | P
16 20 1 3 608 170 -
2 10 3 2104 [T -
= = == = — =i = £ = —— — 20 s _3p228s 170 =1%
] - £ . -
Total Baslc Strvices Hoars EI0) =3 [EE] 345 3 0 1 7| 20 157a]s FERE S 15843 70,555
Total Basic Seryices Labor Efort § 76560 § 6887 § 80634 3 301083 4740zl & 59703 2208 2488 2007 % 2498 § s -

IRT0E



Freese arnd Nichols, ine

Vmamson County
el Ranch Roa i 30603 |
9-Mar-16

Detalled Cost Breakdown

LgFormat- | LgFormat- | LgFormat- | LgFermat- | LyFermai- | LgFormat- J

Phase | Task Expenses Tech Charge Miles BAW (sheet) | Seslor (wrmat) | Binding (wmch) | Bond - B&W | Glossy/Mylar - | VinyliAdhesive 1 Sand - Caler | GiossyMybe - Viny/Adhssne

(sq 1t} BEW (sq ft) | BAW (sq ft) Isq it} Colar (= ) | Color(sq ft] |

306,702

Total Exp
Effort

T

saten

| St Wist
TFiaid geology and baring lopging, iog producson
| Slepe sty and seecage analy=s

RENINE

150- 87

|THE Caoordination
Doveiop PN

b

e
CRRCH
i

[ 178

-
i}
B
o
=

oo
15

BigisiE | 8
'

|
ke

bl e

8}

8|
i

B
i

Total Baslc Servioes Homs. 1,574
Tatal Basic Services Expensed Effort § 1337 525§ LN

sl
g

203 Li\Resources\OL CRWWiltiamaon County\San Gabnel River Ranch Road\San Gabriel River Ranch Road Fee-Classificatiors Added for Cliert xlsm 812016



Freese and Nichols, Inc.

“Wiliamson County
San Gabriel Ranch Road
9-Mar-16
Detalled Cost Breakdown

Phase | Task Subconsultants Gorrondana Hott = Em::
T - ; EEET S E i == z — g 10,84
| Sty |7 Geslestmeal Inyesigaion S - ' S

Projoct setup/lckolf and crifer cosrdmation = 3 3
Sitm Vit T } — = = > =r = ; =

| Fmid geakegy and b lnggey; log + -

| gu&hgg gﬁhwmmm | L

| samiify and sEeoage SralEs § i - =1 =

5 Alemmve ir Evaiuaton = i} . 4 : — —=

£ Tecnmeal . I &

" Survrary Recart I : I : ‘

Deusidp Figures 2 aheets par = I =

i =

1 =

= 3 i =

- =

Aitieg = — — =

‘ Table of Conterss - Teatinecs| Specificatons 3 =

3 7

3 -

[Cesgn| 3 BON Pamsand =k — -

s =

CPLE = >

4__Fnal Plans and Specfications -

3 =

3 .

s =

= =
i%ﬁ T Ta50 8 > |3 PN | R P ] P - 1% - 13 P K] Rl | —
LR 0415 § =% i) % T ¥ EE} B ] B =13 LA ; b I TN

3of3 L:AResources \OLCRWWilliamson County\San Gabriel River Ranch Road\San Gabriel River Ranch Road Fee-Classifications Added for Clierd xism




San Gabriel Ranch Road

Freese and Nichols
i Tach N Thurainn art Finah — a1l TR My 6 PTERT g I8, 6 T = ot LEIE Pl Y AT __mEEDET Tap
== 3 = & 3 : S ¢ L3 = o= S—: £ 1 £ 5 = [} i i | ¥ = 3 it I i L] W i R 2 X 3 3
1 |Matic 1 Pragsug Oear Vet LGS Wed 1RIE .- /2% [
I gvabuation and Sihematic 10days  Wed 3/16/16 Tue 8/15/15
Temgn
P Suney Awks  Wed3/16/16 Tua4/5/16 i f—
I
TP GuotechnkalBorings 4wk Wed 3/16/16 Tued/12/16 Wi
|
E  GeotschnicalTesting 2 wks Wed 4/13/16 Tue4/26/16 =
& Embankmaent Stabiity 2 whs Wad 4/27/16 Tue 5/10/16 E .
¥ Existing HEH Analysis S wis Wed 3/30/16 Tue5/3/16 ——
¥ Schematic Design 2wks Wed 5/4/16  TuaS/17/16 N
"0 Muetingwith County  1day Wed 5/18/16 Wed 5/18/16 Tsns
I Altamative Evaluation 4 wks Wed 5/18/16 Tua6/14/16 Fa—
1 and 3wks /15/16 Tus7/5/16 —
Altarnative Summary
feport {Draft)
11 CoumyReview 2wk Wed7/6/16 Tua7/19/16 T
13 Meetingwith County  1day Mnn 25 ManTEETE S
4 Posters Sdays  Tun A Mana/Lis T—
15 County Public Meatings 1 day Tua 8/16/16 Tues/16/16 Ty
16 pesign 7adays  Wed7/20/15 Mes 10/21/48
17 emimamental lawks  Wed 720016 Tis 15/0E =—
Permittings
15 Conceptual Sketches 3 wks Toa 7/26/16  Mon 8/15/16 —
19  CountyReviaw 2wiks Tue 8/16/16 Mon 8/29/16 =9
0 90% Construction Swks Tua 8/30/16 Mon 10/3/16 —
Documents
| 31 CoumyReview 2wks Tue 10/4/16  Man J/10/46 [ =S
2 Final Plans and 2wk Tua 10/18/16 e LVILAAE I—.—1
tions
e M0dayE  Tuel)/22/16 Mon 1/16/17 —
T2 Advertise for Bid A wks Tua 11/22/16 Mrar12/14/1E —
Pra-8id Meating. Odays Mon 12/5/16 Mon 12/5/16 i 12/5 l
% PldOpening Odays  Mon E2/15/36 Mun 13/ 19/16 s
17 BidEvalustionand  wks Tew 13/30/3F Men LIIRAT 1——~;
Award |
T Copstrucoan 150days  Mon 1/23/17 Mon B/23/17 ]
"1 Notica to Procsed Odays  Mon W/IINT Mon 33T ﬁ’ﬁ'
¥ Pra-Construaion 1day T /8117 T /20007 1
b | w
1l Construcion iS0days  Tue LZANT  Mpn ALY > ;
|
i Project Complets Odays  Mon&/21/17 Mon8/21/17 Sun
|
Project San Gabriel faeer fansh | Task — 01y - poriial Wi . waciveMiestme & Manual Task Seart-anly Deadina .
Dute: Frl 3/4/15 ol Sminaty — 2 TR — e T = = sorv-only Manual Smmary P Finkh-only Progress —




EXHIBIT E

Williamson County
Vendor Reimbursement Policy

The purpose of this Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy Vendor Reimbursement
Policy (“Policy”) is to provide clear guidelines to vendors on Williamson County’s expectations
and requirements regarding allowable reimbursable expenditures and required backup. The Policy
will also minimize conflicts related to invoice payments and define non-reimbursable items. This
Policy is considered a guideline and is not a contract.

This Policy may be altered, deleted or amended, at any time and without prior notice to vendors,
by action of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Unenforceable provisions of this
Policy, as imposed by applicable law, regulations, or judicial decisions, shall be deemed to be
deleted. Any revisions to this Policy will be distributed to all current vendors doing business with

the County.

1. Invoices and Affidavits

1.1

1.2

1.3

Invoices must adequately describe the goods or services provided to County and
include all required backup (i.e. reimbursable expenses, mileage log, timesheets,
receipts detailing expenses incurred etc.) that is in a form acceptable to the
Williamson County Auditor. Invoices that do not adequately describe the goods or
services provided to County or contain backup that is satisfactory to the Williamson
County Auditor will be returned to vendor for revisions and the provision above
relating to invoice errors resolved in favor of the County shall control as to the
required actions of vendor and when such invoice must be paid by the County.

In the event an invoice includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services
or any other rates based upon the amount of time worked by an individual or
individuals in performing services, whether the charges are being billed directly to
the County or whether they are the basis of invoices from subcontractors for which
the vendor seeks reimbursement from the County, the charges shall be accompanied
by an affidavit signed by an officer or principal of the vendor certifying that the
work was performed, it was authorized by the County and that all information
contained in the invoice that is being submitted is true and correct.

Upon County’s request, vendor must submit all bills paid affidavits wherein vendor
must swear and affirm that vendor has paid each of its subcontractors, laborers,
suppliers and material in full for all labor and materials provided to vendor for or
in connection with services and work performed for County and, further, vendor
must swear and affirm that vendor is not aware of any unpaid bills, claims,
demands, or causes of action by any of its subcontractors, laborers, suppliers, or
material for or in connection with the furnishing of labor or materials, or both, for
services and work performed for County.

2. Travel Reimbursement



2.1

2:2

2.3

24

2:5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

3. Meals

The County will only cover costs associated with travel on vendors outside a 50
mile radius from Williamson County, Texas.

The County will only cover costs associated with travel as documented work for
County. If a vendor is also doing business for another client, the travel costs must
be split in proportion to the amount of work actually performed for County and the
other client. The only allowable travel expense will be for the specific days worked
for Williamson County.

No advance payments will be made to vendor for travel expenditures. The travel
expenditure may only be reimbursed after the expenditure/trip has already occurred
and vendor has provided the Williamson County Auditor with all necessary and
required backup.

Vendors must submit all travel reimbursement requests on each employee in full.
Specifically, a travel reimbursement request must include all related travel
reimbursement expenses relating to a particular trip for which vendor seeks
reimbursement. Partial travel reimbursement requests will not be accepted (i.e.
vendor should not submit hotel and mileage one month then the next month submit
rental car and airfare). If the travel reimbursement appears incomplete, the invoice
will be sent back to the vendor to be submitted when all information is ready to
submit in full.

Reimbursement for transportation costs will be at the most reasonable means of
transportation (i.e.: airline costs will be reimbursed for coach rate, rental car costs
will only be reimbursed if rental car travel was most reasonable means of travel as
compared to travel by air).

The County will not be responsible for, nor will the County reimburse additional
charges due to personal preference or personal convenience of individual traveling.
The County will not reimburse airfare costs if airfare costs were higher than costs
of mileage reimbursement.

Additional expenses associated with travel that is extended to save costs (i.e.
Saturday night stay) may be reimbursed if costs of airfare would be less than the
cost of additional expenses (lodging, meals, car rental, mileage) if the trip had not
been extended. Documentation satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will
be required to justify expenditure.

County will only reimburse travel expense to necessary personnel of the vendor
(i.e. no spouse, friends or family members).

Except as otherwise set forth herein, a vendor must provide a paid receipt for all
expenses. If a receipt cannot be obtained, a written sworn statement of the expense
from the vendor may be substituted for the receipt.

Sales tax for meals and hotel stays are the only sales taxes that will be reimbursed.
Sales tax on goods purchased will not be reimbursed. A sales tax exemption form
is available from the Williamson County Auditor’s Office upon request.

The County will not pay for any late charges on reimbursable items. It is the
responsibility of the vendor to pay the invoice first and seek reimbursement from
the County.



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4
3.5
3.6
k)

Meal reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $40.00 per day on overnight
travel. On day travel (travel that does not require an overnight stay), meal
reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $20.00 per day. The travel must be
outside the Williamson County, Texas line by a 50 mile radius.

Receipts are required on meal reimbursement amounts up to the maximum per day
amount stated for overnight or day travel. If receipts are not presented, the vendor
can request per diem (per diem limits refer to 3.2). However, a vendor cannot
combine per diem and meal receipts. Only one method shall be allowed.

Meals are reimbursable only for vendors who do not have the necessary personnel
located within a 50 mile radius of Williamson County, Texas that are capable of
carrying the vendor’s obligations to County. Meals will not be reimbursed to
vendors who are located within a 50 mile radius of Williamson County, Texas.
County will not reimburse for alcoholic beverages.

Tips are reimbursable but must be reasonable to limitation of meal allowance.

No meals purchased for entertainment purposes will be allowed.

Meal reimbursement must be substantiated with a hotel receipt.

. Lodging

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1
5.2

5.3

5.4

39

Hotel accommodations require an itemized hotel folio as a receipt. The lodging
receipt should include name of the motel/hotel, number of occupant(s), goods or
services for each individual charge (room rental, food, tax, etc.) and the name of
the occupant(s). Credit card receipts or any other form of receipt are not acceptable.
Vendors will be reimbursed for a single room rate charge plus any applicable tax.
If a single room is not available, the vendor must provide documentation to prove
that a single room was not available in order to justify the expense over and above
the single room rate. A vendor may also be required to provide additional
documentation if a particular room rate appears to be excessive.

Personal telephone charges, whether local or long distance, will not be reimbursed.

. Airfare

The County will only reimburse up to a coach price fare for air travel.

The County will exclude any additional charges due to personal preference or
personal convenience of the individual traveling (i.e. early bird check in, seat
preference charges, airline upgrades, etc. will not be an allowable reimbursement)
Air travel expenses must be supported with receipt copy of an airline ticket or an
itinerary with actual ticket price paid. If tickets are purchased through a website,
vendor must submit a copy of the webpage showing the ticket price if no paper
ticket was issued.

Cancellation and/or change flight fees may be reimbursed by the County but vendor
must provide the Williamson County Auditor with documentation in writing from
a County department head providing authorization for the change.

The County will not reimburse vendor for tickets purchased with frequent flyer
miles.



6. Car Rental

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6
6.7

Vendors that must travel may rent a car at their destination when it is less expensive
than other transportation such as taxis, airport shuttles or public transportation such
as buses or subways.

Cars rented must be economy or mid-size. Luxury vehicle rentals will not be
reimbursed. Any rental costs over and above the cost of a mid-size rental will be
adjusted.

Vendors will be reimbursed for rental cars if the rental car cost would have been
less than the mileage reimbursement cost (based on the distance from vendor’s
point of origin to Williamson County, Texas) had the vendor driven vendor’s car.
Vendors must return a car rental with appropriate fuel levels as required by rental
agreement to avoid the car rental company from adding fuel charges.

Rental agreement and credit card receipt must be provided to County as back up for
the request for reimbursement.

Insurance purchased when renting vehicle may also be reimbursed.

Car Rental optional extras such as GPS, roadside assistance, and administrative fees
on Tolls will not be reimbursed.

7. Personal Car Usage

7.1

12

73
7.4
73
7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

Personal vehicle usage will be reimbursed in an amount equal to the standard
mileage rate allowed by the IRS.

Per code of Federal Regulations, Title 26, Subtitle A, Chapter 1, Subchapter B, Part
[X, Section 274(d), all expense reimbursement requests must include the following:
7.2.1.1 Date

7.2.1.2 Destination

7.2.1.3 Purpose

7.2.1.4 Name of traveler(s)

7.2.1.5 Correspondence that verifies business purpose of the expense

The mileage for a personal vehicle must document the date, location of travel
to/from, number of miles traveled and purpose of trip.

Mileage will be reimbursed on the basis of the most commonly used route.
Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the cost of a round trip coach airfare.
Reimbursement for mileage shall be prohibited between place of residence and
usual place of work.

Mileage should be calculated from vendor’s employee’s regular place of work or
their residence, whichever is the shorter distance when traveling to a meeting or
traveling to Williamson County, Texas for vendors who are located outside of
Williamson County, Texas by at least a 50 mile radius.

When more than one person travels in same vehicle, only one person may claim
mileage reimbursement.

Tolls, if reasonable, are reimbursable. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If
a receipt is not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be
submitted for reimbursement (administrative fees on Tolls will not be reimbursed).
Parking fees, if reasonable, are reimbursable for meetings and hotel stays. For
vendors who contract with a third party for visitor parking at vendor’s place of
business, Williamson County will not reimburse a vendor based on a percentage of



7.11

its contracted visitor parking fees. Rather, Williamson County will reimburse
Vendor for visitor parking on an individual basis for each time a visitor uses
Vendor’s visitor parking. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If a receipt is
not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted for
reimbursement.

Operating and maintenance expenses, as well as other personal expenses, such as
parking tickets, traffic violations, and car repairs and collision damage are not
reimbursable.

8. Other Expenses

8.1

Taxi fare, bus tickets, conference registrations, parking, etc. must have a proper
original receipt.

9. Repayment of Nonreimbursable Expense.

Vendors must, upon demand, immediately repay County for all inappropriately reimbursed
expenses whenever an audit or subsequent review of any expense reimbursement
documentation finds that such expense was reimbursed contrary to these guidelines and this
Policy. Williamson County reserves the right to retain any amounts that are due or that become
due to a vendor in order to collect any inappropriately reimbursed expenses that a vendor was

paid.

10. Non-Reimbursable Expenses
In addition to the non-reimbursable items set forth above in this Policy, the following is a
non-exhaustive list of expenses that will not be reimbursed by Williamson County:

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20

Alcoholic beverages/tobacco products

Personal phone calls

Laundry service

Valet service

Movie rentals

Damage to personal clothing

Flowers/plants

Greeting cards

Fines and/or penalties

Entertainment, personal clothing, personal sundries and services
Transportation/mileage to places of entertainment or similar personal activities
Upgrades to air, hotel and/or car rental

Auto repairs

Baby sitter fees, kennel costs, pet or house-sitting fees

Saunas, massages or exercise facilities

Credit card delinquency fees

Doctor bills, prescription and other medical services

Hand tools

Safety Equipment (hard hats, safety vests, etc.)

Office supplies



10.21 Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be
inappropriate or unnecessary expenditures.



EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

ATTACHED BEHIND THIS PAGE



CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1
10
WILLIAMSON COUNTY CONTRACT FOR
ENGINEERING SERVICES

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ROAD AND BRIDGE PROJECT:
Engineering Design Services for the repair of San Gabriel Ranch Road (“Project”)

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. _1___ to Williamson County Contract for Engineering
Services is by and between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas,
(the "County") and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (the "Engineer") and becomes effective as of the date
of the last party’s execution below. ‘

WHEREAS, the County and the Engineer executed the Williamson County Contract for
Engineering Services dated effective April 07, 2016 (the “Contract”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 14 of the Contract, the terms of the Contract may be modified by
a written fully executed Contract Amendment;

WHEREAS, the “Compensation Cap” under Article 5 of the Contract limits the maximum amount
payable under the Contract to $306,702.00; and,

WHEREAS, the Rate Schedule in Exhibit D of the Contract are limited to the rates noted in said
Exhibit D; and,

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend the Contract.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the Engineer agree that the Contract
is amended as follows:

L The Compensation Cap under Article 5 of the Contract is hereby increased from
$306,702.00 to $575,083.00.

All other terms of the Contract are unchanged and will remain in full force and effect.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Engineer have executed this Contract
Amendment, in duplicate, to be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below.

ENGINEW COUNTY:
By: Z // ——*”7/ By:
00 K/éﬂ oS- 7

Printed Name Printed Name

V}.‘E /:%fs DEN T

Title Title
1 /1]ze0,
Date Date



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County

Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer

Attachment C - Work Schedule

Attachment D - Fee Schedule



Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer

Attached behind this page



Freese and Nichols, Inc.
San Gabriel Ranch Road
Final Design
PSA Supplemental No. 1

Project Description

This Supplemental is a result of an alternative evaluation study performed by Freese and Nichols to
assist Williamson County in deciding how to address the concerns at San Gabriel River Ranch Road Dam,
including hydraulic inadequacy, auxiliary spillway erosion, and undermining of the county road. Because
of that study, Williamson County has decided to remove the dam and create a new channel along the
original creek alignment and construct a two-lane bridge over the new channel. This Supplemental
includes preparation of plans and specifications for the dam removal, channel restoration, and bridge
construction. It also includes environmental permit coordination with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.
Informal conversations with USACE suggest that an individual Permit (with mitigation) may be required.

A. Delete the stricken text in PSA Exhibit B, and replace with the following:
DESIGN

1. Public Involvement
a. Attend one (1) public meeting to inform area residents of concept
b. Prepare draft posters (total of 3 posters) for public meeting for County review,
¢. Address County’s comments and prepare final posters {total of 3 posters).

2. Perform additional survey
a. 1-ft topo of the dam embankment, and 400-feet of creek channel downstream from the
dam.
b. Two channel cross sections downstream of the topo area.
¢. Five channel cross sections upstream of the dam.
Tree survey

3. US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Permit
a. Coordinate and Attend a Pre-Application Meeting with USACE to identify and confirm
permitting approach and requirements.
b. Perform additional fieldwork to supplement initial field visit to delineate regulated waters,
identify wildlife habitat and potential cultural resources.
Prepare Waters of the U.S. Delineation Report.
Prepare Federally-listed Species Habitat Evaluation Report.
Prepare Cultural Resources Assessment.
Develop functional assessment/mitigation plan.
Develop and submit a pre-construction notification (PCN) to USACE.

@™ o oo



4, Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
a. Develop a reference storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP} for construction to be
executed by the project’s Primary Operator (Contractor}. The SWPPP is to help reduce the
release of sediment and pollution from the construction site in accordance with the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(TPDES) general permit for storm water runoff from construction activity (TXR150000).

5. Williamson County Floodplain Development Permit
a. Prepare and submit a development permit to Williamson County.

6. Sediment Evaluation (If requested by resource agencies during permitting)
a. Obtain eight sediment samples from the surface of the lake bottom. [t is assumed that
FNI will be able to utilize a boat on the lake for purposes of sediment sampling.
b. Perform laboratory analysis for identified potential chemicals of concerns (COCs)
including:
i. heavy metals (arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, selenium,
and silver) by EPA Method 6020.
ii. chlorinated herbicides by EPA Method 8151
iii. organochlorine pesticides by EPA Method 8081
iv. organophosphate pesticides by EPA Method 8141A
v. VOCs by SW-846 82608
7. Utilities
a. Coordinate utility relocation with utility companies. It is assumed that the utilities will
remain in similar horizontal alignment as they currently do and will be supported
vertically by the bridge.
8. Channel Design
a. Perform gradation testing on up to eight sediment samples
b. Evaluate channel stability to erosion for normal and flood fiows
c. Perform slope stability analysis of the proposed channel slopes
9. Letter of Map Revision
a. Study Area: The hydrologic study area will include the approximately 5.5 square mile
drainage basin upstream from San Gabriel River Ranch Dam. The hydraulic model study
area will begin at Lackey Creek Road and end at the confluence of Lackey Creek and
North Fork San Gabriel River.
b. Obtain FEMA effective model and backup data for Clearwater Ranch.
c. Obtain FEMA backup data for the zone A mapping of Lackey Creek and the North Fork
San Gabriel River, if available.
d. Incorporate Clearwater Ranch FEMA data into conceptual design phase hydrologic
model.
e. Develop an existing condition hydraulic model and determine floodplain limits across
the study area.
f. Based upon the above data, complete existing conditions hydraulic model and include:



i. Cross Section Plots
ii. Floodplain Delineation
ili. HEC-RAS Computer Models
Modify existing condition hydrologic and hydraulic models as necessary to develop a
proposed hydraulic model of the revised conditions through the site.
Determine proposed floodplain and identify project impacts.
Based on the above data complete:
i. Water Surface Profile Plots
ii. Cross Section Plots
iii. Floodplain Delineation
iv. Project impacts
v. Computer printouts of hydraulic models
Complete necessary FEMA MT-2 forms for inclusion in submittal.
Submit LOMR to FEMA and pay applicable review fees.
Prepare one digital copy of the report (FEMA, Community, and client) explaining the
methodologies and results of the study and containing appropriate charts, graphs, plots,
exhibits to describe the study.
Provide necessary coordination with FEMA and the Community to provide technical
information in support of the report. FNI will revise/respond to two rounds of FEMA
comments.
Prepare newspaper notification advertisement of map change
i. Identify adversely impacted properties from flood study.
ii. Research property ownership obtaining names and addresses of adversely
impacted properties.
iii. Coordinate with the community to develop a newspaper notification ad to run
in the local newspaper.
iv. Submit and pay for newpaper add two local papers
v. Supply FEMA with copies of the newspaper ad.

10. Prepare 30 percent review drawings of the design.

Provide proposed typical section and cross sections

Provide proposed plan and profile sketches

Provide proposed drainage feature sketches

Provide table of contents for technical specifications

Provide opinion of probable construction cost

Attend one meeting with Williamson County staff to discuss comments
11. Prepare 90% set of construction documents

a.
b
c.
d.
e.
f.

a.

Finalize

S SRS

Roadway grades and cross sections
Grading plans

Roadway details

Detailing of all drainage structures
Environmental Controls



6. Attend one meeting with Williamson County staff to discuss comments
b. Provide complete set of draft specifications
c. Update opinion of probable construction cost
d. Submit plans and specifications to TCEQ Dam Safety
12, Develop final plans and specifications for bidding that incorporate County’s latest comments
13. Submit Issued for Bid plans and specifications to County and TCEQ Dam Safety
14. Update OPCC to accompany Issued for Bid set

Deliverables

30% Plans, specification outline, Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

90% Plans, Specifications, SWPPP, and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Issued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications, SWPPP, and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Design memorandum

FEMA Letter of Map Revision Submittal

USACE 404 Pre-Construction Notification

ho oo T oW

B. The Compensation and Expenses under the PSA shall be adjusted as follows:

Original PSA Compensation Cap $306,702
Proposed Additional Effort +5268,381
Revised Compensation Cap $575,083




EXHIBIT B

ENGINEERING SERVICES

Project Description

+San Gabriel Ranch Road (SGRR) is located in Williamson County on Lackey Creek. The
roadway suffered significant damage in recent floods and is currently closed to traffic. The road
“embankment creates a small lake just upstream of SGRR. This lake has very limited storage
capacity and the control structures consist of one ~27-inch corrugated metal pipe for a principal
spillway and two ~30-inch concrete pipes for the emergency spillway. The drainage area is
approximately five square miles and the spillways are inadequate for passing anything other than
very small storms. When the pipes are overwhelmed, the roadway embankment is then subjected
to overtopping. This overtopping recently resulted in damage to the roadway and subsequent

closure of the roadway.

The roadway embankment is classified as a dam by Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ) and TCEQ has performed several inspections throughout the years. Williamson
County does not own the dam but is responsible for the roadway. Williamson County has
selected Freese and Nichols, Inc. to evaluate the frequent flooding of the roadway and develop
possible alternatives to reduce the frequency of roadway overtopping and to provide erosion
protection for the site. As part of the evaluation, Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) will perform a
high level review of the dam as it relates to TCEQ Dam Safety Criteria.

It is anticipated that there will be two Work Authorizations that will include, but not limited to, a
Design Phase and a Construction Phase:

A. DESIGN PHASE

Evaluation and Schematic Design
1. Perform survey
a. Roadway profile and select cross sections of embankment
b. Flow line elevations for existing pipes and channel
c. Pond cross sections to determine storage capacity
d. 1-ft topo of the spillway approach channel
e. [-ft topo of the river channel from the roadway to 100-feet downstream
2. Perform geotechnical Investigation
a. Perform four borings
b. Provide geotechnical witness logging of soil strata and characterizations
c. Perform geological reconnaissance of soil and bedrock exposures in the Lackey
Creek channel between the spillway and its confluence with the North Fork San
Gabriel River
d. Perform basic soil tests (Atterberg limits, minus 200, moisture contents) and
penetrometer tests as appropriate



e. Perform preliminary evaluation of dam embankment stability of existing dam in
accordance with TCEQ Dam Safety Guidelines for steady-state and rapid
drawdown loading conditions.

3. Perform hydrologic and hydraulic (H&H) analyses in accordance with TCEQ Dam

Safety Guidelines and City of Austin Drainage Criteria Manual.

a. Evaluate drainage area and runoff characteristics for existing and ultimate
development

b. Develop stage-storage-discharge rating curves to represent existing dam
conditions

c. Develop peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 2 to 100-year recurrence
intervals

d. Develop peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 75% PMF

4. Develop schematic design for three alternative repair concepts as follows:

a. Removing embankment at approximate location of original Lackey Creek stream
channel and installation of bridge crossing Lackey Creek while keeping same
roadway alignment.

b. Leaving dam hydraulics and roadway alignment unchanged, replace the principal
spillway corrugated metal pipe, re-laying the existing concrete pipe, and
providing channel and slope armoring at outfall of the present emergency
spillway concrete pipes.

c. Removing the existing emergency spillway concrete pipes and installation of an
emergency spillway structure to pass flows under the roadway and into a drop
structure at the outfall, including armoring the outfall area as needed, replacing
the principal spillway corrugated metal pipe. Evaluate and address seepage
control and erosion along the embankment interface. Keep roadway elevations
unchanged.

5. Evaluate the following for each altemative:
a. Peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 2-100-year recurrence intervals
b. Peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 75% PMF
c. Increased water levels in Lackey Creek from San Gabriel Ranch Road to
confluence with San Gabriel River.
d. Opinion of probable construction costs
e. Permit requirements
6. Provide documentation of proposed alternatives
Document geotechnical results in Technical Memorandum
Document H&H results in Technical Memorandum
Summarize results of alternative analysis in Summary Report
Attend up to two (2) meetings with Williamson County staff to present results
e. Attend one (1) public meeting to inform area residents of concepts
7. Deliverables

Ao o



Geotechnical Results Technical Memorandum

a.
b. Hydrology and Hydraulics Technical Memorandum
c. Alternative Summary Report
d. Posters for public meeting
Design See Supplemental No. 1
. bEnvironmental Permitting
a. Develop permitting strategy for selected alternative.
b. Site visit by Environmental Scientist
Coordination with Texas Historical Commission (THC).
d.\Develop and submit a pre-construction notification (PCN) to USAGE.

2. Prepare Oypceptual set of sketches for either alternative 4.b or 4.c based/ipon
County’s seigction. The County has indicated previously that the brigge alternative is
unlikely to be Swlected.

a. Provide propodd typical section and cross sections
b. Provide proposed‘glan and profile sketches

c. Provide proposed dr¥{page feature sketches

d. Provide table of contenty for technical specificatighs

3. Prepare 90% set of constructiondocuments

a. Finalize
I. Roadway grades and cross sedtions
2. Grading plans
3. Roadway details
4. Detailing of all drainage stgdctures
5. Environmental Control
b. Provide complete set of ¢faft specifications
c. Provide opinion of prgbable construction cost
d. Submit plans and gfecifications to TCEQ Dam Safety

4. Develop final plangind specifications for bidding that incorpsrate County’s latest
comments

5. Submit Issueg/for Bid plans and specifications to County and TCE(N\Dam Safety

6. Update OBLC for Issued for Bid set

7. Deliveptbles

¢ Conceptual sketches, specification outline
b. 90% Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Issued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction
Cost
Bid Phase
1. Attend Pre-Bid Meeting

2.

Prepare any necessary addenda




3. Attend Bid Opening
4. Assist County with bid evaluations

B. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

FNI will proceed with the performance of construction phase services as described below. FNI
will endeavor to protect COUNTY in providing these services; however, it is understood that
FNI does not guarantee the Contractor's performance, nor is FNI responsible for supervision of
the Contractor's operation and employees. FNI shall not be responsible for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction selected by the Contractor, or any safety
precautions and programs relating in any way to the condition of the premises, the work of the
Contractor or any Subcontractor. FNI shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any
person (except its own employees or agents) at the Project site or otherwise performing any of
the work of the Project.

The ENGINEER or ENGINEER OF RECORD shall be defined as the professional engineer
responsible for the preparation, modification, and interpretation of the design documents for the
project including evaluations, analyses, technical reports, plans and specifications.
The purpose of this phase is for FNI to provide the following professional engineering services
to support the construction in accordance with Texas Administrative Code Title 30, Part 1,
Chapter 299 Dams and Reservoirs. The overall construction schedule is assumed to be 120
calendar days. Any effort directly or indirectly related to a time extension to the CONTRACTOR
and project duration will be an additional service for FNI.
General Construction Management Services shall include:

1. Prepare and provide COUNTY with five (S) sets of "Issued for Construction"

construction plans and contract documents incorporating addenda changes. Provide
TCEQ with one (1) copy of "Issued for Construction" documents.

2. Assist COUNTY in conducting pre-construction conference with the CONTRACTOR
and review construction schedules prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to the
requirements of the construction contract. Coordinate communication procedures with
COUNTY and CONTRACTOR.

3. Designated FNI staff that participated in the design phase shall visit the project site for up
to four (4) visits to observe the general progress of the construction work, observe critical
construction activities, and coordinate with the COUNTY'S Onsite Representative. In this
effort FNI will endeavor to protect the COUNTY against defects and deficiencies in the
work of CONTRACTOR and will report any observed deficiencies or non-conforming
work in writing to the COUNTY. Visits to the site in excess of the number listed under
this item are an additional service. The site visits under this task do not include
attendance to monthly progress meetings or special technical support visits.

4. Attend monthly construction progress meetings (one-half day trip per meeting, 4
meetings total) separate from the site visits described above to evaluate overall progress,
submittal status, and contract changes.



5. Interpret the intent of drawings and specifications for COUNTY and Contractor. Review
key contractor's submittals for consistency with plans, specifications, and project
requirements, including requests for information, modification requests, certified test
results, and shop drawings in accordance with the requirements of the construction
contract documents. Prepare design clarification responses required.

6. Submit monthly reports of construction progress to the COUNTY and TCEQ Dam
Safety. Reports will describe construction progress in general terms and summarize
project costs, construction schedule and pending and approved contract modifications.
Report outline will be based on TCEQ Dam Safety Program guidelines for Design and
Construction for Dams in Texas. Provide COUNTY and TCEQ with one (1) copy of
monthly report.

7. Conduct, in company with COUNTY’s representative, a substantial completion review of
the Project for conformance with the design concept of the Project and general
compliance with the Construction Contract Documents. Prepare a list of deficiencies to
be corrected by the contractor before recommendation of final payment. Conduct a
follow up final review to determine that items on the substantial completion checklist
have been completed and are in accordance with Construction Contract Documents.
Review and comment on the certificate of completion and the recommendation for final
payment to the CONTRACTOR.

8. Revise the construction drawings in accordance with the information furnished to the
COUNTY to by CONTRACTOR reflecting changes in the Project made during
construction. “Record Drawings” shall be provided by FNI to the following:

a. COUNTY, three (3) sets of prints;
b. TCEQ, one (1) set of prints;
9. Submit Record Drawings within sixty (60) calendar days upon receipt of all

documentation from CONTRACTOR of record changes. Submit project completion
certificate per TCEQ requirements within 45 days of project substantial completion.

Deliverables
d. Conceptual sketches, specification outline

90% Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
[ssued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Issued-For-Construction Plans

Record Drawings

TR oo

C. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by CLIENT, which are not included in
the above described basic services, are described as follows:
1. Additional survey and geotechnical investigations

2. Hydraulic or hydrologic impact on San Gabriel River
3. FEMA floodplain coordination, including Letter of Map Revision



USACE Individual Permit

Permitting for dam removal

Bridge design

Additional construction phase services

N v s

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

COUNTY shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of

FNI:
1. Obtain Right-Of-Entry or perform public notifications as needed to conduct survey

services, geotechnical investigation, and site visits.
Right-of-way and easement document preparation

Public Involvement Coordination

Onsite resident representation during construction

Quality control testing during construction

VoA e



Attachment C - Work Schedule

Attached behind this page



] Task Name
1 Notlce to Proceed
| 2 Design
3 Obtain Survey
Right-Of-Entry
4 Survey
5 USACE Permit
| s Pre-Application
Meeting
7 Additlonal Fieldwork
8 Prepare Application
9 USACE Revlew
10 30% Deslgn
\
11 County Review
I 12 50% Design
| 13 County Review
14 Issued for Bid
Documents
15 Bid
|
| 18 Advertise for Bid
17 Pre-Bid Meeting
18 Bid Opening
19 Bid Evaluation and
Award
20 Construction
|

| Project: SGRR Mad 1 sun.-.dum_vml
| Dale: Wed 10/5/16

San Gabrlel River Ranch Road Repair

Duration
0 days
180 days
4 wks

3 wks
135 days
0 days
1wk

12 wks
12 wks

8 wks

2 wks

12 wks

2 wks

5 wks

40 days
4 wks

0 days
0days

4 wks

52 wks

Task
salit
Milestone

Summary

Start Finish Nov13,16 Jani,'l7

225,16
i s M T

Mon 11/7/16 Mon 11/7/16
‘

T

Feb19,'17  Apr9,'17
F s s

May 28,17
M T W T

AT
Mon 11/7/16 Frl7/14/17 I%
Mon 11/7/16 Fri12/2/16 | S

Mon 12/5/16 Fri12/23/16

Fri 11/18/16 Frl5/26/17

Fri11/18/16 Fri11/18/16
Mon 11/21/1€Frl 11/25/16 é
Mon

12/12/16
Mon 3/6/17  Fri5/26/17

Fri3/3/17

Mon 12/26/1€Fri 2/17/17
Mon 2/20/17 Frl3/3/17
Mon 3/6/17  Fri5/26/17
Mon 5/29/17 Fri 6/9/17
Mon 6/12/17 Fri 7/14/17
Mon 7/17/17 Frl9/8/17
Mon 7/17/17 Fri8/11/17
fri7/28/17  Fri?/28/17
Fri8/11/17  Fri8/11/17
Mon 8/14/17 Fri9/8/17

Mon 9/11/17 Fri9/7/18

SRR, Project Summary
External Tasks
* External Milestonc -

p—  Inactive Task

P g

Inactive Milestone
Inactive Summary
Manual Task
Duration-only

Page 1

Jul 16,17

Sep 3,17
F s 5

0ct22,'17

M

T W T

Dec10,'17  Jan26,'18
F

S

Mer18,'18  May 6, "18
M

Jun 24,'18
3

Aug12,18 |
MoT

Manual Summary Rollup s Deadline

Manual Summary
Ehartanly

Finish-only

Pe———  Progress
[
3



Attachment D - Fee Schedule

Attached behind this page



Freeus i Nizhots, I

Witifamaon County
San Gabrial Ranch Road Amandmant
13-0ct-16
Detalfled Cost Ereakdoun
Basic Sarvices
Curpacsie cAD CAD
Project Role Potsswett  Pobsmtl  Pobmws i PoAsiowS Petmesl Pl | mll-v-l r-::-:n- = Tatst Hours Tﬂl;:':‘b“ Tﬂllzzl::"" Towl Sub Effort|  Yotal Effort
Haluly Bili flate 5240 08 420900  $17800  S16800  §10700  $11200  $14800  S163 00 396 a0 S0 00 $0 00 10 00

1 Publioinvolvement [ [ a il 3 2852 § 19| % - i 2m
2 Survey 4 a ] 4 17 5 2020 (% m|s 16,500 | = 18,831

0 L - 15 Sk - |8 -

3 USACE Permit 1 1 i 14a |8 LR ] 157
Pre-Appiicalion Mesting sl UBACE 2 4 12 28 3 4,116 )13 228 | § E 4354
Additions! Fleidwark L} 2 % 5 4.588 | § 308 (5 5 4,804
Watsrs of lhe U.8, Ostinealion Reporl L] 12 80 80 i 10078 | § 680 | § i 10 756
Federally-Syied Species Habitat Evelustion Reporl 4 4 A 2 5 4048 | 8 272 |8 s 4320
Culwral Resource Assessment 8 L] 3 1248 | 5 68 )% § 1318
Functional Asssssment/Wtigetion Plan 20 12 [ 127 5 16,817 | 5 1080 | § 5 17,897
Permil SubmRtal 8 18 k23 5 322\ 204 (8 ] 3436

0 5 = |5 - |5 s =

4 SWPPP 4 -] 4 L] il ) 6170 | § 3235 5 4,481
0 L ] . ] - |5 3

§  Willamwon Gounty Floodplain Developmeni Permit 2 1 L] ] 5 L 4 meps Qs 5 a7
[ 3 5 - | 3

8 Gediment Evaluation 0 3 . 5 - |8 ]

Obigln Sanplea L 24 3 mz|s 204 (& - 15 2918
taborstory Testing and Anelysis 5 12 0 42 i 82205 W75 5840 | 5 1447
0 5 . ] o L] ]
T  Utiity Coordmatlon 4 A 28 5 4008 208 |8 L] 4,228
0 i . : | 5 H

8  Channal Dasign_ ° s - |8 = I [ .
Erosion Anelysls 3 8 k- 4“4 1 88 -] 13312 |4 748 | & L) 14 060
Siops Sishitty § L} 4 4 2 42 5 ? § 3686 | ¥ 5 7.968

0 ] ] = |8 5 .
0 Lutier of Map Revislon 0 5 - |4 - |8 L] .
Otamp FEMA Baclm Bima 2 H H 2|5 17|% 5 a29
A di modal 1 2 3 3 480 | § (8 ] 516
Doreelips frp-deansie: mandel sl hetmamng fooplern 4 4 ;] 64|14 M5 ] 858
Gomplets exisfing condbon irydraul maodel 4 4 3 a4 |5 |5 5 858
Upelate mouets b incorprabs dam mseesal 1 4 8 3 B0Z| 1 ol 3 845
Completn propomes! condsens hydmllo 18 19 3 2498 | § 136 (8 ] 2632
Compdat FEUA MT-3 Forma 1 2 ] 27 1] 4u40|s 230 % E 4570
Hitma LOMH fa FEMA 4 4 1 84|35 9264 | % 3 9,908
LRI Feper] 4 8 A k] 1 6120 % 308 | % ] 8.4
Addreea FEMA Comimirta 1 2 12 15 5 24685 1285 3 25
3 a ) 468 | 3 6| % L3 844
1 1 1 148 4 9% 3 157
10 30% Plane and Specifications 20 14 12 k2 40 20 00 190 5 27906 [ 5 18155 5 20521
0 1) = 5 5 3
11 80% Consbrucilon Documents k1 = 0 40 80 1 00 100 383 ] 33264 | % 30883 E 56,352
4 5 . i L] s .
12 lssued for Bid Documenta 5 a2 19 12 1 Eal 150 b 23,860 [ 5 1215 § 5 24,035
0 1] . ] ’ % i &
13 Bld Phese 0 1 3 L B
Bid 1 Pre-Brd Mesting o I 3 5 1
Bid 2 Addande a a L} 9 [ il 3 5224 47| % | 5479
Bld 3 Bid Opaning 2 4 [ 5 1192 % st 5 1,243
Bid 4 Bid Evaluaton 2 4 8 5 1192 % 5118 5 1,243
a 3 ] L] i
Tolal Basic Gervices Hours 121 45 218 289 245 249 [ 127 104 0 ] v vaas|E N S 28 az3an [ s 260,381
Total Gaslo Sarvices Labur Efort § 30040 & 9810 3 00440 3 40040 B 33565 & D40 3 L04 B 19401 B iTame 8 -« 1 |
1112016

L)

Gabrisl River Ranch Rowd Fes Amandmant Claasicaions Oct 13 xiem




Frewse and Nichols, Inc.

Willlamson County
flan Gabrdal Ranch Road Amindment
13-Qct-16
Detalled Cost Braakdown
Lg Formal - Lg Format - Lg Format - Lg Formal - Lg Formart - Lg Format -
” Baw Color Binding Bond - Bond - ¥ Total Exp
Phase  Task Expenaes TechChiage  Mies ool (sheoll  (each) BAW(sq ar-BAW we-BAW Color(sq ar-Color ive-Colar O Effart
) () (aq ft) r) (qn) (ah)

1 Publid bivisertent ] 3 1
2 Suvey 19 ] m

o k] -

3 USACE Pemil 1 1 9
Pre-Application Meeting at USACE 28 L .
Addivonal Fleidwork 8 ] 306
Wilers iof the LS Deineation Report 80 5 2l
Faderallyisted Spaciies Hubilat Evaluation Report 2 H 2
Cultural Resource Assessmen! 8 L] I'fn
Funcliong AssessmenUMiligation Plan 127 3 1084
Parmit Submitat 24 s e

L] 5

4 SWPPP 8 L m
o s .

§  Wilhamwon County Ficodpiain Developmern Pevrmi 5 1] "
0 1

& Sediment Evalualiorl 0 £
Oblain Samples 24 5 204
Laboratory Testmg and Anslysis 42 ] 357

L] 5 N
7 Utikty Coordinativn 28 3 238
Q 3 .

A Channel Design 0 ] -
Erosian Analysis 88 5 748
Slope Slabdily 43 3 388

L] ] .

% Latter of Map Revision o 3 -
Obfain FEMA Backup Dsta 2 ¥ 17
Incarporale FEMA dala nto hydrologic mode! 3 1 28
Oevetop hydraullc model and detemiine Moodpiain 4 s u
Complala existing conditions hydraullc model 4 1] k)

0 1 .
Ut wras by fo ancapiruta kan s 5 3 43
Complaie proposed comdilons 18 3 138
Compieie FEMA MT-2 Forms 27 i 230
Submit LOMR (o FEMA 4 ozs 3 9284
LOMR Report k] 3 308
Address FEMA Commenis 15 ] 128
Nervezpaper Notiflcation 3 |5 m
1 : 3 ]
10 30% Plans and Specificailons 190 1 Lavg
0 $ -
0 £
11 80% Consiruction Documants 363 1 1,086
0 ¥ -
12 Issued for Bid Documants 150 1 1275
0 3 -
12 Bid Pnase [ 3 .
Bid 1 Pre-Bid Magling 0 5 B
Bid 2 Addenwa 29 3 247
aid 3 Bid Opening 8 ] 5
Mih 4 B 1 B 3 31
Tutil Bunle Seryices flvms 1405 B B - F . P e - = * 00
Total Basiz Sorvicen Expenass Effor 3 12700 % - ¥ - % - % - 3 - % - % - 5 - 3 . L. E T =11
203 L Caunty! . Gabriw River Rench Rosd Fes Amendment Classfications Odl 13 xsm




Freess il Maholy, e

Willameon County
San Gabriel Ranch Road Amendment
13-Oct-16
DalsHed Coat Braakdown

Project Fes Sumnrary
[}

[Banic
Hpeslal $

| Yotsl Fuoject 5

2RI

a4 W

Phme Task

Bubconsuitanta

TR 0 L] 0 o

Total Suo
Bffor

Bd
ad

Bt

-

TRV

Puubig Ivolummest

Survey 16,500

USACE Parmul

Pre-Applicalion Meating &t UBACE

Additional Fieldwork

Watnrn of this L 8. Dafirasting Ragon
Foderally-listed Speciies Habua! Evafustion Repor
Cuitural Resowca Assessment

Fignctizrll Ansmesmigel Mitgatist Dlin

Permil Submitlal

SWPPP
Williamatn Canmty Flaodptin Do) Perm

Sediment Evaluation
Oblmn Samples
Laboratory Testing and Aratyse 4,000

Utsity Coonimation

Incorporate FEMA tla inlo hydrologic model
Develop hydraulic model and delaiming floodpian
Complele axisiing conditions hydraulic model
Updsle models to incoprats dam remaovel
Compleie proposed condilions hydraulic model
Compisle FEMA MT-2 Forms

Suhell LOMR b FEMA

LOMR Raport

Address FEMA Comments

Newspaper Notfication

30% Plany and Specfications

90% Consruction Documents.
Inptied fir flint Dectatrunsy
Bid Phasa

Pre-Bid Mesting

Addenda

Bid Opumey
) Evmanu

18 500

HA4

WS R WA AR A A G e b kAR R B A bR e AR WA e A AR R AR BR MR AR R AR e AR e AR L e R LY e B A R U R A

Tatal Basic Services Subicanaubiants Coal

Total fasle Sarvices Subconmiltanis Efort $

aa

22,44

Fbwer Fimciy Alaod Faw Amacidenend Cieefledtivig Out 13 cam

10132018



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1
TO
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PROJECT: Engineering Design Services for the repair of San
Gabriel Ranch Road

This Supplemental Work Authorization No. 1 to Work Authorization No._1 _is made pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services, being dated
April 07, 2016 (“Contract”) and entered into by and between Williamson County, Texas, a
political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the "County") and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (the
"Engineer").

WHEREAS, the County and the Engineer executed Work Authorization No. 1 dated effective
April 12, 2016 (the “Work Authorization”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Contract, amendments, changes and modifications to a fully executed
Work Authorization shall be made in the form of a Supplemental Work Authorization; and

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend, change and modify the Work Authorization.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the Engineer agree that the Work
Authorization shall be amended, changed and modified as follows:

0 The Services to be Provided by the Engineer that were set out in the original Attachment
“B” of the Work Authorization are hereby amended, changed and modified as shown in
the attached revised Attachment “B” (must be attached).

1. The Work Authorization shall terminate on October 30, 2017 . The Services to be
Provided by the Engineer shall be fully completed on or before said date unless extended
by an additional Supplemental Work Authorization. The revised Work Schedule is
attached hereto as Attachment “C” (must be attached).

.~ The maximum amount payable for services under the Work Authorization is hereby
increased from $265,143.00 to $533,524.00. The revised Work Schedule is attached hereto
as Attachment “D” (must be attached). '

County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to
finance the costs of this Supplemental Work Authorization. Engineer understands and agrees that
County’s payment of amounts under this Supplemental Work Authorization is contingent on the
County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in
the exercise of reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under the
Supplemental Work Authorization. It is further understood and agreed by Engineer that County



shall have the right to terminate this Supplemental Work Authorization at the end of any County
fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by
County’s budget for the fiscal year in question. County may effect such termination by giving
written notice of termination to Engineer.

Except as otherwise amended by prior or future Supplemental Work Authorizations, all other terms
of the Work Authorization are unchanged and will remain in full force and effect.

This Supplemental Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations
provided under the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Engineer have executed this Supplemental Work
Authorization, in duplicate, to be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below.

EXECUTED this day of , 20
ENGINEER: J //// COUNTY:
_/ -
By: _ v {l By:
Signature / Signature
i ockees,c 7 Dan Gattis
Printed Name Printed Name
ry= FRES/DEMT County Judge
Title Title
1/ lze .

Date Date



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County

Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer

Attachment C - Work Schedule

Attachment D - Fee Schedule



Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer

Attached behind this page



Freese and Nichols, Inc.
San Gabriel Ranch Road
Final Design
Work Authorization 1 Supplemental No. 1

Project Description

This Supplemental is a result of an alternative evaluation study performed by Freese and Nichols to
assist Williamson County in deciding how to address the concerns at San Gabriel River Ranch Road Dam,
including hydraulic inadequacy, auxiliary spillway erosion, and undermining of the county road. Because
of that study, Williamson County has decided to remove the dam and create a new channel along the
original creek alignment and construct a two-lane bridge over the new channel. This Supplemental
includes preparation of plans and specifications for the dam removal, channel restoration, and bridge
construction. It also includes environmental permit coordination with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.
Informal conversations with USACE suggest that an Individual Permit (with mitigation) may be required.

A. Delete the stricken text in Work Authorization 1 Attachment B, and replace with the
following:

DESIGN

1. Public Involvement
a. Attend one (1) public meeting to inform area residents of concept
b. Prepare draft posters (total of 3 posters) for public meeting for County review.
c. Address County’s comments and prepare final posters (total of 3 posters).

2. Perform additional survey
a. 1-ft topo of the dam embankment, and 400-feet of creek channel downstream from the
dam.
b. Two channel cross sections downstream of the topo area.
¢. Five channel cross sections upstream of the dam.
d. Tree survey

3. US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Permit
a. Coordinate and Attend a Pre-Application Meeting with USACE to identify and confirm
permitting approach and requirements.
b. Perform additional fieldwork to supplement initial field visit to delineate regulated waters,
identify wildlife habitat and potential cultural resources.
Prepare Waters of the U.S. Delineation Report.
Prepare Federally-listed Species Habitat Evaluation Report.
Prepare Cultural Resources Assessment.
Develop functional assessment/mitigation plan.
Develop and submit a pre-construction notification (PCN) to USACE.

@™ o a o



4. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
a. Develop a reference storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) for construction to be
executed by the project’s Primary Operator (Contractor). The SWPPP is to help reduce the
release of sediment and pollution from the construction site in accordance with the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(TPDES) general permit for storm water runoff from construction activity (TXR150000).

5. Williamson County Floodplain Development Permit
a. Prepare and submit a development permit to Williamson County.

6. Sediment Evaluation (If requested by resource agencies during permitting)
a. Obtain eight sediment samples from the surface of the lake bottom. It is assumed that
FNI will be able to utilize a boat on the lake for purposes of sediment sampling.
b. Perform laboratory analysis for identified potential chemicals of concerns (COCs)
including:
i. heavy metals (arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, selenium,
and silver) by EPA Method 6020.
ii. chlorinated herbicides by EPA Method 8151
iii. organochlorine pesticides by EPA Method 8081
iv. organophosphate pesticides by EPA Method 8141A
v. VOCs by SW-846 82608
7. Utilities
a. Coordinate utility relocation with utility companies. It is assumed that the utilities will
remain in similar horizontal alignment as they currently do and will be supported
vertically by the bridge.
8. Channel Design
a. Perform gradation testing on up to eight sediment samples
b. Evaluate channel stability to erosion for normal and flood flows
¢. Perform slope stability analysis of the proposed channel slopes
9. Letter of Map Revision
a. Study Area: The hydrologic study area will include the approximately 5.5 square mile
drainage basin upstream from San Gabriel River Ranch Dam. The hydraulic model study
area will begin at Lackey Creek Road and end at the confluence of Lackey Creek and
North Fork San Gabriel River.
b. Obtain FEMA effective model and backup data for Clearwater Ranch.
Obtain FEMA backup data for the zone A mapping of Lackey Creek and the North Fork
San Gabriel River, if available.
d. Incorporate Clearwater Ranch FEMA data into conceptual design phase hydrologic
model.
e. Develop an existing condition hydraulic model and determine floodplain limits across
the study area.



Based upon the above data, complete existing conditions hydraulic model and include:
i. Cross Section Plots
ii. Floodplain Delineation
iii. HEC-RAS Computer Models
Modify existing condition hydrologic and hydraulic models as necessary to develop a
proposed hydraulic model of the revised conditions through the site.
Determine proposed floodplain and identify project impacts.
Based on the above data complete:
i. Water Surface Profile Plots
ii. Cross Section Plots
iii. Floodplain Delineation
iv. Project impacts
v. Computer printouts of hydraulic models
Complete necessary FEMA MT-2 forms for inclusion in submittal.
Submit LOMR to FEMA and pay applicable review fees.
Prepare one digital copy of the report (FEMA, Community, and client) explaining the
methodologies and results of the study and containing appropriate charts, graphs, plots,
exhibits to describe the study.
Provide necessary coordination with FEMA and the Community to provide technical
information in support of the report. FNI will revise/respond to two rounds of FEMA
comments.
Prepare newspaper notification advertisement of map change
i. ldentify adversely impacted properties from flood study.
ii. Research property ownership obtaining names and addresses of adversely
impacted properties.
iii. Coordinate with the community to develop a newspaper notification ad to run
in the local newspaper.
iv. Submit and pay for newpaper add two local papers
v. Supply FEMA with copies of the newspaper ad.

10. Prepare 30 percent review drawings of the design.

Provide proposed typical section and cross sections

Provide proposed plan and profile sketches

Provide proposed drainage feature sketches

Provide table of contents for technical specifications

Provide opinion of probable construction cost

Attend one meeting with Williamson County staff to discuss comments
11. Prepare 90% set of construction documents

a.
b
c.
d.
e.
f.

a.

Finalize

1. Roadway grades and cross sections
2. Grading plans

3. Roadway details

4. Detailing of all drainage structures



5. Environmental Controls
6. Attend one meeting with Williamson County staff to discuss comments
b. Provide complete set of draft specifications
¢. Update opinion of probable construction cost
d. Submit plans and specifications to TCEQ Dam Safety
12, Develop final plans and specifications for bidding that incorporate County’s latest comments
13. Submit Issued for Bid plans and specifications to County and TCEQ Dam Safety
14, Update OPCC to accompany Issued for Bid set

Deliverables

30% Plans, specification outline, Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

90% Plans, Specifications, SWPPP, and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Issued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications, SWPPP, and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Design memorandum

FEMA Letter of Map Revision Submittal

USACE 404 Pre-Construction Notification

"o o0 oo

B. The Compensation and Expenses under the PSA shall be adjusted as follows:

Original Work Authorization Compensation Cap $265,143
Proposed Additional Effort +5268,381
Revised Compensation Cap $533,524




Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer

A. DESIGN PHASE
Evaluation and Schematic Design
1. Perform survey
Roadway profile and select cross sections of embankment
Flow line elevations for existing pipes and channel
Pond cross sections to determine storage capacity
1-ft topo of the spillway approach channel
1-ft topo of the river channel from the roadway to 100-feet downstream
2. Perfonm geotechnical Investigation
a. Perform four borings
. Provide geotechnical witness logging of soil strata and characterizations
¢. Perform geological reconnaissance of soil and bedrock exposures in the Lackey Creck
channel between the spillway and its confluence with the North Fork San Gabriel River
d.  Perform basic soil tests (Atterberg limits, minus 200, moisture contents) and penctrometer
tests as appropriate
e. Perform preliminary evaluation of dam cmbankment stability of cxisting dam in
accordance with TCEQ Dam Safety Guidelines for steady-state and rapid drawdown
loading conditions.
3. Perform hydrologic and hydraulic (11&!l) analyscs in accordance with TCEQ Dam Safcty
Guidelines and City of Austin Drainage Criteria Manual.
a. Evaluate drainage area and runoff characteristics for existing and ultimate development
b. Develop stage-storage-discharge rating curves to represent existing dam conditions
¢. Develop peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 2 to 100-year recurrence intervals
d. Develop peak reservoir stage, storage and discharge lor 75% PMF
4. Develop schematic design lor three alternative repair concepts as follows:
a.  Removing embankment at approximate location ol original Lackey Creek stream channel
and installation of bridge crossing Lackey Creek while keeping same roadway alignment.
b. l.caving dam hydraulics and roadway alignment unchanged, replace the principal spillway
corrugaled metal pipe, re-laying the cxisting concrete pipe, and providing channel and
slope armoring at outfall of the present emergency spillway concrete pipes.
¢.  Removing the existing emergency spillway concrete pipes and installation of an emergency
spillway structure Lo pass flows under the roadway and into a drop structure at the outfall,
including armoring the outfall area as needed, replacing the principal spillway corrugated
metal pipe. Evaluate and address seepage control and erosion along the embankment
interface. Keep roadway elevations unchanged.
5. [Lvaluate the following for cach alternative:
a. Pcak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 2-1 00-year recurrence intervals
b. Pcak reservoir stage, storage and discharge for 75% PMF
¢. Increased water levels in Lackey Creek [rom San Gabriel Ranch Road to confluence with
San Gabricel River,
d. Opinion of probable construction costs
€. Permit requirements
6. Provide documentation of proposed alternatives
Document geotechnical results in Technical Memorandum
Document H&H results in Technical Memorandum
Summarize results of alternative analysis in Summary Report
Attend up to two (2) meetings with Williamson County staff to present results
Attend one (1) public meeting to inform area residents of concepts

©aogow

¢cao o

Original Date: 8/4/15
Revision Date: 3/29/16 5



7. Deliverables
a. Geotechnical Results Technical Memorandum
b. Hydrology and Hydraulics Technical Memoranduwin
c. Alternative Summary Report
d. Posters for public meeting

Environmental Permitting
a. Develop permitting strategy for sclected alternative.
b. Site visit by Environmental Scientist
& Coordination with Texas Historical Commission (THC).
d. Bsyelop and submit a pre-construction notification (PCN) to USACE.

The County has Wdicated previously that the bridge alternative is unlikelyfo be selected.

a. Provide propgsed typical section and cross sections

b. Provide proposédplan and profile sketches

¢.  Provide proposed aMinage feature sketches

d. Provide table of contems for technical specificati

3. 3. Prepare 90% sct of construction ¥gecuments

a. Finalize
1.Roadway grades and crosSegcéns
2.Grading plans
3.Roadway details
4. Detailing of all drajfige structures
5.Environmental @Ontrols

b. Provide coniplete s¢#Ol drafi specifications

¢. Provide opiniongf probable construction cost

d.  Submit plang#ind specifications to TCEQ Dam Safety

Submit Issueg#for Bid plans and specifications to County and TCEQ Dam S¥gty
Updatc C for Issucd for Bid sct
Delivpeibles
d.  Conceptual sketches, specification outline
b. 90% Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
c. Issued-For-Bid Plans, Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Novw e

2. Prepare condwgtual set of sketches for either allernative 4.b or 4.¢ based upge®County's selection.

Develop final plg# and specifications for bidding that incorporate Coursls latest comments

Bid Phase
1. Attend Pre-Bid Meeting
2. Prepare any necessary addenda
3. Attend Bid Opening
4. Assist County with bid evaluations

Original Date: 8/4/15
Revision Date: 3/29/16



Attachment C - Work Schedule

Attached behind this page



| San Gabriel River Ranch Road Repalr ]

I Task Name “Duration Start Finish 225,'16. Nov13,'16 Jan1,'17 Feb19,'17  Apr9.'17 May 28,17 'Jul16,'17  Sep3,'17 0ct22,'17  Decl,'17 o781 Marlg 18 May6,'18  jun ZA,I':_I,s Aug12,'18 1‘
il F H s T oW s s M T w1 F 5 M

— i $ 5 M T w T MoT T
1 Notice to Proceed 0 days Mon 11/7/16 Mon 11/7/16 ] u»ﬂl.ﬂ‘
' 7 Design 180days  Mon 11/7/16 Fri7/18/17
3 Obtain Survey 4 wks Mon 11/7/16 Fri12/2/16 L
Right-Of-Entry !
| 4 Survey 3 wks Man 12/5/16 Fri12/23/16 | |
s USACE Permit 135days  Frl11/18/16 Fri5/26/17 K . |
|
& Pre-Application 0 days Fri 11/18/16 Fri11/18/16 k 11418
| Meeting |
| 7 Additional Fieldwark 1wk Mon 11/21/1€Fri 11/25/16 ;
] Prepare Application 12 wks Mon Fri 3/3/17 i ——
12/12/16 | | |
L] USACE Review 12 wks Mon 3/6/17 Fri5/26/17 "|—'Eﬂu
|
10 30% Design 8 wks Mon 12/26/1€Fri 2/17/17 T—
|
11 County Review 2 wks Mon 2/20/17 Fri3/3/17 "-'ll
12 90% Design 12wks  Mon3/6/17 Frl 5/26/17 | ST |
| |
I County Review 2 wks Mon 5/29/17 Fri6/9/17 T
|
14 Issued for Bid 5 wks Mon 6/12/17 Fri 7/14/17 T |
Documents
15 Bid 40 days Mon 7/17/17 Frl 9/8/17 — |
]
| 16 Advertise for Bid 4wks Mon 7/17/17 Fri 8/11/17 N—
| |
: 17 Pre-Bld Meeting 0 days Fri 7/28/17  Fri7/28/17 R, 1
|
| 18 Bid Opening 0 days Fri8/11/17  FriB/11/17 Py T |
| s
19 Bid Evaluation and 4 wks Mon 8/14/17 Fri9/8/17 |
Award
20 Construction 52 wks Mon 9/11/17 Fri9/7/18 % |
| |
|
| =]
| Task B Project Summary sy Inactive Milestone Manual Summary Rollup s Dcadling +
Project: SGRR Mod 1 Sehadule_wm  SPIL eomannn o External Tasks st INactive Summary Manual Summary Pr——  Progress
Date: Wed 10/5/16 Milestane * External Milestone + Manual Task Bl Start-only [
| Summary Pe—m—  |nactive Task Duration-anly Finish-only 3

Page 1




Attachment D - Fee Schedule

Attached behind this page



Freeus and Nichols, Ine.

Willlamaon County
Bap Gabriel Ranch Road Ansndment [ FTE]
13-0ct-16 Bpecial s .
Detalied Cost Breakdown ol Projecy 13 203
Hasfe Barvicas
[ cAD c40
Project Role Prfesiveié  Pretumirni Profmmmreid  Prtowcnedd  Prebemswi I Padesin | Pt Ayt m:-’m- ld-::lm- Total Hours TB::";lﬂbﬂr TWIE'E':I:“"" Total Sub Etfort|  Total Effort
Hourly Bill Rate _ $24000  $20900 317800  $156.00  §137.00  $11300  $14800 515300  $9600 $000 $0.00 2000
1 Public Involvement . L] 4 1 E] FEEEAE] ngfs = |5 2m
2 Burvey 4 4 1 4 13 3 20203 s 16,500 | 5 18,631
0 3 - 13 - |5 5 -
@ UBACE Permit 1 1 s 1481 9|5 5 157
Pre-Application Mesting #l USACE 12 4 12 28 ] AN6|s 2385 4 4354
Additonal Fleldwork [} 2 38 5 4588 (% 306 | 2 1 4,894
Walsrs of the U.8. Definestion Report 8 12 0 80 L] 10078 (3 6805 3 10,756
Foderally-isiod Bpecies Habiiat Evahustion Raport 4 4 2 32 5 4048 | 3 a2 Y 4320
Culliral Rpeource Assessmont (] 8 5 12483 6|5 5 1318
Functioeull Assessmantddagmton Pan 0 12 85 127 ] 16,017 % 1080 (5 ] 17,897
Parmit Skailal L] 10 24 3 92324 2048 3 3.4%6
0 5 - I3 - |5 £ -
4 SWPPP 4 24 4 [ 38 $ 6170 % 3234 5 6,483
[ 5 : - 1% L 1 .
6  Wililameon County Floodplain Development Permsit 2 1 [ 1 5 1 a3 4% s 837
0 3 5 - |5 5 .
8 Ssdimen Evalustlon 0 4 - |3 N 1
Obtain Samples 2 2% 5 2nis 204 |5 . ¢ 2016
Laborstory Tewting and Analysis 12 » 42 [y 0330 |5 7|8 FEIIE B 1447
0 3 = % R E] =%
7 Utinty Coordination 4 24 20 3 4008 285 5 42
0 5 5 - 1% 5
8 Channal Design 0 3 3 - |E L3
Eroslon ] ] ] 4 1 8 ] 13m2]8 7483 1 14 060
Slops Subility ] 8 & E] 2 43 1 7.602|5 366 |4 5 7968
[} ) - |5 - |8 3
0 Latter af Map Revislon 0 L - |8 LR E $ .
Chabalry FEMA Backimp Dby 2 2 H 2|5 17)4% 3 a2
Incsuporatn FEMA datn irio yrirologic modsl 1 2 3 s 490 | % 2|9 5 516
Dvrvi teprdrmiic icaist eed sl Moo b 4 4 s 6244 s s 658
Comtiless wxtuting comdtiing hydrouls motel 4 4 H 624 |5 Huls 5 658
Upztatm mekdnts 10 moomrsls dam oyl 1 4 5 ] 802 (5 4308 5 845
Conrglote proposed condilions hydrmilly modsl 10 18 1 2,496 | % 126 |4 3 2632
Compdetn FEMA MT-2 Piemn 1 t 4 27 5 4003 220 (3 H 4570
Eubmit LOMA lo FEMA 4 4 1] 624 | 3 9284 |8 H 9,908
LM Ragraart 4 L] % 36 % 8128 % 306 | 4 3 6,424
Adkfresa FELA Cominanks 1 2 12 15 5 2468 | 5§ 128 | § 5 259
3 3 ) 468 | 3 378 | %  ; 844
1 1 3 148 | 5 9]4 3 157
10 30% Plans and Specificaticns 2 “ 7 2% 40 20 00 160 3 27.908 | 5 1815 | 3 ] 20521
0 ] - 1% O | 3
11 90% Construction Documents. E 2 £} 40 80 1 L] 100 363 i 53,208 | % 3088 | 4 e 56 352
0 H - |8 - |8 L) .
12 Issued for Bid Documenie s 2 L 12 40 1 30 24 150 L] S | 8 1275 | § 14 24935
0 ] 5 B £ 3 -
13 BldPhese ° H $ - Is 5
Bid 1 Pre-8id 0 ) 5 - |3 5 .
8id 2 ] 8 o 1 8 29 3 5232 % 247 (% 5 5479
Bid s 8id Opening 2 4 ] s 1192 % 518 5 1243
Bd 4 Bid Evaivaion 2 4 s 3 1192 % 51| 4 1243
a ] 5 - 5 - 13
Tatal Bmaic Sarvjcan Honrs 121 48 218 299 245 249 0 127 184 0 0 0 14051 323737 |3 74314]s w2340 [ 3 R
Totwl Bagic Suivicon Labor Effart § 20040 $ 9674 § 35448 § 40644 $ 33565 § 28137 $ 1184 5 19431 § 17684 § - 8 N

1of3 L L it Gabrisl River Rench Rosd Fes Amandmant- Classificsions Oct 13 xem W00




Prwwis apmd st Iz

Williamson County
San Gabrisl Ranch Road Amendment

13-Oct-16
Detalled Cost Braakdown Total Projest 4 o
Lg Format - Lg Formal - Lg Formal - Lg Format - Lg Farmat - Lg Format -
BAY Coor  Binding  Bond - y Bond - Total Exp
Phase  Task Expenses TechChage  Mies | (heell  (each) BAW(sq or-BAW ive-BAW Color(sq o -Cdar Iva-Colr O Effort
" safn) (m Ay n) fsg ) f= M)
T Pubiz lehmoent ] (3 10
2 Survey 13 5 n
0 ]

3 USACE Permit 1 3 ]
Pre-Application Meeling at USACE 2 5 f)
Additional Fiekdvwork % 5 308
Wiisteey of thes U0 Dusliteotiine Flagort 80 ) 680
Foderally-listed Species Habitat Evaluthion Report 2 3 m
Cultural Resource Assessmen) ) L] 68
Functiona! Assessmont'Mitgation Plan 127 s 1.080
Parmil Subimitial 24 5 204

0 ] .

4 Sweep 8 s 23
0 s -

5 Wiliamsan County Flondplain Development Permit 5 1 )
0 ) -

% Sediment Evalustion 0 s .
Oblain Samples 24 E 204
Leboralory Testing and Anslyws 42 s 357

[ 3 -
7 Uttty Coontination 28 3 28
0 [ -

A Channel Design 0 $ -
Erosion Analysis 88 3 748
Slope Statwlily 4 3 el

[] 5

U Letter of Map Revision 0 ¥
Obiain FEMA Backup Dala 2 3 17
Incomorate FEMA data inla hydrotogic model 3 5 26
Develop hydraull: model and datermine floodpiain 4 s u
Complele axisting condtions hydrauic modal ‘ 5 )

0 ¥
Updale models to incomprale dam reinaval E] 3 43
Complele proposed condllions hydraullc model 16 5 136
Complele FEMA MT-2 Forms 27 5 230
Sk LONL by FEMA 4 w5 9284
LOMR Report ] 5 08
Addrass FEMA Comments 15 5 128
Newspaper Noufication 3 | 76
1 5 9
10 30% Plans and Specifications 190 13 1815
0 5 .
4] 13 .
11 90% Construction Documenta 363 $ 3,086
0 )
12 Iwsmiedd for But [oemais 150 ] 1215
0 5
13 Bid Phase 0 ¥
Bid 1 Pre-8u Meefing 0 3
Bid 2 Addenda 29 S 27
Bid 3 [ 5 51
Bl 4 i L3 5t
Tatal Bowie Servican Hams 1,485 . - - ¥ . . . = : - voan
Total asic Burvices Exponees o $ 12708 3 ) - 3 - 3 - 3 Sl S ) ) S - ¥ - 3 30T 3zl
2013 L 7 Gabriet River Ranch Rosd Fes Amendmant Cleseifications Oct 13 xem 10132018




Feesaw anid Nigkals, b

Wiiliamson County

San Gabeinl Ranch Road Amandmant
13-0ct-16

Delallad Cast Breakdawn

Bubcomsuitanis

Gorondona  Xenco TR 0 0 0 a o 0 L] a 0

Total Sup
Etton

Bd
8id

Bid

P Bvory sl
Survey

USACE Pormit
Pre-Applieation Masting at USACE

Adddional Fietdwork

Walers of the U S. Deimeation Report
Foderalty-isied Speciies Halitat Evaluation Reporl
Cuftural Resource Aswesomant

Functionsl Asseasment/Mitgation Plan

Parmi Submitial

SWPPP
Williamaon County Floodptan Development Pesmil

Sediment Evaiuation
Obisn Samples
Lahorslory Testing and Analysss.

Utility Coordination

Latier of Map Revision

Obtan FEMA Backup Dats

Incorporate FEMA data Into hydrologic model
Develop hydraullc model and determina oodplaen
Complete ensting condrions hydrewulic model
Update models o ncomprate dam removel
Complete proposed condiions hydraulic model
Compiela FEMA MT-2 Forms

Subsul LOMA 12 FEMA

LOMR Report

Address FEMA Commenis

Newspaper Nolification

3% Pas and Specizibam

90% Consiruction Documenta
Issued for B« Documents
Bid Phase

Pre-8id Meeiing

Addenda

Bid Opemng
Bid Evaluabon

4,800 1,040

R T L L R I I T I I I I ™

14 500

=

Total Bagiu Services Subsonuufiants Cost § 18,500 §
Total Baske Seivides Bubcormillanis Effort $ 16500 §

LA ST ] < 5 - ¥ - 3 P PR 3 P I P
AS00 3 140 8 - 8 . 3« %« 8+ &  « % % - %

22340

L Pmsblsrrat LSV WY A Cosrty W0 1T/ Sl Bealijin S Gabriel River Ranch Rowd Fes Amandment Claestfications Oct 13 xism

10/ 22018




CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES FOorM 1295

lofl

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:

of business. 2016-131336

Freese and Nichols, Inc.

Fort Worth, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 11/01/2016

being filed.

Williamson County Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the Identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

San Gabriel River Ranch Rd
Engineering Services

a Nature of interest

Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) {check appllicable)
Controlling | Intermediary

Payne, Jeff Frisco, TX United States X

Coltharp, Brian Fort Worth, TX United States X

Milrany, Cindy Fort Worth, TX United States X

Herchert, Robert Fort Worth, TX United States X

New, John San Antonio, TX United States X

Pence, Bob Fort Worth, TX United States X

Nichols, Mike Fort Worth, TX United States X

Gooch, Tom Fort Worth, TX United States X

Hatley, Tricia Oklahoma City, OK United States X

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 AFFIDAVIT

| swear, or affirm, under penalty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.

9 ) etln

(/' signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / SEAL ABOVE

Swom to and subscribed before me, by the said __ Will Allanach ,this the st day of_November |
20 16 , to certify which, witness my hand and seal of office.
A.J!M,lbﬂf /] ) [./,){5"‘! W/ i Susanne M. Johnson Notary
Signature of officer adminé’le;ing oath Printed name of officer administering oath Title of officer administering oath

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V1.0.277



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 29.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Approve expenditures for water leak repair and mixing valve installations at the Jail House

Submitted For: Max Bricka Submitted By: Teri Jeffries, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving expenditures to make repairs to a water leak at the Jail
House in the boiler room, as well as needed repairs to valves. Repairs to be completed per proposal from Mtech in
the amount of $16,750.00, under TXMAS-15-03FACO1.

Background

MTech to replace 10 feet of copper line to repair leak in boiler room, as well as to install additional thermostat on
second boiler, and install additional valves needed to ensure proper working condition of boiler systems, per
proposal # 2016-11876 from MTech under TXMAS contract # TXMAS-15-03FACO0.1. Total amount of repairs
$16,750.00.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Jail boiler repairs

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Teri Jeffries Started On: 11/03/2016 07:56 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



. Proposal
Lomomroinl WPAL Pambooy - Ehetrkal
COMFORT aYBTEMB LA

| Phone: 512.929.7090|1720 Royston Lane, Round Rock, TX 78664 | TACLA021308C| TACLA0020760C{ M-18971 | TECL 29725 |

Date: October 6, 2016 Proposal Number: 2016-11876

Customer:

Location:

Project Name:

Scope of Work:

Includes:

Exclusions:

Prepared by:

Paul Wilson

TXMAS-15-03FACO1

Williamson County Attention:  Toby Bonnet
Williamson Jail House Email: tbonnet@wilco.org
306 W 4t Street Phone: 512-654-1495

Georgetown, TX

Water Leak Repair and Mixing Valve Install

Mtech will replace approximately 10’ of 4” copper to repair a leak on a 4” 90 in boiler room
WE WILL ISOLATE LINE AT BUTTERFLY VALVES, CUT OUT A SECTION BEFORE HANGERS AND
INSTALL TWO PRO PRESS COUPLINGS AND A NEW PRO PRESS 90

This price also includes an additional thermostat for the second boiler

We will install (owner provided) 2” Leonard valve with bypass

This is a high low flow system has to be installed to the manufacturer spec with balancing
valves

Once it installed we have to set the valve in both low flow and high flow solutions

To check low flow we will probably have to do that after hours when low flow conditions
exist

Tstat, valves, pipes, fittings and labor
Some of the labor is built in for after hours

Existing condition of pipe and valves

Quoted Price ..........cc.ccooeuvicvnenee. $16,750.00 (excluding tax)

Email: paul.wilson@csusa.us

Phone: 512-680-2878

A Comfort Systems USA Company = ——

somrorr UGA



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES FOrRM 1295

lofl

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:

of business. 2016-130635

Mtech

Round Rock, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 10/31/2016

being filed.

Williamson County Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2016-11876
Water Leak Repair and Mixing Valve Install at Jail House

" Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. .

6 AFFIDAVIT

|

| swear, or affirm, under penalty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.

MARYBETH BARRETT I
Notary Public 4
LN STATE OF TEXAS
it My Comm. Exp. September 29, 2013 }

ignature ofauthorized agent of contractin'g-gusiness entity

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / SEAL ABOVE

) : ;
Sworn to and subscribed before me, by the said L (/L«3+G men (ILW f}'ff.‘%"r' ; , this the 5 (5 F day of O() {’O&l .

20 l ! y , to centify which, witness my hand and seal of office.

&f Y) Gy @t/d_/j’“f% A t/ K_Sbec fr_L.C’ s

Signature of officer administering oath Printed name of officer administering oath Title of officer administering oath

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V1.0.277



THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §

SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR
WATER LEAK REPAIR AND
MIXING VALVE INSTALL
(COUNTY JAIL)
(TX-MAS-15-03FACO1)

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes,
invoices or any other forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or
quasicontractual terms are subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including
but not limited to Tex. Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas
Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health &
Safety Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General relevant to local
governmental entities.

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County,
Texas (hereinafter “The County™), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting
herein by and through its governing body, and Mtech Comfort Systems USA
(hereinafter “Service Provider”). The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an
independent contractor, to assist in providing certain operational services pursuant to the
following terms, conditions, and restrictions:

I.

No Agency Relationship & Indemnification: It is understood and agreed that
Service Provider shall not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The
County, nor shall Service Provider hold himself out as an agent or official representative
of The County unless expressly authorized to do so by a majority of the Williamson
County Commissioners Court. Service Provider shall be considered an independent
contractor for the purpose of this agreement and shall in no manner incur any expense or
liability on behalf of The County other than what may be expressly allowed under this
agreement. The County will not be liable for any loss, cost, expense or damage, whether
indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, consequential of any kind whatsoever for any
acts by Service Provider or failure to act relating to the services being provided. Service




Provider agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend The County against any claim,
demand, loss, injury, damages, action, or liability of any kind against The County
resulting from any services Service Provider perform on behalf of The County.

1L

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this agreement will
be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

HI.

No Assignment: Service Provider may not assign this contract.

Iv.

Compliance With All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with any
and all local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered.

V.

Consideration and Compensation: Service Provider will be compensated based
on the attached Fee Proposal, dated October 6, 2016, which is marked as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated herein as if copied in full. The not-to-exceed amount under this
agreement is $16,750.00, unless amended by a change order and approved by the
Williamson County Commissioners Court. Payment for goods and services shall be
governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed
overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date The County receives the goods under
the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract is completed;
or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or
services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate
of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The
County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on
September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate
published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year
that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

VL

Insurance: Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services
covered in this Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum
insurance coverage in the minimum amounts as described below. Coverage shall be



written on an occurrence basis by companies authorized and admitted to do business in
the State of Texas and rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable
to The County and name The County as an additional insured.

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability
a. Worker's Compensation Statutory
b. Employer's Liability
Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit
C. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations

and contractual liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages
in the following amounts:

COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE
Comprehensive
General Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000
(including premises,
completed operations
and contractual)
Aggregate policy limits: $2,000,000
d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering
owned, hired, leased and non-owned vehicles):
COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE
Bodily injury $1,000,000 $1,000,000
(including death)
Property damage $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Aggregate policy limits No aggregate limit

Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code,
Section 406.141, and must provide its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors



worker’s compensation coverage. Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s
compensation coverage or any other type of insurance coverage held by The County.

Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with
insurance certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this
Contract.

VIIL.

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND
LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY
CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY
EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO
HAVE OCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE
WORK. SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT
THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE
SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY
INDEMNIFIED PARTY. THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES,
COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS
COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND
(WITH COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND
THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND
DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES,
LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT
OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE
WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS,
OR OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY
THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR
NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY
INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.

VIIIL.

Services: Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor
pursuant to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Service



Provider expressly acknowledges that he or she is not an employee of The County. The
services include, but are not limited to the following items in order to complete the
project:

As described in the Fee Proposal with Scope of Work for Installation, dated
October 6, 2016, which is incorporated herein as if copied in full.

IX.

Good Faith Clause: Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the
performance of this agreement.

X.

Confidentiality: Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a
governmental setting for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter
any unauthorized areas or access confidential information and he or she will not disclose
any information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of
the information at all times.

XL

Termination: This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of
either party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty
(30) days written notice thereof.

XII.

Venue and Applicable Law: Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County,
Texas, and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions.

XIIL

Effective Date and Term: This contract shall be in full force and effect when
signed by all parties and shall continue for a reasonable time period for the specific
project and shall terminate upon project completion or when terminated pursuant to
paragraph XI above.

XIV.

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this
agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any



respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision
in this agreement and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained in it.

XV.

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books,
documents, papers and records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Service Provider agrees that The County shall
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Service Provider facilities and
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in
compliance with the provisions of this section. The County shall give Service Provider
reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

XVI.

County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The
presiding officer of The County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this
instrument by order duly recorded may execute this contract on behalf of The County.

WITNESS the signatures of all parties in duplicate originals this the day
of ~,2016.
WILLIAMSON COUNTY: SERVICE PROVIDER:
Authorized Signature /Q:ﬁ'ﬁmriz.cd Signature



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 30.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Approve Renewal of Fuel Contract 1510-018

Submitted For: Max Bricka Submitted By: Sydney Richardson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the renewal of Fuel, Contract Number 1510-018, for
the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing Contract, for the term of December 1, 2016 - November 30,
2017 with Triple S Fuel - A Division of Texas Enterprises, Inc.

Background
This is the first extension of two (2) possible, one (1) year renewal options.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount
Attachments

Renewal Agreement

Form 1295
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM

Form Started By: Sydney Richardson Started On: 11/03/2016 08:17 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Summary Agreement for Renewal of Williamson County Contract

Purchase/Contract Type: Goods Department: Fleet

Vendor Name: Triple S Fuel - A Division of Texas Enterprises, Inc.

Vendor Address: P. O. Box 6156, Austin, Texas 78762

Purpose/Intended Use of Product or Service (summary):

Fuel

P.0./Contract Number: 1510-018 Effective Date: 12/01/2016
Purchaser/Contract Specialist: Sydney Richardson Expiration Date: 11/30/2017
Requested By: Ed Pospisil, Inventory Manager

Detailed description of renewal of product and/or service.

e Williamson County wishes to extend this bid/proposal for the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing
contract.
e PLEASE INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

- COMPLETED 1295 FORM; AND
- RENEWED INSURANCE CERTIFICATE IF IT WAS REQUIRED IN BID/PROPOSAL.
¢ Extend Contract for the first (1) of two (2), one (1) year renewal option periods:

Renewal Option Period 1 December 1, 2016 — November 30, 2017
Initial Contract Period December 8, 2015 — November 30, 2016

BY SIGNING BELOW, THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE TERMS OF EXTENSION SET OUT HEREIN

Vendor lfLLD\e § N%-Q/b Williamson County, 710 Main St., Georgetown, TX 78626

|
name. B Loa NME Dan A. Gattis
Title g‘GeC.VP Williamson County Judge
Signatureﬁ% Signature
Date 1© - (¢ —thP Date

Two (2) Signed Originals & One (1) photocopy must be submitted




- 0-04
WILLJIAI\;SON
COUNTY

1:

x

hN
WILLIAMSON COUNTY AFFIDAVIT AUTHORIZED VENDOR REPRESENTATIVE

| hereby swear, affirm and represent to Williamson County that my signature below represents that | am authorized to
bind the bidder/proposer to fully comply with the pricing, terms and conditions for the Contract listed below and any
extension thereof, if applicable.

Note: If Signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a Genera Partnership, a Power of Attorney or equivalent document must be
submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to being recommended for award of the contract or

renewal.
Contract Number: 1510-018
Contract Name: Fuel
Printed Name of Person Submitting Affidavit:
(/c( Lcok(e: X
Name of Company: Triple S Fuel - A Division of Texas Enterprises, Inc.
Date: 1€9—( ,204 Ca
Signature of Person Submitting Affidavit: Z ' 2 5
On this, the \\' Y% day OfD_(;kD_bQ', 20 ’Q , before me a notary public, the undersigned officer, personally
appearediio { Cx'j'\eul\ , known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that she/he executed the same for the purposes therein

contained.

B KAREN MASUR PHILLIPS

NOTARY PUBLIC
State of Texas

" Comm. Exp. 04-03~ 2019

In witness hereof, | hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

Two (2) Signed Originals & One (1) photocopy must be submitted



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES FORM 1295

lofl

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2016-120798
Triple S Fuels
Pflugerville, TX United States Date Filed:
10/06/2016

being filed.
Williamson County

2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is

Date Acknowledged:

1510-018
Fuel

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

Name of Interested Party

Nature of interest
City, State, Country (place of business) {check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary

Johnson Qil Company

Pflugerville, TX United States X

Triple S Fuels

Pflugerville, TX United States X

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.

L

6 AFFIDAVIT

e, KAREN MASUR PHILLIPS
% NOTARY PUBLIC

_. State of Texas

* Comm. Exp. 04-03-2019

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / SEAL ABOVE

Sworn to and subscribed before me, by the said ZCO L_/OOI'\'QV’ , this the _\ 34$— day of( !ngbf i

20 S gQ , to certify which, witness my hand and seal of office.

I swear, or affirm, under penalty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.

X eaoCoue p}\ \\905 C\COW\\[\

Printed name of officer administering oath Title of officer admmlstermg oath

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V1.0.277



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 31.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

RFQ 1507-017 Construction Material Testing/Inspection for Williamson County North Campus Facilites
Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing

Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFQ#1507-017, Construction Material
Testing/Inspection for Williamson County North Campus Facilities with Raba Kistner, Inc. and authorizing the
County Judge to execute professional services agreement.

Background

After initial evaluation of the ten (10) submitting firms, five (5) firms were interviewed. The evaluation committee is
recommending this contract to be awarded to Raba Kistner, Inc., due to their roadway paving inspection
experience in addition to their building inspection experience. Supporting evaluation documentation is attached.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
Score sheets
recommendation letter

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 01:35 PM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 11/03/2016 08:49 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Construction Material Testing/Inspection for Williamson County
NORTH CAMPUS FACILITIES
Evaluation
RFQ 1507-017

Possible
Evaluation Criteria Points | Alpha | Apex | Alliance | Arias | Fugro |Kleinfelder] MLA | Psi RABA | Terracon
Earthwork sampling and testing 25 | 10 | 15 20 15 | 15 20 20 | 20 | 18 10
Knowledge and Experience
Reinforced concrete testing &
inspection Knowledge & Experience 25 = 15 20 2 = . . 20 18 10
Structural steel building inspection 78 . T o T 15 -0 - % ) 10
Knowledge and Experience !
Structural steel weld inspection and
testing 25 10 15 20 15 15 20 18 20 18 10
100
TOTAL 40 60 80 60 60 80 76 80 72 40
Date: September 18, 2015 Purchasmg Rjr?entatwes

Voting Lz ,«/ 2L ,/xé/

Evaluation Committee Members Department

; E; QZ; {g %/ { Bob Daigh Infrastructure
Qé/({ /]//f uu(k L. Kelly Morrelli Road and Bridge

Terron Evertson Road and Bridge

& % —_—— - Dale Butler Facilities
i(—’?_\; \ George Mayfield Road and Bridge




Construction Material Testing/Inspection for Williamson County

NORTH CAMPUS
Evaluation
RFQ 1507-017

Possible
Evaluation Criteria Points Alliance Kleinfelder MLA PSI RABA
Experience of Project Manager 30 25 20 20 25 25
rience of Team Members
Experience a 30 25 15 15 25 25
Experience of Firm on local projects
20 15 10 10 15 15
Availability & accessibility of the project - i 1 5 n A
manager & team > 1 2 )
100
TOTAL 80 60 60 80 80
Date: september 24, 2015 Purchasing Representatives
/4 , A
Voting Lemrce g T
Evaluation Committee Members Department 4
(@/ Z ‘57 £/ / Bob Daigh Infrastructure
/ Kelly Morrelli Road and Bridge

Terron Evertson

Dale Butler

George Mayfield

Road and Bridge
Facilities

Road and Bridge




Memo "ANEOn

TO: Contract Files

FROM:  Robert B. Daigh, P.E.(},_, L/
DATE: September 24, 2016

SUBJ: RFQ 1507 -015 Construction Material Testing/Inspection for the Williamson County EXPO Center
RFQ 1507 -016 Construction Material Testing/Inspection for the Georgetown Annex
RFQ 1507 -017 Construction Material Testing/Inspection for the North Campus

This memo documents the decisions made by the Williamson County Evaluation Committee for the referenced
projects. Evaluations were conducted for the three RFQ’s on September 18, 2015 with Connie Singleton
representing the Purchasing Department present. Score sheets to the evaluations are attached.

Interviews were held and evaluated on September 24, 2015 with Connie Singleton present.

The interview scoring shows Alliance, PSI and RABA tying for first place with a score of 80 out of a possible
100 points. (score sheets attached) The Interview Evaluation Committee further deliberated during the
interview scoring meeting and chose Alliance to be recommended to the Commissioners Court for the
Williamson County Expo Project due to their familiarity with the Taylor building officials and their history of
inspecting buildings in Taylor. The Interview Evaluation Committee chose PSI to be recommended to the
Commissioners Court for the Georgetown Annex for their superior multi story building inspection experience.
The Interview Evaluation Committee chose RABA to be recommended to the Commissioners Court for the
North Campus Project due to their roadway paving inspection experience in addition to their building inspection
experience.

cc. Sarah Ramos



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 32.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

MTECH replacement of 3 boilers at Justice Center

Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing

Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving agreement between Mtech and Williamson County to
replace three (3) 750,000 Hydronic boilers in the Williamson County Justice Center, in the amount of $114,750
pursuant to TXMAS contract# TXMAS-15-03FACO01.

Background

This contract is for the replacement of three (3) boilers in the Justice Center and includes removal of the old boilers
and installment of the new boilers.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To | | Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Attachments
agreement and quote

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 11/03/2016 09:33 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Proposal
Lommarriel KVAS Pluanivag  Qeciricst
COMFORT aYBTEMS USA

|Phone: 512.929.7090|1720 Royston Lane, Round Rock, TX 78664 | TACLA0020760C | M-18971 | TECL 29725)

Date: October 20, 2016 Proposal Number:  2016-17509
TXMAS-15-03FACO1
Customer: Williamson County Attention: Toby Bonnet
Location: williamson County Justice Center Email: thonnet@wilco.org
405 Martin Luther King Ir. Phone: 512-943-1100

Georgetown, TX 78626

Project Name: Hydronic Boilers

Scope of Work:
»  Replace three 750,000 Hydronic boilers
Includes:
e Isolate gas, water lines and electrical connections
« Disconnect bailers from all power sources
= Remove existing vents to boilers
e Remove three hydronic boilers and set three new Lochinvar FXT725 boilers in its place
e All spoils will be removed from site
e Shut down system to replace gas valves and return system back to service for domestic
water heaters
e Connect to water inlets and outlets from existing 2 % water lines assuming water valves are
in good working order
e Wil run type L copper to connect to boilers, black iron pipe for gas line with drip legs, PVC
vents for air inlets and exhaust vents
e We will core 8” holes for 6” vents
e  This price includes the startup of three new units
Exclusions: Inlet, outlet isolation valves, electrical and controls

Quoted Price .........oeceeererenecninee $114,750.00 (excludes tax)

Prepared by:

Geronimo Lopez Acceptance of Proposal:
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory
and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as

Phone: 512-634-7253 specified.

Email: geronimo.lopez@csusa.us

comeont | JGA

A Comfort Systems USA Company = —




FTXL Fire Tube Boiler Dimensions & Specifications

Air inlet Electrical Connections P

O\ SV

M v
7 I i" ot i
e O N O s
ﬂ\\ —_— ; _.—-'l A
3 Gas Connection / B 65-1/2"
53-1/2" G Water Qutlet 40"
Water Inlet et
\ Flue Connection . 26-1/4"———
ro o
;{ [ 9-3/4" __
F o“_ » . L]
~ A B N R
N !

—— 22-1/2" ——

l =
26-1/4" 2-1/2" Condensate Connection A

input NET AHRI HEX

Min  Max Thermal Ouaaut Ratlrhg Turn  Flow (GPM)  Water
MBH MBH Efficlency MEH  MB down  Min Max Volume

00U 400 3999 9A0K 392 . - AR 103 _

FIYSOGINL) SO0 500 9T7% 4B 45 00 15 08 12 a/z mA WA T B4 sl map ww ro & & 10
FYGOONL) 850 oD 9IS% S W L 1S 18 1 R OVY AT W B A o wye v & k) S
MOBIND 1035 7250 W% 75 o3 T W 0 T W Wi 02 0T BT

Water  Vent  Air  Gas  Shipping
Conn.  Size Conn. Wl.ﬂhs.]

ARG 10 e . 8 1 X T/ 1R T/ N A '
HXBSO(NL) 1215 8500  97.0% 825 n o 15 16 3 BT W T BT 8T AL wro L 04
‘Informotion subjec! to ctarge wribout nofice

Dimensions ore in incres  Selec "N“ or "L" for Nawrol or LP gas

FOR EASE IN ORDERING
BY MODEL NUMBER

FTX 850 M13

N
AVERE
%, A
& N \a
G. W

This model is a 850,000 Btu/hr,
natural gas FTXL Fire Tube boiler,
It has M13 firing controls

-
S

¥

HIGH EFFICIENCY BOILERS B WATER HEATERS FI B @ E cochinvar.com e

5/15—Printed in U.S.A,

® Lochlnvar, LLC . .
B R 300 Maddox Simpson Parkway AT r’/!}_{é“\‘ i
Lebanon, Fennessee 37090 / \ | '\ b S
J‘ P: 615,889.8000 / F: 615.547.1000 AL cErnFED Vo MF
. et -
H




Lochinvar

HIGH EFFICIENCY BOILERS & WATER HEATERS

FTXL Fire Tube
Condensing Boiler
Submittal Sheet

FTX-Sub-01

FTXL FIRE TUBE BOILERS

JOB NAME WILLIAMSON COUNTY COURTHOUSE

LOCATION

ENGINEER N/A

WHOLESALER WINSTON WATER COOLER

MECH. CONTRACTOR

MODEL NO. (3) FTX725

TYPE GAS NATURAL

Btu/hr INPUT 725,000

Btu/hr OUTPUT 705,000

NOTES

SMART SYSTEM FEATURES

» Smart System Digital Operating Contral
Multi-Color Graphic LCD Display w/Navigation Dial

» Loch-K-Link™ USB Thumb Drive Port for Easy
Programming

» Cascading Sequencer with Bul(t-In Redundancy

Selectable Cascade Type:
|.ead | ag/Efficiency Optimization

Multiple Size Boilers
Front-End Loading

» 3 Reset Temperatures Inputs w/Independent Outdoor
Reset Curves for Each
Outdoor Sensor

3 Four-Pump Control .
System Pump with Parameter for Continuous Operation
Boiler Purnp with Variable-Speed Control
Domestic Hot Water Boiler Pump
Domestic Hot Water Recirculation Pump Control

with Sensor

s Building Management System Integration
0-10 YDC Input to Control Modulatlon or Setpoint
0-10 VDC Input from Variable-Speed System Pump
0-10 VDC Modulation Rate Output Signal
0-10 VDC Enable/Disable Signal

» Programmable System Efficlency Optimlizers
Space Heating Night Setback
DHW Night Setback
Anti-Cycling
Ramp Delay
Boost Time and Temperature

s High-Voltage Terminal Strip
120 VAC/60 Hertz/1 Phase
Pump Contacts for 3 Pumps

» Low-Voltage Terminal Strip
Building Recirculation Pump Start/Stop

Building Recirculation Return Temp Sensor Contacts

Proving Switch Contacts
Flow Switch Contacts
Alarm Contacts
Runtime Contacts
3 Space Heat Thermostat Contacts
Tank Thermostat Contacts
System Sensor Contacts
Tank Sensor Contacts
Cascade Contacts
0-10 VDC BMS Contacts
0-10 VDC Boiler Rate Output Contacts
0-10 VDC Boiler Pump Speed Contacts
0-10 VDC System Pump Speed Contacts
ModBus Contacts
» Time Clock
» Data Logging
Ignition Atlempts
Last 10 Lockouts
Space Heat Run Hours
Domestic Hol Water Run Haurs

STANDARD FEATURES

» 97%-98% Thermal Efflciency
» Modulating Burner with up to 10:1 Turndown
Direct Spark Ignition
Low NOx Operation
Sealed Combustion
Low Gas Pressure Operation
» Stainless Sieel Flre-Tube Heat Exchanger
ASME-Certified, “H" Stamped
160 psi Working Pressure
50 psi Relief Valve
Combustion Analyzer Test Port
Fully Welded Design
» Vertlcal and Horlzontal Direct Vent
Direct Vent up to 100 feet
PVC, CPVC, Polypropylene or AL29-4C
Factory Supplied Sidewall Vent Termination

» Smart System Control
) Other Features
On/Qff Switch
Adjustable High Limit with Manual Reset
Automatic Reset High Limit
Manual Reset Low Water Cutoff
Flue Temperature Sensor
Low Air Pressure Switch
Temperature and Pressure Gauge
Condensate Trap
Zero Service Clearances
10-Year Limited Warranty
Low Water Cutolf
Custom Maintenance Reminder with Contact Info
Password Security
Customizable Freeze Pratection Parameters
OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT
[OJ CON-X-US Remote Connectivity
[C1 ModBus Communication
BMS Gateway to BACnet or LonMark
[C] SMART SYSTEM PC Sofiware
3 Alarm Bell
[ Motorized Isolation Valve
[] Wireless Outdoor Temperature Sensor
[ Muiti-Temperature Loop Control
[ Variable-Speed Boiler Circulator
[ Constant-Speed Boiler Circulator
L] Condensate Neutralization Kit
[CJ Concentric Vent Kit (FTX400-FTX600)
[ Common Vent Kits
[ High and Low Gas Pressure Switches w/Manual Reset
(FTX500-FTX850)
[ 30 psi ASME Relief Vaive
2375 psi ASME Relief Valve
[[] 100 pst ASME Relief Valve
] 125 psi ASME Relief Valve
] 150 psi ASME Relief Valve

* Firing Controls
[ m9-Standard Construction
[J M13-CSD-1/FM/GE Gap (FTX500-FTX850)



THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §
SERVICES CONTRACT

FOR BOILER REPLACEMENTS
(Williamson County Justice Center)
(TX-MAS-15-03FACCO01)

RIS A EET =i Lm

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes,
invoices or any other forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or
quasicontractual terms are subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including
but not limited to Tex. Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas
Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health &
Safety Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General relevant to local
governmental entities.

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County,
Texas (hereinafter “The County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting
herein by and through its governing body, and Mtech Comfort Systems USA
(hereinafter “Service Provider”). The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an
independent contractor, to assist in providing certain operational services pursuant to the
following terms, conditions, and restrictions:

L

No Agency Relationship & Indemnification: It is understood and agreed that
Service Provider shall not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The
County, nor shall Service Provider hold himself out as an agent or official representative
of The County unless expressly authorized to do so by a majority of the Williamson
County Commissioners Court. Service Provider shall be considered an independent
contractor for the purpose of this agreement and shall in no manner incur any expense or
liability on behalf of The County other than what may be expressly allowed under this
agreement. The County will not be liable for any loss, cost, expense or damage, whether
indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, consequential of any kind whatsoever for any
acts by Service Provider or failure to act relating to the services being provided. Service
Provider agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend The County against any claim,




demand, loss, injury, damages, action, or liability of any kind against The County
resulting from any services Service Provider perform on behalf of The County.

IL.

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this agreement will
be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

1IN

No Assignment: Service Provider may not assign this contract.

IV.

Compliance with All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with any
and all local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered.

V.

Consideration and Compensation: Service Provider will be compensated based
on the attached Fee Proposal, dated October 20, 2016, which is marked as Exhibit “A”
and incorporated herein as if copied in full. The not-to-exceed amount under this
agreement is $114,750.00, unless amended by a change order and approved by the
Williamson County Commissioners Court. Payment for goods and services shall be
governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed
overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date The County receives the goods under
the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract is completed;
or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or
services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate
of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The
County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on
September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate
published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year
that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

VL

Insurance: Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services
covered in this Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum
insurance coverage in the minimum amounts as described below. Coverage shall be
written on an occurrence basis by companies authorized and admitted to do business in



the State of Texas and rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable
to The County and name The County as an additional insured.

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability
a. Worker's Compensation Statutory
b. Employer's Liability
Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit
Ca Comprehensive general liability including completed operations

and contractual liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages
in the following amounts:

COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE
Comprehensive
General Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000
(including premises,
completed operations
and contractual)
Aggregate policy limits: $2,000,000
d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering
owned, hired, leased and non-owned vehicles):
COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE
Bodily injury $1,000,000 $1,000,000
(including death)
Property damage $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Aggregate policy limits No aggregate limit

Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code,
Section 406.141, and must provide its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors
worker’s compensation coverage. Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s
compensation coverage or any other type of insurance coverage held by The County.



Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with
insurance certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this
Contract.

VIIL.

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND
LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY
CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY
EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO
HAVE OCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE
WORK. SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT
THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE
SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY
INDEMNIFIED PARTY. THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES,
COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS
COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND
(WITH COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND
THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND
DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES,
LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT
OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE
WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS,
OR OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY
THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR
NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY
INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.

VIII.

Services: Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor
pursuant to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Service
Provider expressly acknowledges that he or she is not an employee of The County. The



services include, but are not limited to the following items in order to complete the
project:

As described in the Fee Proposal with Scope of Work for Installation, dated
October 20, 2016, which is incorporated herein as if copied in full.

IX.

Good Faith Clause: Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the
performance of this agreement.

X.

Confidentiality: Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a
governmental setting for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter
any unauthorized areas or access confidential information and he or she will not disclose
any information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of
the information at all times.

XL

Termination: This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of
either party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty
(30) days written notice thereof.

XIL.

Venue and Applicable Law: Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County,
Texas, and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions.

XIII.

Effective Date and Term: This contract shall be in full force and effect when
signed by all parties and shall continue for a reasonable time period for the specific
project and shall terminate upon project completion or when terminated pursuant to
paragraph XI above.

XIV.

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this
agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision



in this agreement and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained in it.

XV.

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books,
documents, papers and records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Service Provider agrees that The County shall
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Service Provider facilities and
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in
compliance with the provisions of this section. The County shall give Service Provider
reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

XVL

County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The
presiding officer of The County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this
instrument by order duly recorded may execute this contract on behalf of The County.

WITNESS the signatures of all parties in duplicate originals this the day
of , 2016.
WILLIAMSON COUNTY: SERVICE PROVIDER: m Ee ] \
Authorized Signature Authorized Signature
LTS ﬂ/; vINGE!™

KERATIONS MAVA &



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES ForM 1295

lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2016-132056
Mtech
Round Rock, TX United States Date Filed:
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 11/02/2016
being filed.
Williamson County Date Acknowledged:

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2016-17509
Hydronic Boilers Replacement at Justice Center

Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
4
Check only if there is NO Interested Party. .
AFFIDAVIT

| swear, or affirm, under penalty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.

| 9%,  RACHELSECA || B |
ﬁ' MY COMMISSION EXPIRES \ . I

)

;};:"?}:‘3}:# March 18, 2018

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

.

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / SEAL ABOVE

Swmn{n't‘jlgnd subscribed before me, by the said(__. (_(:1«71‘53 K Z)M' S ¢ this the (72/ day of NDU’

20 , to certify which, witness my hand and seal of office.
Cirlud ) et [ e P
v Signature of officer administering oath Printed name of officer administering oath Title of officer administering oath

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V1.0.277



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 33.

Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Stanley Security Agreement

Submitted For: Max Bricka
Department: Purchasing

Submitted By: Jayme Jasso, Purchasing

Agenda Category: Regular Agenda ltems

Agenda Item

Information

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the renewal of Lenel software support, for the same
pricing, terms and conditions as the existing contract for the term of December 2016 - December 2017 with Stanley

Security.

Background

Requested by Lisa Maraden, in the IT Department. This was Sole Sourced on 12/8/2015 and is now being
processed as a commodity purchase because of the low dollar amount. Funds are available under the commaodity.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [

Acct No. | | Description || Amount

Stanley Security

Attachments

Inbox

County Judge Exec Asst.

Form Started By: Jayme Jasso
Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016

Form Review

Reviewed By Date
Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 11:04 AM
Started On: 11/03/2016 09:41 AM




STANLEY. STANLEY Convergent Security Solutions, Inc.

Security

Customer Installation Agreement

Name: Williamson County (“Customer”)

Address: 710 South Main St., Georgetown, TX 78626
Contact: Gary Wilson

Date: 11/2/2016

STANLEY Convergent Security Solutions, Inc. (“SCSS”) hereby proposes to furnish labor and materials for the installation of
an electronic security/integrated solution system in accordance with the specifications below:

Name of Project: Williamson County - Software support 2016-2017
Transaction Type: Add/Upgrade

System .

Information: Integrated Solution

E;(é)jeeg(.ed approximate date of commencement of December 15, 2016
E;(é)j(;zi?d approximate date of completion of December 30, 2016

Customer to Provide

Equipment Notes

Stanley Convergent Security Solutions will provide Lenel software support for dongle ID 57181 from 12/31/16 to 12/31/17.
Stanley will install latest version of BASIS software.

Stanley will upgrade the 5 clients as well.
Theory of Operation

License Information (as of 10/03/2016): AK 1003300; 104891: AL 888, 1278, 1322; 1472, Complaints may be directed to Alabama Electronic Security Board of Licensure, 7956 Vaughn Rd., Montgomery, AL 36116 (334) 264-9388; 48682: AZ
ROC204975: AR 0329770517; CMPY.0001911, Regulated by Arkansas Bd of Private Investigators and Private Security Agencies, #1 State Police Plaza Dr, Little Rock, AR 72209 (501) 618-8600: CA 848019 - C10, C28; LCO5911; ACO6055, Alarm
company operators are licensed and regulated by the Bureau of Security & Investigative Services, Dept. of Consumer Affairs, Sacramento, CA 95814: CT ELC.0184651-L5: DE 04-158; FAL-0001: FL EF0000772: GA 439701: IA AC-211: ID 015830;
022726-AA-4: IL 127001274: KY 338: LA F1162; F875; F1277; 61931: MA 7129C: MD 107-1828; 259: MI 5103306; 3601205772: MN TS01238: MS 19207-SC; 15024172: MT FPL-BEL-000132: NC 23471 SP-FA/LV; 1839-CSA, Alarm Systems
Licensing Bd., 4901 Glenwood Ave, Ste 200, Raleigh, NC 27612 (919)788-5320: NJ 1074485; 659423; 34BF00017200: NM 374554: NV F400; F401; 0071024; 0078001: NY 12000293169, Licensed by NYS Dept. of State: OH 53-89-1512: OK 953
OR 161567: PA 032736: RI 9448A; TSC 4996; AC-004956: SC FAC3387; BAC5501: TN 1180; 1540; 1448; 1650; 1446; CE-D 65528: TX ACR2639; ECR1821; B02140: UT 5704068-6501: VA 2705-087235A, 11-5481: WA STANLCS925MZ: WV
045298: WI 969322: WY LV-G-23879.REV (2016.10.03) Q-00719047

Page 1 of 3



STANLEY. STANLEY Convergent Security Solutions, Inc.

Security

Investment Type: STANLEY Security Direct

Pricing and Deposit Terms

Payment Terms: Ali invoices are due thirty (30) days after date of the invoice. No retainage is Total Installation Price:  $8 752.00 USD
permitted. e i
Up-front Deposit™:
Progress Payments™
Balance Due Upon
Customer agrees that SCSS retains a security interest in the equipment until the full purchase price Completion™:
is paid.

Transaction Information: Add/Upgrade
Warranty Duration: One Year

*Prices do not include taxes*

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

The above prices, specifications and conditions attached hereto are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. The terms and conditions as set forth herein and
on the attached page shall supersede any conflicting terms, or any additional terms furnished by SCSS. Purchase Orders may be issued for billing purposes
only and any terms, conditions or changes included in such Purchase Orders shall have no force or effect. SCSS is authorized to do the work as specified.
Payment will be made as outlined above.

STANLEY Convergent Security Solutions, Inc. Customer: Williamson County

Security Representative (Sign) Customer (Sign)

. * T ey L £ '-, e
{(EJ e C HOATE
Security Representative (Print) Customer (Print)
Title

STANLEY Authorized Manager (Sign)

STANLEY Authorized Manager (Print)

Not Binding on SCSS without either Authorized Management Approval Signature or SCSS Begins the Installation or Services.

Terms and Conditions
WARRANTY
SCSS warrants that the equipment will be free from defects in material and workmanship for a period of One Year from the date the system is placed into
operation. If during this warranty period, any of the equipment or parts are defective or malfunction, they will be repaired or replaced free of charge.
Warranty repair is done 8 am-4pm Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. This warranty will not apply if the damage or malfunction occurs because the
system has been adjusted, added to, altered, abused, misused or tampered with by Customer.

DISCLAIMER OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES: EXCEPT FOR THE FOREGOING LIMITED EQUIPMENT WARRANTY DESCRIBED ABOVE, SCSS
MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE. IT IS EXPRESSLY AGREED THAT UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL SCSS BE HELD LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF PROFITS, WHETHER ARISING UNDER ALLEGED BREACH OF
AGREEMENT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILLITY OR ANY OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, AND SCSS'’S LIABILITY SHALL BE STRICTLY
LIMITED AS STATED ABOVE.

ADDITIONAL CHARGES:
1. All prices quoted do not include sales tax unless specifically written on the face of the proposal.
2. Unless otherwise stated in the proposal, the price quoted is FOB shipping point. All shipments will be UPS ground, unless otherwise specified.

ntgomery, AL 36116 -9388: 48682: AZ

Page 20f3



STANLEY. STANLEY Convergent Security Solutions, Inc.

Security

3.  Applicable permitting fees will be billed on a pass-through basis.

4  The price quoted assumes installation will be performed during SCSS’s normal working hours and using its own personnel. If Customer requests the
installation or any part thereof to be performed outside ordinary business hours or, if the installation must be performed by outside contractors, or
SCSS’s wage rates do not apply as a result of prevailing wage requirements, or otherwise, then the installation charge will be adjusted accordingly.

5.  Any changes to the system required by any government agency or Authority Having Jurisdiction will be billed to Customer, and are not the responsibility
of SCSS.

INSURANCE:

SCSS shall purchase and maintain without interruption from date of commencement of the work throughout the end of the contract period or completion of

SCSS’s work, whichever occurs later, insurance on its performance of the Work as set forth below:

1. Worker's Compensation insurance meeting statutory requirements of the state in which the work is to be performed and containing Employers' Liability
insurance with limits of $1,000,000 for each accident/disease.

2. Comprehensive Auto Liability insurance on an occurrence basis covering all SCSS owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with a combined single limit
of $1,000,000 for each occurrence for bodily injury, including death, to any one person and $500,000 for each occurrence of property damage.

3. Comprehensive General Liability, including contractual liability, insurance providing coverage of $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate.

4. Umbrella/Excess Insurance with coverage of $1,000,000. Coverage shall apply to all the same risks as the underlying insurance policies listed above.

SCSS will name Customer as additional insured to the extent of SCSS’s negligence on its general liability and automobile policies.

6. SCSS shall provide certificates of insurance evidencing the foregoing insurance is in effect at the request of Customer.

o

INDEMNIFICATION:

SCSS will hold Customer, its officers, directors, agents and employees harmless from damage, liability and expense to the extent resulting from the
negligent acts or omissions of SCSS, its agents or employees, during and within the scope of employment of such persons while they are on Customer’s
premises performing the installation work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, SCSS shall have no liability or obligation to indemnify for damage, liability or
expense resulting from or due to occurrences and/or the consequences there from that the system is intended to detect, prevent or record, including any
such loss or damage which may be occasioned or caused by the improper working or malfunctioning of the system. In no event will SCSS, its employees,
agents or representatives be responsible for consequential, incidental or special damages or for the negligence of others.

PROPRIETARY PROTECTION.

Any computer application program and/or documentation, collectively referred to as “Software”, that is provided by SCSS under this agreement, is owned by
SCSS, its affiliates or one of its OEM'’s and is protected by United States and international copyright laws and international treaty provisions. Any breach of
this agreement will automatically terminate the Customer’s right to use this Software, and the Customer is obligated to immediately return such Software to
SCSS. Customer may not copy the Software for any reason other than per the dictates of any end user software license agreement. Customer may not
reverse-engineer, disassemble, decompile or attempt to discover the source code of any Software. Customer acknowledges that any breach of this section
shall result in irreparable injury to SCSS for which the amount of damages would be unascertainable. Therefore, SCSS may, in addition to pursuing any and
all remedies provided by law, obtain an injunction against Customer from any court having jurisdiction, restraining any violation of this section.

License Information (as of 10/03/2016): AK 1003300; 104891: AL 888, 1278, 1322; 1472, Complaints may be directed to Alabama Electronic Security Board of Licensure, 7956 Vaughn Rd., Montgomery, AL 36116 (334) 264-9388; 48682: AZ
ROC204975: AR 0329770517; CMPY.0001911, Regulated by Arkansas Bd of Private Investigators and Private Security Agencies, #1 State Police Plaza Dr, Little Rock, AR 72209 (501) 618-8600: CA 848019 - C10, C28; LCO5911; ACO6055, Alarm
company operators are licensed and regulated by the Bureau of Security & Investigative Services, Dept. of Consumer Affairs, Sacramento, CA 95814: CT ELC.0184651-L5: DE 04-158; FAL-0001: FL EF0000772: GA 439701: IA AC-211: ID 015830;
022726-AA-4: IL 127001274: KY 338: LA F1162; F875; F1277; 61931: MA 7129C: MD 107-1828; 259: MI 5103306; 3601205772: MN TS01238: MS 19207-SC; 15024172: MT FPL-BEL-000132: NC 23471 SP-FA/LV; 1839-CSA, Alarm Systems
Licensing Bd., 4901 Glenwood Ave, Ste 200, Raleigh, NC 27612 (919)788-5320: NJ 1074485; 659423; 34BF00017200: NM 374554: NV F400; F401; 0071024; 0078001: NY 12000293169, Licensed by NYS Dept. of State: OH 53-89-1512: OK 953
OR 161567: PA 032736: RI 9448A; TSC 4996; AC-004956: SC FAC3387; BAC5501: TN 1180; 1540; 1448; 1650; 1446; CE-D 65528: TX ACR2639; ECR1821; B02140: UT 5704068-6501: VA 2705-087235A, 11-5481: WA STANLCS925MZ: WV
045298: WI 969322: WY LV-G-23879.REV (2016.10.03) Q-00719047

Page 3 of 3



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 34.
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016

Economic Development

Submitted For:  Charlie Crossfield Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond

Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item

Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.087:
a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.

b) Discuss Pearson Road District.

c) Discuss North Woods Road District.

d) Project Fiji

e) Leander Medical Center

f) Project Monkey

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description (| Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 11/03/2016 09:37 AM

Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



Commissioners Court - Regular Session
Meeting Date: 11/08/2016
Executive Session

Submitted For:  Charlie Crossfield Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond

Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

35.

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072 Deliberation Regarding

Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the
governmental body in negotiations with third person.)
A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties

1. Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by third parties

a) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for right-of-way for Mays St. Extension

b) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for proposed SH 29 project.

c) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop.

d) Discuss possible acquisition of property with endangered species for mitigation purposes.
e) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 101

f) Discuss the acquisition of real property: IH-35 at Ronald Reagan Blvd.

g) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 111

h) Discuss the acquisition of real property for proposed CR 110 project. (All sections)

i) Discuss the acquisition of real property: landfill properties

j) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Inner Loop.

k) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.

I) Discuss the acquisition of real property for DB Wood Rd. (Sneed Loop)

m) Discuss the acquisition of real property on CR 305.

n) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests for the Brushy Creek Trail Project.

o) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Arterial H

p) Discuss the acquisition of easements on the Forest North project.

q) Discuss potential acquisition of property located at NEC of Toll 130 and Gattis School Rd.
r) Discuss utilities for CR 305 at IH 35 and Reagan at IH35 projects.

s) Discuss easement acquisitions from San Gabriel River Ranch Subdivision.

t) Discuss options for ingress and egress regarding access to Cedar Hollow Subdivision.

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County

1). Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the County
a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.

b) Discuss possible sale of 183 A excess right of way

c) Discuss proposed sale of real estate of Blue Springs Blvd

d) Discuss proposed sale of excess right of way on CR 107

C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [| Description (| Amount

Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review




Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 11/03/2016 10:22 AM

Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 11/03/2016 09:35 AM
Final Approval Date: 11/03/2016



	Agenda
	line item transfer
	Line Item Transfer
	Line Item Transfer
	Line Item Transfer
	Asset Transfer
	ATT_Asset Transfer
	Compensation Items
	ATT_Comp Items
	ATT_LIT
	Santa Rita Ranch Phase 1 Section 1D - Final Plat
	ATT_Santa Rita Ranch Phase 1 Section 1D - Final Plat
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the amended plat for the Rancho Sienna Sec 4 Ph 1 subdivision - Pct 3
	ATT_Scivener's Affidavit - Rancho Sienna Sec 4 Ph 1
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Windmill Acres Subdivision - Pct 2
	ATT_Final Plat - Windmill Acres Subdivision
	Windmill III.pdf
	Windmill II
	Windmill

	Recognition of Certification
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update
	2013 Road Bond Transfer 
	ATT_2013 R Memo
	2006 Road Bond Transfer
	ATT_2006 R Memo
	CR 101 Real Estate Contract
	ATT_Barron Real Estate Contract
	Agreement forms for Catering services at Williamson County Expo Center
	ATT_Application for Catering Permit
	ATT_Caterers Event Permit Agreement with Indemnification
	ATT_Williamson County Expo Policy and Procedures Handbook Revised
	Unallocated Funds Policy and Process
	P_T Juvenile Supervision Officer Positions for Juvenile Services
	DPS Lab Analyst contract renewal
	ATT_DPS Lab Contract
	Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement for County Sheriff
	ATT_Celebration Church
	Amendment to Aetna Master Services Agreement for the addition of Teladoc Program
	ATT_Teladoc Amendment to Aetna Master Services Agreement
	AMENDMENT NO.  ________

	Tobacco Fund Balance Policy 
	ATT_Tobacco Fund Balance Policy
	Letter of Agreement with Office of Court Administration for Long Distance Services
	ATT_Office of Court Adminsitration Letter of Agreement
	Approve Advertising for the purchase of Crushed Granite Base materias  (IFB 1611-125)
	ATT_Crushed Granite Base
	Approving Supplemental Agreement and WA for San Gabriel
	ATT_Original Contract
	1
	2

	ATT_Contract Amendment
	ATT_Supplemental Agreement
	ATT_Form 1295
	Approve expenditures for water leak repair and mixing valve installations at the Jail House
	ATT_Jail boiler repairs
	Approve Renewal of Fuel Contract 1510-018
	ATT_Renewal Agreement
	ATT_Form 1295
	RFQ 1507-017 Construction Material Testing_Inspection for Williamson County North Campus Facilites
	ATT_Score sheets
	ATT_recommendation letter
	MTECH replacement of 3 boilers at Justice Center
	ATT_agreement and quote
	Stanley Security Agreement
	ATT_Stanley Security
	Economic Development
	Executive Session

